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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Bt i %
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BB

Note 2016 2015 % Change
oS —E—-RF —E—HF EFHHOLL
Results 4
HK$'000 FET
Revenue g 310,147 413,259 (24.95%)
Loss before income tax K PSR ES 18 (72,500) (23,302) 211.13%
Loss for the year attributable  ARFE AN 7]
to equity shareholders MR
of the Company from BENBRIE
continuing and i
discontinued operations FE(EES 1R (26,074) (33,055) (21.12%)
Assets and Liabilities EEHEEE
HK$'000 FHETT
Total assets BWEE 320,714 533,742 (39.91%)
Total liabilities BEE 315,201 568,292 (44.54%)
Shareholders’ equity AR R i 5,513 (34,550) 115.96%
Per share data BREE
HK cents B
Basic and diluted HEAN#E
(loss)/earnings (E518) /&F|
— from continuing operations  — ISE R L X (20.23) (8.93) 126.54%
— from discontinued operation — B 4% | 484 % 7& 13.81 (1.15) 1,300.87%
HK$ BT
Net asset/(liabilities) value BE/ () FE 0.01 (0.11) 109.09%
Financial Ratio s e
Current ratio mENEL R 1 1.10 0.99 11.11%
Quick ratio RB)LEE 0.90 0.91 (1%)
Notes: PR -
1) Current ratio represents current assets divided by current liabilities. 1) B EBRBEERARBAE -
2)  Quick ratio represents current assets excluding inventories divided by 2) REBEEREBETPEFTENRBDEERIRSEE -

current liabilities.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

T

YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The year 2016 was a significant year for Forebase International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”).

The acquisition of Nuofute Property Management Co., Ltd.* &
B#EEWESEAER AT (“Nuofute Property Management”)
at the beginning of the year was an important step to the Group.
Nuofute Property Management not only becomes one of the key
source of income to the Group, its success also strengthen the
confidence of the Group to become a modern city integrated life
service provider.

Through the efforts of the management, the Brentwood Bay Resort
in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada continues to be another
source of profit of the Group. The hotel and residential composite
development project located in Zhaotong City, Yunnan Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) was sold with a profit
of approximately HK$56,000,000. Management will continue to
explore other investment opportunities in hotel operation, property
investment and development in Hong Kong, the PRC and other
overseas countries.

As a result of the sluggish manufacturing business environment
mainly brought by the rising market competition and price
pressure for the existing products, the Group’s electronic
components business continued to incur losses during the year
and was the primary reason for the Group’s unsatisfactory results
for the year. Management has taken various active measures so
as to reduce the negative impact of the electronic components
business with an aim to bring a turnaround for the Group.

The board of directors (the“Board”) and the management will
continue to adjust the Group’s business strategies with an aim to
deliver satisfactory returns to every shareholders.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Revenue represents sales of electronic components, hotel
operating income and property management income, which
accounted for approximately 72.6% (2015: 83.5%), 13.6% (2015:
9.9%) and 13.8% (2015: 6.6%) respectively, of the total revenue.
Revenue decreased by 25.0% to approximately HK$310,147,000
from approximately HK$413,259,000 in 2015, which was mainly
attributable to the net effect of the decrease in sales of electronic
components business from approximately HK$345,033,000
in 2015 to approximately HK$225,204,000 in 2016 and the
increase property management income from approximately
HK$27,145,000 in 2015 to approximately HK$42,726,000 in
2016. The Group incurred gross loss in 2016, as compared to
gross profit of approximately HK$11,494,000 in 2015, as a result
of the decrease in sales of electronic components.

* For identification purpose only.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

T

PROSPECTS

In January 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of Nuofute
Property Management. Since then the property management
segment has become one of the key sources of income to the
Group. Management believes that the property management
industry in China will continue to grow steadily and this segment
will bring stable income to the Group. While exploring new property
management projects, the Group will actively consider expanding
this segment through acquisitions.

The hotel operation business in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada
continues to generate revenue for the Group, of which, however,
has contributed less due to foreign exchange fluctuations. The
Group has been exploring other investment opportunities in hotel
operation, property investment and development in Hong Kong,
the PRC and other overseas countries, with an aim to deliver
substantial returns for shareholders of the Company through a
series of acquisitions and proposed cooperation.

The Group’s electronic components business continued to incur
losses during the year and was the primary reason for the Group’s
unsatisfactory results for the year. Management has taken various
active measures so as to reduce the negative impact of the
electronic components business with an aim to bring a turnaround
for the Group.

The Group is adjusting its overall operational strategies and
considering to invest in several service-oriented industries,
including cultural, tourism and healthcare sectors. The objective
is to synthesize these new investments with existing businesses
to transform the Group into a modern city integrated life service
provider and bring satisfactory returns to both the Group and its
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere thanks and
appreciation to our shareholders, business partners and dedicated
management as well as staff for their continued support and
valuable contributions to the Group.

Shen Yong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB A K A

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents sales of electronic components, hotel
operating income and property management income. Sales of
electronic components accounted for approximately 72.6%
(2015: 83.5%) of the total revenue. Revenue decreased by
25.0% to approximately HK$310,147,000 from approximately
HK$413,259,000 in 2015 which was due to the decrease in
sales of electronic components business during the year.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$88,767,000 or
22.1% to approximately HK$312,998,000 which was in line with
the decrease in revenue.

B 755 [l R
o 55 B 53 B A A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB A K A

Gross (Loss)/Profit

Gross loss in 2016 was mainly attributable to the decrease in
sales of electronic components business. Gross profit in 2015
was the net effect of the gross profit in hotel operation and
property management of HK$13,786,000 and HK$10,629,000,
respectively and gross loss in electronic components business of
HK$12,921,000.

Other Income

Other income decreased by approximately HK$34,106,000
from approximately HK$46,460,000 in 2015 to approximately
HK$12,354,000 in 2016. The decrease was mainly due to a
bargain purchase gain arising on the business combination of
approximately HK$39,056,000 was recorded in 2015.

The Group is actively considering to invest in several service-
oriented industries. To synthesize these new investments with
existing businesses, the Group aims to transform into a modern
city integrated life service provider and bring satisfactory
returns to both the Group and its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(E R V¥R

Revenue of Hotel
Operation Business

Revenue of Electronic
Components Business

Revenue of Property
Management Business
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Operating expenses during the year amounted to HK$64,101,000
(2015: HK$63,434,000), which had no significant fluctuation.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs during the year amounted to
HK$17,902,000 (2015: HK$17,822,000), which had no
significant fluctuation.

Taxation

Income tax expense increased from approximately HK$5,985,000
in 2015 to approximately HK$9,720,000 in 2016 was mainly
attributable to the increase in provision for PRC Enterprise
Income Tax of approximately HK$2,889,000 as a result of the
increase in taxable profit of the property management segment.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing combined effects of the above, the
Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$26,074,000.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s net current assets and
current ratio were approximately HK$16,074,000 and 1.10
respectively (2015: Net current liabilities of approximately
HK$4,249,000 and 0.99).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB A K A

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank balances and
cash amounted to approximately HK$56,885,000 including
approximately HK$3,090,000 restricted bank deposits and
approximately HK$1,000,000 short-term bank deposit with
original maturity more than three months (2015: approximately
HK$62,211,000 including approximately HK$11,768,000
restricted bank deposits and approximately HK$1,000,000
short-term bank deposit with original maturity more than three
months).

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank deposits
of approximately HK$3,090,000 (2015: approximately
HK$11,768,000) and the land and buildings held for own use
of approximately HK$82,539,000 (2015: HK$80,858,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group financed its
liquidity requirements through a combination of cash flow as
generated from operations, bank borrowings, secured loans,
bonds, advances from a director.

Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s had no capital
commitments (2015: HK$518,685,000) and operating lease
commitments were approximately HK$8,968,000 (2015:
approximately HK$15,386,000). As at 31 December 2016
and 2015, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Electronic Components Business

As the Group has been facing a sluggish manufacturing business
environment mainly brought by the rising market competition
and price pressure for the existing products, turnover from the
electronic component business decreased by approximately
HK$119,829,000 or approximately 34.7% from approximately
HK$345,033,000 in 2015 to approximately HK$225,204,000 in
2016. The decline was mainly due to decrease in sales of tablet
products and tuner modules for home and car audio for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The turnover amount represented
approximately 72.6 % of the Group’s total turnover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB A K A

Hotel Operation Business

Revenue from hotel operation accounted of approximately
13.6% of the total revenue. For the year 2016, the hotel
achieved occupancy of 77.4% (2015: 72.5%) and room revenue
increased by 9.9% in 2016. However, the growth in room
revenue was offset by the devaluation of CAD. The revenue was
increased by approximately HK$1,136,000 from approximately
HK$41,081,000 in 2015 to approximately HK$42,217,000 in
2016.

Property Management Business

Revenue from property management business amounted
to approximately HK$42,726,000, representing an increase
of 57.4% against approximately HK$27,145,000 in 2015.
The increase was due to the acquisition of Nuofute Property
Management in July 2015 of which only 5 months of results
was accounted for in 2015 as compared to the entire year being
accounted for in 2016. The segmental revenue accounted for
approximately 13.8% of the total revenue of the Group.

Staff and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 1,196
employees, including 1,026 based in the PRC, 38 based in
Hong Kong 17 based in Korea and 115 based in Canada. Staff
costs for the year ended 31 December 2016 were approximately
HK$120,632,000, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$6,754,000 as compared to approximately HK$127,386,000
of last year.

Employee remuneration is determined in accordance with
prevailing industry practice and employees’ performance and
experience. Discretionary bonuses are awarded to employees
with outstanding performance with reference to the performance
of the Group. Employees are also entitled to other staff benefits
including medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation and Hedge

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi,
United States Dollars, Canadian Dollar and Korean Won. Foreign
exchange risk arises from commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investment in foreign operations.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
Group did not enter into any forward foreign currency contracts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB A K A

Principal Risks and uncertainties

The following is a list of principal risks and uncertainties that are
considered to be of significance as it currently stands and with
potential affecting the Group’s businesses, results of operations
and financial conditions. However, this is non-exhaustive as
there may be other risks and uncertainties arising resulting from
changes in economic and other conditions over time.

° The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue
from major customers. The decrease in demand from
major customers may materially and adversely affect the
business.

° Fluctuation in exchange rates may adversely affect the
business.

o The Group may be subject to labour shortages, increased
labour cost or other factors affecting labour force, which
may materially affect the Group’s business operation and
financial condition.

° In recent years, the property development market in the
PRC has been concurrently affected by the economic
trend and government policies such as the adoption of
category based regulatory measures and the bilateral
regulatory measures for the real estate market, policy
changes in mortgage levels and ownership, interest rate
changes, supply and demand conditions as well as the
overall economic volatility in the PRC.

° The Group operates a resort hotel in Victoria, British
Columbia, Canada. Hotel performance is usually subject to
a high degree of fluctuation caused by both predictable and
unpredictable factors including seasonality, social stability,
epidemic diseases and changes in economic conditions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
o NREE S

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of
practices of corporate governance so as to ensure the protection
of shareholders’ interests with better transparency. The Company
has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2016, except for
the following:

Code Provision A.6.7

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal Board
members, should attend the general meetings of the Company.

The Company held its extraordinary general meeting on 22
January 2016 (“the EGM”) and annual general meeting on 31
May 2016 (the “AGM”). During the year ended 31 December
2016, certain independent non-executive directors were
unable to attend the Company’s general meetings due to their
unavoidable business engagements.

The Company was arranged and will continue to arrange to
furnish all directors with appropriate information on all general
meetings and take all reasonable measures to arrange to
schedule in such a way that all directors can attend general
meetings, as well as to support non-executive directors to
respond to shareholders’ questions in the general meetings.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the AGM. Due to other business engagements, the
Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the AGM. However,
Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi, a former executive director, took chair of the
AGM pursuant to the articles of association of the Company to
ensure an effective communication with the shareholders of the
Company thereat.
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Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted Appendix 10, Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of practice for
carrying out securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries to
all directors of the Company, confirmed that all directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board,
which currently comprises eight members, coming from diverse
businesses and professional backgrounds. The biographical
details of directors are set out under the section “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 46 to 49 of this annual report.
The Board currently comprises executive directors Mr. Shen
Yong (Chairman), Mr. Gan Lin (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Shen
Ke, Mr. Hong Sang Joon; non-executive director Mr. Huang Xiang
Yang and independent non-executive directors Dr. Loke Yu (alias
Loke Hoi Lam), Mr. Yu Lei, and Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies.

To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Board has
established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (a)
setting the Group’s strategy and dividend policy; (b) approving
budgets, reviewing operational and financial performance; (c)
approving major investments and divestments; (d) reviewing the
internal control system of the Group; (e) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (f)
approving appointments of and remuneration policy for directors
and other senior executives; (g) approving corporate social
responsibility policies; and (h) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders.
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For the financial reporting accountability, the Board has an
ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial statements. In
preparing the financial statements, the Board has ensured that (a)
the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have
been adopted; (b) appropriate accounting policies have been
used and applied consistently; and (c) reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made. Moreover, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board
has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Being part of good corporate governance practices, a number
of board committees have been established. These committees
include five corporate governance related committees namely
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee as well as one
ad hoc committee namely the Independent Board Committee
which is responsible for advising the matters in relation to the
continuing connected transactions. These committees operate
within specific terms of reference as prepared by the Company
and report their work and findings to the Board regularly.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS EEHELH

The attendance records of the directors at Board Meetings,

BE_ZT—RF+_A=+—HBLFER"

Audit Committee Meetings, Remuneration Committee Meeting, NEEREFSER  EXZELgE T
Executive Committee Meetings, Nomination Committee Meeting, ZEggR WTLESeR ERZEQY
Independent Board Committee Meeting and General Meetings HOBAVESZESLRLREARAGZHERER
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out below: SRONT -
No. of meetings attended/held
BELE/BTRY
Independent
Board
Audit Remuneration Executive  Nomination ~ Committee General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee BUEE meeting
EEe EnzEe §MZEE #UNZEE REZES ZEE® RRAE
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Shen Yong BELE 444 n/a n/a 0/0 n/a n/a 01
TER TER TER TER
Mr. Gan Lin” BREs" 33 n/a n/a 000 n/a n/a o
TR TR TR TR
Mr. Shen Ke B 404 nla n/a 0/0 n/a n/a 02
TiEA @A TER TER
Mr. Hong Sang Joon ERELE 414 n/a n/a 0/0 na na 02
iR iR TEf TEf
Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi® STEEE" 44 nfa nfa 000 nfa nfa 22
TiEA TEA TEm &Sl
Non-executive director FUTES
Mr. Huang Xiang Yang” ankEL” n n/a n/a na na na na
TR T TR TR TR TR
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No. of meetings attended/held

BELR /B0
Independent
Board
Audit Remuneration Executive  Nomination ~ Committee General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee BIEE meeting

E3e FUZEE FHZRE HZRE REZEE 288 ERRAg

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Dr. Loke Yu BEEEL" 33 il 212 na il n/a il
(alias Loke Hoi Lam)"” T T
Mr. Yu Lei SERE 4/4 33 4/4 nfa 22 1/1 22
TEA
Mr. Emst Rudolf Zimmermann RIS X %4 3/4 213 414 nla 212 01 12
TR
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan" FREzL" il 1 22 na 1 01 01
TEA
" appointed on 18 April 2016 O RZE-XNFEMA+N\BERT
@ resigned on 30 December 2016 @ RoT—XE+-A=+HEE
) appointed on 30 December 2016 @ R-T-XF+-A=+tAEZRA
“@ resigned on 18 April 2016 @ R XENA+N\BEHMT

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five board committees, namely,
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Independent Board Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All board committees should report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

A. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Shen Yong
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Shen Ke, Mr. Hong Sang Joon
and Mr. Gan Lin.

The major responsibilities of the Executive Committee are:

1.  to develop strategic plans for the consideration of the
Board;

2. to implement the strategies and policies of the Group
as determined by the Board;

EEZEE
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3. to monitor the daily operations and financial results
against plans and budgets; and

4.  to guide the Company in various corporate affairs
There were no Executive Committee meetings held
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei (Committee
Chairman), Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are:

1.  to review the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration structure; and

3. to review and guide the formulation of the Group’s
remuneration policy for directors and senior
management attributable to performance-driven
compensation commitment as well as market trend
and industry norms.

There were four Remuneration Committee meetings
held for the year ended 31 December 2016 to review
the remuneration packages of directors and senior
management according to the Group’s employment policy,
nomination policy, remuneration policy, and training and
development policy.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee can be viewed on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Details of the remuneration to the directors on named
basis and members of senior management by band are
disclosed in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements,respectively.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei (Committee
Chairman), Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The maijor responsibilities of the Nomination Committee

are:

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors;

to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment or re-appointment of directors;

to propose the appointment of such candidates to the
Board for consideration; and

to review the qualifications of the relevant candidates
for determining the suitability to the Group on the
basis of his/her qualifications, experience and
background.

There were two Nomination Committee meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to discuss and consider
the following matters:

1.

the composition of the Board with reference to certain
criteria. These criteria included qualifications required
under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws
regarding characteristics and skills of the directors,
professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as
well as ability to devote sufficient time to the work of
the Board and its committees and to participate in all
Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

the re-appointment of the retiring directors for
reelection at the previous general meeting;
procedures for election of directors and by
shareholders; and

independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee can be viewed on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Dr. Loke Yu
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Yu Lei and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1. to monitor the integrity of financial reporting of the
Company;

2. 1o review the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and

3. to review the corporate governance practices of the
Company.

There were three Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to discuss and review the
following matters:

1. the 2015 annual report and accounts;
the 2016 interim report and accounts;

3. the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

4.  the financial reporting and relevant compliance with
external auditor; and

5. the auditor’s remuneration and recommended the
Board to appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
as the auditor of the Company in 2016 upon the
resignation of ShingWing (HK) CPA Limited. The re-
appointment of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as
the auditor of the Company in the year 2017, which
is subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Board Committee

The Independent Board Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei
(Committee Chairman), Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann.
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The major responsibilities of the Independent Board BUEEZEECFERER:

Committee are:

1. to consider and review matters regarding the 1. UEREBRNAEBANSEEFERER
continuing connected transactions of the Group; and SHZFEEH &

2. to advise the independent shareholders whether the 2. MAKERZREATF -  AEBAFA
Group’s transactions are fair and reasonable and in PN St S M ERY T RV &S
the interests of the Company and shareholders as a REHER -
whole.

There was one Independent Board Committee meeting HE_ZE—R"F+_A=+—HILFE

held for the year ended 31 December 2016. BRIT-RBUEELZECEE -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EEREIRMEE

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate EECRERTOLEERTAHRENTEER

governance duties as required under the CG Code: BEWNT

1. todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices 1. HERBRITARFTNCEERARRLE
on corporate governance; G

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous 2. BAKEREEFLREMAEEABNEIIR
professional development of the directors and senior REEEER

officers of the Group;

3. toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices 3. BARERAQNAIEETAEREESRT
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; FERBE KRR

4. to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct 4. HIE - RAKEREANEERESTNER
applicable to employees and the directors; and SR K

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and 5. REAQRESTEEERTUNERRE
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report. RAEEEARAREE) ANHE -

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board considered REBEE-_ZE—XR"F+_A=+T—HLFE =E

the following corporate governance matters: ERRERATEEEREE

1. review of the compliance with the Code Provisions of the 1. BHETREEERTAZFEMEN 215
CG Code; and oo K

2. review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and 2. FBRBERZESRNAEEANIBEZELE
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit BERRS BN -

Committee.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretary of the Company is a full time employee of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
Secretary, Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie, has duly complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biographical details of the
Company Secretary is set out on in the section entitled “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal induction to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group, his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements, the CG Code of the Company
and the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for directors will be
arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary.
The directors are committed to complying with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training effective from 1 April
2012. All directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided their training records to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
no claim had been made against the directors and the officers of
the Company.
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The Separate Roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer, is clearly defined and has
been approved by the Board. The Chairman provides leadership
of the Board, ensures the effectiveness of the Board and
oversees the corporate development; while the Chief Executive
Officer, as head of the executive directorate, is responsible for
managing the business development and strategic planning of
the Group.

Their separate roles reinforce the continuous enhancement of
the Group’s corporate governance in terms of corporate fairness,
transparency and accountability.

Directors’ Independence

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) among members of the Board except that Mr.
Shen Yong, chairman of the Board is the father of Mr. Shen Ke,
an executive director of the Company.

The directors are given access to independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense, when the directors deem it
necessary in order to carry out their responsibilities.

The Board also advocates the participation of independent non-
executive directors and non-executive directors in various board
committees to safeguard objectivity and independence.

The Company has received the confirmation letters from each
of the independent non-executive directors, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system to ensure adequate
control in place to safeguard the Group’s assets and
stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to
address and handle the all significant risks associate with the
business of the Group. The Board would perform annual review
on any significant change of the business environment and
establish procedures to response the risks result from significant
change of business environment. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to mitigate the potential
losses of the business.

Management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors
and events which include political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so
as to avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the
risk or allocate to different location or product or market.

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third

party
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The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are design
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit
function to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. There is
no significant deficiency and weakness on the internal control
system has been identified by the external advisory firm for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December
2016, the risk management and internal control system
and procedures of the Group, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions were reasonably effective and adequate.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as
the Group’s external auditor. The statement by Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited regarding their reporting responsibilities to
the shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
65 to 73 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided

1% B4 6 i B

BE_Z—R"ETA=1T—HBILEFE &K
A AR EBRERB N IFERBRE ZEXN

by the auditor to the Group were as follows: JERT TizERc BAMT
HK$'000

Nature of services RIEMHE FHEIT
Audit services ZEARTS 850
Non-audit services IERZ B RIS

Other services H b ARFS 30
Total k] 880
INVESTOR RELATIONS REEMEZR

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. Annual reports and interim
reports provide shareholders with comprehensive information
of the Group’s operational and financial performances; while
general meetings offer a platform for shareholders to state and
exchange views with the Board directly.

The management continually communicates with analysts and
institutional investors and provides them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information regarding the Group’s development.
The Company practices timely dissemination of information
and makes sure its website www.forebase.com.hk contains
the most latest information, including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports, announcements, monthly returns and
press releases, and is updated in a timely manner to ensure
transparency.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there had been no
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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BRER Z#EF

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholder(s) holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition at least 5% of the
voting rights at general meetings of the Company, may
request the directors of the Company to convene an
EGM. The written requisition must state the objects of
the meeting and must be signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of chairman of the Board or the
Company Secretary. The requisition may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
shareholders concerned.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene an EGM for a date not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given,
the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
general meetings are to be convened by the directors of the
Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The Company Secretary will forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the shareholders’ questions in writing.

A. HEREBRBREHINAE
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals
at General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 551 to 554
(written resolutions), section 579 (notice of resolutions),
sections 580 to 583 (statements), section 615, section 616
(resolutions for AGMs) of the Companies Ordinance for
including a resolution at AGM of the Company AGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out as follows:

1. A member of a company may request the company
to circulate a resolution that—

(a) may properly be moved; and
(b) is proposed as a written resolution under
section 549(b) of the Companies Ordinance.

If a member requests a company to circulate a
resolution, the member may request the company
to circulate with the resolution a statement of not
more than 1,000 words on the subject matter of the
resolution.

However, each member may only request the
company to circulate one such statement with
respect to the resolution.

2. A company must circulate a resolution proposed
as a written resolution under section 549(b) of the
Companies Ordinance and any statement mentioned
in section 551(2) of the Companies Ordinance if it
has received requests that it do so from the members
of the company representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of all the members entitled to vote
on the resolution (or a lower percentage specified for
this purpose in the company’s articles).

A request—

(@) may be sent to the company in hard copy form
or in electronic form;

(b)  must identify the resolution and any statement
mentioned in section 551(2) of the Companies
Ordinance; and

(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it.

C.

BREERRAE LIREFTHNERF
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If by any provision of the Companies Ordinance
special notice is required to be given of a resolution,
the resolution is not effective unless notice of the
intention to move it has been given to the company at
least 28 days before the meeting at which it is moved.

The company must, if practicable, give its members
notice of the resolution at the same time and in the
same manner as it gives notice of the meeting.

If that is not practicable, the company must give its
members notice of the resolution at least 14 days
before the meeting—

(a) by advertisement in a newspaper circulating
generally in Hong Kong; or

(b) in any other manner allowed by the company’s
articles.

|f, after notice of the intention to move the resolution
has been given to the Company, a meeting is called
for a date 28 days or less after the notice has been
given, the notice is to be regarded as having been
properly given, though not given within the time
required.

Pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, no person other than a director retiring
at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for election as
director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be processed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least seven days and that the period
for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.
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INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE OF ESG REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
report and the Group is committed towards sustainability and
understands the importance of sustainable development of its
business and community. This report is prepared in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

As this is the first ESG report of the Group it will present mainly
policies, initiatives and performance and will also disclose
material aspects identified and activities implemented for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The Board is pleased to present
our performance and progress and has reviewed and approved
the report to ensure all material issues and impacts are fairly
presented.

The Group understands the importance of ESG report and is
committed to making continuous improvements in corporate
social responsibility into our business in order to better meet the
changing needs of an advancing society. The following will show
the ESG issues that found material for the Group and the relation
to the ESG Guide:

HERRE  HERERREHEE
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ESG Guide
RiE - HERERED

Relevant ESG issues to the Group

HEAKEMERANERE HERERSE

A. Environmental

A IR

A.1 Emissions

A1 HERR

A.2 Use of resources

A2 ERA A

A.3 Environmental and natural resources
A3 RIERBEABIR

CO2 emissions

&L ERHER

Water, electricity, fossil fuel and paper consumption
K~ B AL AR R R H)ERE

Measures in reducing environmental impact

WA IR B RE b




FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F EEIFR#Z IR B R A =)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG Guide
R - HERERES

R A& R

Relevant ESG issues to the Group

HEAKEABNERE  HERERBER

B. Social

B. #®&

B.1 Employment

B.1 &f%

B.2 Health and safety

B2 REAZR

B.3 Development and training
B.3 BE KIEF

B.4 Labour standards

B.4 S5EN5RE

B.5 Supply chain management
B.5 (e E IR

B.6 Product responsibility
B.6 EmAE

B.7 Anti-corruption

B.7 R&)S

B.8 Community investment

B.8 it@IXE

Labour practices, anti-discrimination and equal opportunities
BIEBRREMR R FERE

Risk management

R R B IR

Employees training and development
EEEIILER

Child labour and forced labor

BT R&HI5E

Supplier management

HrEmeiE

Product safety and quality
EntEhEE

Anti-corruption and money laundering
RES KK

Community involvement

RS

ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group is diversified with core business areas including
manufacture and sale of electronic components, hotel operations,
property management as well as properties development. The
regions of all sub-companies can be divided into Hotel, Dining
and properties development in Canada, property management
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), manufacture and
sale of electronic component in Hong Kong and the PRC, and
Korea without operation.

About the Brentwood Bay Resort in Victoria, British Columbia,
Canada, this award-winning resort is tailored for luxury traveler.
Culinary innovation would be the core value at the resort and
the resort offers resort and spa services. The Group always look
for ways to improve, grow and develop for all staffs because the
resort operates as a team to deliver exceptional service.

MR A
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ENVIRONMENTAL A. RiE

By qualifying the ISO 14001, the Group has a successful #EIAISO 14001 RFE » AEBUKIINE
and systematic framework to manage the immediate and SMEERS —FRAEZNED  REEIF
long term environmental impacts of an organisation’s FriEm m Bl R RHIR R B HE1TER -

products, services and processes.

A.1 Emissions A.1 BERR

In recent years, the Central government has actively
promoted carbon reduction. The Group sticks to the
principle of active participation and environmental
responsibility, the Group can fulfill not only its market
mandate but also greatly support green activities
and actively implement national policies aimed at
emission reduction.

The PRC Group are under governed by Environmental
Protection of the People’s Republic of China Prevention
(rhEE A R LA IRIE(RE L), Control of Atmospheric
Pollution (fZEARLMBEIKREFEP8%E) and
Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment Ordinance
CREEYEIKERSKEZ IR (71). The guidelines for the
environmental requirement of local government and
violate these environmental regulations may result
temporary suspension of production.

In Canada, the Brentwood Bay Resort has always
paid attention to both environmental protection and
social responsibility in their business practices. For
the Canada region’s corporation, the Brentwood
Bay Resort is compliance towards British Columbia
laws and regulations on Greenhouse gas reduction
targets act. Overall, for the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group has been fully complied with these
environmental regulations.

CO2 emissions

In 2016, the Group has proposed a set of CO2
emission reduction management policy in order to
save energy resources, reduce energy waste and
spend energy efficiently. All members of the Group
would build up a saving habit on energy resources.
The reduction policy has suggested some tactics
to create a better and cleaner environment for the
society.
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h0E K5 ® - Brentwood Bay Resort
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For the Forebase Canada Limited, the Group has
an official greenhouse gas emissions target levels.
The target level would be established and for each
subsequent calendar year, greenhouse gas emissions
will be at least 33% less than the level of those
emissions in 2007.

As the Group is engaging in manufacture electronic
components such as coils and transformers in PRC,
strict control has been taken for emission of air, water
and land waste. It is the Group’s policy to maintain
the manufacture process in an efficient and effective
manner to continue minimizing environmental
impact. The Group ensured waste water is properly
connected to municipal sewage system and all land
waste is send to municipal solid waste management
plant during production.

Use of Resources

Water, electricity, fossil fuel and paper
consumption

The Group always encourage staffs to adopt
environmentally responsible habits that mentioned in
the environmental management practices to measure
and reduce the use of resources, minimize waste and
recycle materials.

During the year, the use of electricity and paper
are principally direct impact to the environment.
Whenever it produces electrical components and
provides customer services or operates the office and
resort, the Group also exerts an impact through fossil
fuel and water.

A.2

#17 Forebase Canada Limited » "%
EEHE EXAREREHHREEE
® o BEBEERBEUTELER
REESEBETE  AEREBENK
ERELE _ETLFNEERE D
33% °
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In the PRC, the Group’s resources consumption FHE - AEER T RFENE
during the year of 2016 are listed in the below table: TR RN TR -
Resources Consumption Unit Amount
ERHRE B HgE
Electricity consumption kWh 3,534,390
EhHFE TR
Fossil fuel used Litre 30,000
FrR{tamE NI
Paper used ream 849,000
ik <
Water consumption M3 60,120
FEK SR
As a whole, the “save more use less” concept is REE - ANEBEEREA IIESAE
being promoted throughout all work sites. The Group BIZ&€VAIMNES AEBGE
would rearrange production schedules to improve L BEEERS  UIRSEERS
the production efficiency to reduce use of resources A EER - BT RREMEEEIRA
including energy, labour and raw materials. A -

A.3 The Environmental and Natural A3 RERBRER
Resources
Measures in reducing environmental impact D IRE R BRI
In accordance with the Group’s environmental BEASBNIRBES - I FAH
philosophy, all sub-companies are committed to HEETELEEREEMMNER - 75
producing high quality products while also ensuring MRABEBEHERREER MR
that all business activities impact the environment 2 (WEEHERNTPEEEENA
positively (manufacturing operations merely for the A]) e

companies in the PRC and Hong Kong).

B. SOCIAL B. #&

B.1 Employment B.1 {&f&
Labour practices ETER
The Group has maintained two manufacturing bases KEBERERFEREMEREE
in Hong Kong and the PRC and two service bases - FEINE AR EREREREE
in Canada and the PRC. The Group has established o AEBEREE TFM - AR
staff handbook to ensure every member of the Group REEMEMKEETHARBER
have complied with all relevant ethical and regulatory REEERE - AEBKBHLETRA
standards. The Group regards every single staff as BRABE ' BINARRNGEREKNN
the greatest assets as they continue to be the greatest 1BIE

force behind the Company.
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(Pic: recruitment advertisement from the Shenzhen Kwang Sung Electronic Co. Limited)

(B : FYtBEFBRABNERES)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has complied with all relevant employment and
labour laws and regulations such as the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China {# & A R FIE
L&)k ), Labor Contract Law of People’s Republic of
China /2 A R 2 FNE 45 8) & [F])%). The Group has
remunerated all wages owing to employees within 48
hours after the employer terminates the employment
or within 6 days after the employee terminates the
employment by following the employment standards
act for British Columbia.

The Group has encouraged its employees to work
according to the standard working hour per day
and week as stated in the labour contract. The
Group would pay an employee overtime wages in
accordance with labour law if the employer requires
the employee to work more than 8 hours a day or 40
hours a week.
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Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity

The Group would diversify its staffs by means
of gender and age to balance the culture and
communications between staffs. The Group would
perform annual review to ensure the policy has
been consistently adopted. The Group is committed
in having a workplace environment free from
discrimination and received equal opportunities
for all despite of age, gender, race, colour, sexual
orientation, disability or marital status. During the
year, the Group established a speak-out policy which
allows any level of employees to raise questions
and concerns about suspected issue. The Group
encourage labour diversity and welcomes all regions
of manpower regardless of national origin, race,
religion, sexual orientation, disability, thus putting the
principle of fairness into practices.

As at the end of 2016, Brentwood Bay Resort
employed over 110 service workers. The charts below
show the diversity of the staffs.
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The Group always appreciate that both full time or
part time worker to participate in group together,
although the turnover rate of the age range between
20 and 30 is greater than other age ranges. The
Group has been providing more employees’ welfares
and benefits in a bid to retain the number of
employee.

BE20-0RFHRENABDEINE
FERE - BAKBERRBEREDR
BTHERBMET —E2IEH - Rt
nEER  AEE-—BEENREMIE
BEH K Fas o

Turnc_)ller Rate Gender
mEE (RMERES)

44%
@ Male Sk
& Female 7%

56%

The turnover rate gender is even so that the company
(hotel business) in Canada of the Group can deal
with different customers’ requests and problems
that might have preference to be served by male or
female.

On the other hand, the Group has employed over
1,026 manufacturing workers in the PRC. The variety
of those workers are shown in the below charts.

MBERMERIFH - AMAKERNINE
REVATE CEERT) 7] PABRIEA] B8
FHEARZEERNNTRZTF KK

A

S AEBEREERBES
1026 REETA » NIBRBRZ
FEIMZKIE -

14%

Gender Profile
4 5l 4 6

@ Male B1%
& Female 1%

86%

Age Profile
ER T

«® 13830
@@ 31-40
@ 41-50

4%

22%

74%




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ¢ —ZF—/XF i

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE MG RE RS

Comparatively, the total number of workers in China'’s HEME - ARASEERFEB AR
companies is much greater than that of Canada TEEEM  BEEBMEARLTE
since they are manufacture-based and the nature of M WEB THEIRERNINEXR
business is labour oriented. 0K/

Position Profile

B 16

@ (Operation Management %38 & 1%
@ Production Management 4 E &2
@ Quality Management & & & #
@ Exploitation (R&D) FZE (#73%)
@ Technician &1l A 8

92%

. . 657
Region Profile
[ 5 1
@ Hunan(;#&) & jiangxi(;IF)
@ Hubei(#1k) @& Sichuan(m)Il)
@ Guangdong( &%) @& Yunnan(ERE)
& Guangxi( ) @ Chongaqin( &)
@ Guizhou(EM) @ Shaanxi( BEF)
@ Henan(ji) @ Others(Hft)

& Hainan(/&f)

B.2 Health and Safety B2 EREREZZ

Risk management FEBRETE

The Group cares about every employee’ welfare and rEEBLENEENEIRELE
safety to achieve “zero accidents” in the workplace BB RER RS IS
with clear policies. During 2016 there was no W] RZTE—RNFEIEETIEN
record of work related fatalities. Creating a healthy B TSR - TE—ARERL S
and safe workplace means having an effective W LIESMERE BHA R RE &
health and safety program and meeting other basic LZREFIWmE HMmERER -

requirements.

The Group would regularly assess emerging risks and INER B R HART AR B B S LA 2 B
other health and safety issues. Hazards in workplace RLZ2ME8 - RIREIARKARS
has been accurately identified in order to protect MRS B IE R AR B U [
workers and control the risks using a systematic % ANEBE D ERYER TIESFTHE

approach by correcting unsafe conditions. 2o
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The Group has implemented an effective and formal
health and safety programme if there is a workforce of
20 or more workers and at least one workplace where
there is a moderate or high risk of injury. Also, the
Group has set up a joint health and safety committee
together to support its duty for the workers.

Development and Training
Employees training and development

The Group always believe that effective training and
orienting our workers is the key to helping them
stay safe and prevent work injuries. The Group has
obtained the certificates of ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
TS16949, OHSAS18001 and the approval of
international management system to keep up the
Group’s standard.

The Group has various training programmes,
internal and external, to fully develop its workforce.
It is extremely important that we incorporate safety
into our worksite orientation before our staff beings
working. Orientation topics would mostly cover rights
and responsibilities, workplace hazards, safe work
procedures, etc.

When the workers have been supervised with hands-
on training on the tasks they will perform, the Group
would ensure that they can

- perform tasks safely
- follow safe work procedures

- wearing all required personal protective
equipment when operating machines and
equipment

The Group would follow up all workers and staff to
check that they are following safe work procedures.
All training records of workers would be kept and
there is on-going supervisor training specifically for
our SUpervisors.

B.3
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Labour Standards
Child labour and forced labor

The Group has a strict employment standards to
follow. For instance, when hiring employees in
Canada, the Group has prohibited to employ any
person under 15 years of age unless the person has
obtained the written consent of the child’s parent
or guardian. The Group also strictly complied with
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China (PEARAMBE LB S RIE).

Upon discovery of any child labour and use of forced
labour, the person will be dismissed immediately
and the Board will discuss and review the problem
to prevent it from happening again. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, no violation regarding
to the age of employment and any labour dispute
between the Group and employees.

Supply Chain Management
Supplier management

The Group’s supply chain policy requires suppliers to
ensure compliance with all applicable environmental
regulations. Greater emphasis is placed on the
communication and relationship with the suppliers
towards sustainable development. It is intended to
reduce the environmental impact of our activities
while maintaining cost-effectiveness.

The Group also tended to maintain long term
relationship with its suppliers for ensuring stable
supply of materials or goods. Group’s suppliers are
appointed from the approved list which is reviewed
yearly. The approved list of suppliers is subjected
to product quality and environmental commitment.
Below is the diagram of the suppliers’ regional
distribution of the Group.

B.4
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Suppliers Profile 252

HERE D

& (anada &K
& USA EFH

UK ZE
@ Netherlands 77
@@ Germany 2

1,536
B.6 Product Responsibility B.6 EmE(E
Product safety and quality ERZERES
The Group puts products and services quality as rEEKELRRBEEEREE

our first priority. For our products in PRC such as
electrical component, is subjected to the Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China #
# N RLAMEE 7HE £%) which makes the Group
have a responsibility to compensate for the damage
done to the person or property if the products are
defected. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group has not received any complaint regarding
to the quality of the products. For the services
provided in Canada, we have been following the
Hotel Keepers Act such as the limitation of liability for
property of guest, liability for refusal or failure to take
charge of goods.

Also, the Group have a confidentiality practices
relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights and the Business Practices and
Consumer Protection Act for consumer data
protection and privacy policies. To protect consumer
data and privacy client information are kept in
confidential and destroy on a timely basis.
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Anti-Corruption
Anti-corruption and money laundering

The Group has complied to facilitate combatting
the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and
Terrorist Financing Act. The Group’s policies stresses
on no tolerance towards any corruption, fraud,
money laundering, bribery and extortion and have
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such
as Criminal law of the People’s Republic of China {#
# A REFEFLE) and the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic (A R HEFE KX
RNEE %), For the year ended 31 December
2016, such events have never happened in the
Group.

The Group has implemented specific measures to
detect and deter money laundering and the financing
of terrorist activities. For instance,

1. Establishing record keeping and client
identification requirements for financial services
providers.

2. Requiring the reporting of suspicious financial
transactions and of cross-border movements of
currency.

3. Establishing an agency that is responsible for
ensuring compliance with the Act.

Community Investment
Community involvement

The Group believes in giving back to the community
because contribution to society is one of the Group’s
sustainable development strategy. The Group has
contributed $3,000 annually and a total number of
30 hours annually. Regular assessment has been
made of how to give relate business activities to the
interests of community. The Group is committed to
provide career opportunities to the locals and promote
the development of the community’s economy. Also,
the Group will try to seek opportunities to work with
more charities in the future to get involved in various
community programs as our strategy to expand its
efforts in the area of charity work.
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yong

Mr. Shen Yong, aged 54, is the Chairman of the Board and
an executive director of the Company. He is a director and a
shareholder of Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra Harvest”), the
controlling shareholder of the Company, holding 51% of its
issued shares. Mr. Shen has more than 20 years of experience
in hotel and commercial properties development, as well as
investment, corporate and general management.

Mr. Shen completed a postgraduate (advanced studies) course
in laws (civil and commercial law) from the Southwest University
of Politics and Law (FERIEUEAZ) in July 2000.

Mr. Shen served as a deputy to the 1st to 3rd Chongging
Municipal People’s Congress in the PRC. Mr. Shen is currently
a member of the 4th Chongging Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the PRC
and a deputy chairman of the Chongging Municipal Federation
of Industry and Commerce (General Chamber). Mr. Shen is the
father of Mr. Shen Ke, an executive director of the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Shen Ke, aged 27, is an executive director of the Company.
He is a director and a shareholder of Ultra Harvest as to 10%
shareholding. Mr. Shen has over 8 years of experience in the
hospitality investment and management in the PRC. Mr. Shen
is the son of Mr. Shen Yong, the chairman of the Board and an
executive director of the Company

Mr. Gan Lin

Mr. Gan Lin, aged 37, is the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive director of the Company. He graduated from Beijing
Technology and Business University (formerly Beijing Institute of
Business) with a Bachelor’s degree in Logistics Management in
2001. He had served as various senior management positions
in different financial institution and multi-national corporations,
such as Guoxin Securities, Mocon Inc. and LXE Inc.. He has
extensive experience in strategic planning, corporate finance and
financial management.
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Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Mr. Hong Sang Joon, aged 48, is an executive director of the
Company. He holds positions as director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in investment,
restructuring, strategic planning, and financial management and
control.

Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor degree in Chinese language
and Chinese literature, minoring in business administration from
Yonsei University in Korea, and a master degree in business
administration from The University of Hong Kong. He is a CFA
Charterholder, Certified FRM, and U.S. CPA for public practice
licensed by Washington State Board of Accountancy in the
United States of America (the “U.S.A.”), and he is a regular
member of CFA Institute, The Hong Kong Society of Financial
Analysts, Global Association of Risk Professionals, and American
Institute of CPAs. Mr. Hong is currently the Chairman of the
Board and an executive director of Siberian Mining Group
Company Limited (Stock code: 1142) whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Huang Xiang Yang

Mr. Huang Xiang Yang, aged 62, is a non-executive director
of the Company. He is a senior partner of Intewig & Partners
and has over 30 years of experience in Chinese law, especially
economic, trade and intellectual property law. Mr. Huang is a
qualified patent attorney in Germany and China. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Huang was employed by Paul Hastings and
China Patent Agent (HK) Ltd..

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

Dr. Loke Yu, aged 67, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He has over 40 years of experience
in accounting and auditing for private and public companies,
financial consultancy and corporate management. He holds
an MBA Degree from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from the University of
South Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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He is the company secretary of Minth Group Limited, and
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of
V1 Group Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, China Beidahuang
Industry Group Holdings Limited, China Fire Safety Enterprise
Group Limited, Winfair Investment Company Limited, SCUD
Group Limited, Zhong An Real Estate Limited, Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited, Tianjin Development Holdings Limited, China
Household Holdings Limited, Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited
Lamtex Holdings Limited and Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited, all of which are companies listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Yu Lei

Mr. Yu Lei, aged 46, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. He has extensive experience in the real estate
industry and infrastructure sectors in the PRC.

Mr. Yu obtained his bachelor degree in economics and a
master degree in management from the Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (FRE & BOEAKE) in 1993 and 1999
respectively. Mr. Yu is also a qualified accountant conferred
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC and a Certified Internal
Auditor conferred by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr. Yu is currently a president assistant of Shenzhen Zhuojia
Industry Groups Co., Ltd. ORI EEEXZEBEBRAF), a
company specializing in real estate, healthcare and infrastructure
development and the provision of investment services in
the PRC. During March 2006 to August 2011, Mr. Yu was
employed as the president assistant of Great China International
Group(China) Limited (KRHZEBREEE(TE)ARAIF)
which is principally engaged in property, hotel, commercial and
infrastructure investment and development.

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann, aged 68, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He has more than 40
years of business experience in the international hospitality
industry, especially in the Greater China region.

Mr. Zimmermann is currently the president and CEO of AVA
Hospitality, a hotel management services company providing
specialized China-related hospitality management and
consultancy services and giving independent professional
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advice on design brief on hotel component to hotel investors
and operators. Mr. Zimmermann now serves as the senior vice
president of Swiss-Belhotel International, an international hotel
management company offering unique fusion of Swiss hospitality
management in all aspects of the hotel, serviced apartments and
club. He is also an associate of Global Strategic Associates, LLC,
an independent, privately-owned international advisory firm in
New York, the United States of America.

Mr. Zimmermann started his hospitality career first in Stadl
— Paura, Austria in 1962 and accepted hospitality training
in Gmunden, Austria. Before relocating to Hong Kong as a
restaurant manager in Furama Hotel in 1974, he worked in a
number of food and beverage positions across various Western
Europe countries, including England, Switzerland, Italy, Bermuda
and so on. Mr. Zimmermann continued his hotel business in
a Holiday Inn Group (now known as InterContinental Hotels
Group) for subsequent years in senior managerial and executive
positions for the development of the hotel chain throughout the
Asia Pacific region, including, Hong Kong, Thailand and the PRC;
and later on, with extensive years of experience in the hospitality
field, Mr. Zimmermann established his own hotel management
business, namely, Zenith Hotels International Limited, providing
hotel management services and technical assistance to hotel
owners, developing more than 20 hotel properties throughout
the PRC and South-East Asia. More recently, Mr. Zimmermann
served as the vice president within the ACCOR Hotel Group
China to re-position new Sofitel Luxury Hotel in the PRC; and
being the senior vice president in the New World Hotels Group to
help promote its new hotel brand in the PRC. In previous years,
Mr. Zimmermann also held consultative positions in certain
companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie

Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie, aged 43, is Chief Financial Officer
and company secretary of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Commence from University of Adelaide, Australia.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia. He has held managerial and
financial executive positions in various listed companies and
financial institutions in Hong Kong. He has more than 20 years
of experience in financial management, taxation, and corporate
finance.
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The directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing
and sale of electronic components, hotel operation, properties
development in the PRC and provision of property management
services.

The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by schedule 5 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business,
can be find in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set
out on page 8 to 15 of this annual report. This discussion forms
part of this directors' report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenue and cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2016 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Revenue
The largest customer 42%
Five largest customers in aggregate 88%

Cost of sales
The largest supplier 6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 25%

At no time during the year, have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the directors, owns
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) has a
beneficial interest in the five largest customers or suppliers of the
Group.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 77 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” on pages 78 to 79 and page 176 respectively
of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2016, calculated under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$Nil (2015: HK$Nil).

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year (2015: HK$N:il).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of the Group during the year are set out in notes
16 and 18 respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

SECURED LOANS

Particulars of secured loans of the Group as at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BONDS

Particulars of bonds of the Group as at 31 December 2016 are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL B 7

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during rEEBRAREEZE_ZE—X"F+=-A=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 28 to the LIEFE 2 BB F BN RS B HREM 28 -
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS WE TR B ST 7
Share options granted to directors BRERTES

Details of the share options granted in current year are set out EAFERHBREFBEHNGE M EREM
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements and “Share 38 WHRA [EFEWREE] PH[HERE

Option Scheme” section in this directors’ report. FHEl] —&T o

SHARE CAPITAL AND SECURITIES IN ISSUE BRARCEITES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company maintained 456,408,343 RZE—RF+-A=Z+—H AQA4%H
issued ordinary shares. 456,408,343 fx 2 1T AR o

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BE HESEEAQRLHHES

COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold AARIEMNERNBARREZE_ZE—X F
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the TZA=+T—HULEFEBERES HEED
year ended 31 December 2016. RAGHER EMES o
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Shen Yong (Chairman)

Mr. Gan Lin (Chief Executive Officer)*
Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi*

Non-executive director
Mr. Huang Xiang Yang"

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yu Lei

Ms. Zhang Cui Laneco

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)*
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

appointed as an executive director on 18 April 2016 and become
Chief Executive Officer on 30 December 2016

resigned on 30 December 2016

appointed on 30 December 2016

oo resigned on 18 April 2016

appointed on 18 April 2016

*

The biographical details of the current directors are set out under
the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Pursuant to Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Huang Xiang Yang shall hold office only until the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election. In
accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Shen Ke and Mr. Hong Sang Joon shall retire
from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi resigned as an executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company on 30 December 2016. Mr.
Kaneko Hiroshi and Ms. Zhang Cui Lan have confirmed that they
have no disagreements with the Board and nothing relating to
the affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company.
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The names of all persons who, during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date
of this report, serve/served as directors of all those companies
included as subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
are set out below:

The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year and up to the date of this report (not
including those directors listed above) were:

—  Best Dollar International Limited **
- XiongYi*

- Ko Byoung Hwan "

- Jo Jung Ho

##

resigned as a director on 15 April 2016
resigned as a director on 11 January 2017

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, the directors have entered into either
service contract or letters of appointment, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election of their directorship in the Company
as set in the Company'’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, no director of the Company, who
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board of the Company with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

RAFHFEAR, SR AFRFEERER
BEBHHE RARBBE-_T—RF+=
A=+ —HLIMBFEGEMBRERA - IR
MBARNMERBARBEEENMAAL
ZBtann

AREEARERNKEAZHBRRNESTLE
R (MEREALEIIENES) :

—  Best Dollar International Limited *
- ReEc ™

- mFEm

- Jo Jung Ho
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required
(i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company (the “Model
Code”) (collectively “disclosure interests”) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(1) Interests in Issued Shares of the Company

ECTORS

B = ,—

EERERTEASRERS - HER
WRESFZERRRXE

— =

MRZB—RF+ZA=+—H EFHERA
RETBABRARRSEAMERER (&

Er LB GEPIFEXVE) 2t - BN
SEEET  BHANREESZMPRRDIS
XVEBEE 7 K2 8 0 BR A& AN A) Ko Bt S i 2 et I
wE (BIERERES RS IRGIA BIGRUR S
BESR R 2 s MoAR) © (i) IRIFE S
K G 5D 352 R AR IR ATl B fe i 2 # s
KORR B (i) RIEA D R P ER AR _E T 3R I B 8%
THELETEITABEETESRX HNREST
A (MMEEESTAI L) g AR e MR Pz s o
KR (GhE (AT R E#ER]) 1T

(1) FrAECRITRNESR

Ordinary Shares
LER
Interest of Total

controlled Interest of number of % of total
Beneficial corporation spouse shares held issued shares
Owner REHEE BE2  HERTRG
Name of directors BEnS BEREA 2 EEER REs  BHZESL
Mr. Shen Yong BERE - 307,998,980 (L) 5,500,000 (L) 313,498,980 (L) 68.68%

(note 1) (note 2)

(1) (MF2)
20,000,000 (S) - 20,000,000 (S) 4.38%

Mr. Shen Ke BfRE 5,500,000 (L) - - 5,500,000 (L) 1.20%

Note: PE -

(1)  These ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) are (1) ZEAQRERR (KM AUltra Harvest
held by Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra Harvest”), of which Ultra Limited ([Ultra Harvest]) #A * T Ultra Harvest
Harvest is owned as to 51% by Mr. Shen Yong and 10% by Mr. BIFRBABEEREASI% KRN AERHEE 10% © H
Shen Ke respectively. Mr. Shen Yong is the father of Mr. Shen BRERBMEEZRE
Ke.

(2)  These Shares are held by Ms. Meng Qing, who is the spouse of (2) ZEROABARRFAVWTESHRELECKREBRES
Mr. Shen Yong, the executive director of the Company. Pursuant ZLEE REJFBHRBAERNEXNVBNHE2 R
to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. 3DEZIER - BEEAWRENZEROTHES
Shen Yong is deemed to be interested in those Shares. ez o

(L)  Long position L e

(S)  Short Position (S) #E
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(2) 7,7 Zz#HEE4 7] Ultra Harvest
BEITRAZES

(2) Interests in the Issued Share Capital in Ultra
Harvest, the Associated Corporation, of the
Company

% of total
issued shares
of Ultra Harvest

Nature of interest/

Total number of

{& Ultra Harvest

Capacity shares held 2RITRG

Name of directors EE#E EEMtE 5% BEZRHOHEE BECEHI

Mr. Shen Yong REBELAE Beneficial owner 51 51%
EnEBA

Mr. Wang Yugiang T E3®%c4 Beneficial owner 39 39%
EnEAA

Mr. Shen Ke FRf] S A Beneficial owner 10 10%

BEmlEBA

(3) Interests in underlying shares

The directors have been granted options under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme, details of which are set
out on the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
directors and/or the chief executive of the Company, or their
respective associates had any other discloseable interests as
required.

(3) tHEAR MR
EEREBARFZBRES SRR DBR

1% FHIRER T X [ E] —&6 -

R EXmEES
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than
the directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company were as follows:

FEREREMA LRGN RERR
MZEmRKRE

RZE—RE+-A=+—"H BARRIZE
ESESTHRAEN  THATRARTZK
B RABRRGT - EEARARBREESMAE
1619128 336 167 T B TF 2 BErc P stk B e
RABZHERFOABT ¢

Ordinary shares

ZER

No. of ordinary % of issued
shares held Nature of share capital
Substantial shareholders E=F =l interest/Capacity (EB (T
FERR ZEREE BaME 55 BARBSEE
Ultra Harvest (Note 1) 239,779,468 (L) Beneficial owner 52.54%

Ultra Harvest (FffsE 1) EnHEAA
20,000,000 (S) Beneficial owner 4.38%

EnEAA
68,219,512 (L) Interest of controlled 14.94%

Magic Blazes Limited 68,219,512 (L)

Ms. Meng Qing (Note 2) 307,998,980 (L)
me T (MiFE2)
20,000,000 (S)

5,500,000 (L)

Mr. Wang Yugiang (Note 3) 307,998,980 (L)
T E&EE (FIFE3)

20,000,000 (S)
Ms. Zhao Ying Ying (Note 4) 307,998,980 (L)

wRAL L (MEd)
20,000,000 (S)

(L)  Long position
(S)  Short position

B corporation
RiEGAE 2 s

Beneficial owner 14.94%
EmlEaA

Interest of spouse 67.48%
[ F

Interest of spouse 4.38%
[ T

Beneficial owner 1.20%

EaEAA

Interest of controlled 67.48%
corporation
SYEHEE 2

Interest of controlled 4.38%
corporation
ZYEHEE 2

Interest of spouse 67.48%
[l T
Interest of spouse 4.38%

oz e

K
iy )
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Notes:

(1)  Ultra Harvest is owned as to 51% by Mr. Shen Yong, 39% by Mr.
Wang Yugiang and 10% by Mr. Shen Ke. Pursuant to the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, each of Mr. Shen Yong,
Mr. Wang Yugiang and Mr. Shen Ke is deemed to be interested in
all the ordinary shares in which Ultra Harvest is, or is deemed to be,
interested. Mr. Shen Yong is the father of Mr. Shen Ke, both of whom
are directors of Ultra Harvest. 68,219,512 Shares are held by its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Magic Blazes Limited. As such Ultra Harvest
is deemed to be interested in the Share held by Magic Blazes Limited.

(2)  Ms. Meng Qing is the spouse of Mr. Shen Yong. Pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, she is deemed to
be interested in all the ordinary shares in which Mr. Shen Yong is, or is
deemed to be, interested.

(3)  Mr. Wang Yugiang holds 39% interest in Ultra Harvest. As such, Mr.
Wong Yugiang is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Ultra
Harvest.

(4)  Ms. Zhao Ying Ying is the spouse of Mr. Wang Yugiang. Pursuant
to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, she is
deemed to be interested in all the ordinary shares in which Mr. Wang
Yugiang is, or is deemed to be, interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no other
interests required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO had been notified to the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 3 June 2013 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite, among
other eligible participants, employees of the Group (including
directors of any member of the Group), advisers and consultants,
to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of the Company. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years ending on 2 June 2023,
after which no further options can be granted.

G

(1)  Ultra Harvest 3 BIFRER B S A& « £ Rog LA KB 1H
SHEWHABDSLI%  39% N 10% - IRIEFHHF N HEIF
BIEEXVEIE 2 M3 DEZ IR - BBEAE - TR
o i K BB S A 1R AR B Ultra Harvest A S4B
BERR AT RARYESRER BBEER
B e A 2 S0 - A A Ultra Harvest ZE 5
68,219,512 &% 1n B H 2 &K1 EB A &) Magic Blazes
Limited ¥ ° # 1 Ultra Harvest #48 /&7 Magic
BlazesLimited #7482 I P #EH s o

2) BERLTBRBEEZEB - REZFSLHER
§|J%XV*B%2&3“*BZ &30 - R AREEL
ERBESRAEERE AT RRT A EE -

(3) I EI®ILAHEA Ultra Harvest 390% A2k » I
T R385 A 4578 A7 UltraHarvest B8 2 A& (D T
aRERS o

(4) BERLEIRTEWALZEMD  REESLY
BARBIFEXVEBLE 2 R 3D E 2 KK - HWRBNE
FREEFAIRAEE RS 2 EBBAE
Al -

fREXHBEEIN RZF—-—RF+A
TR AAFLEEEL LR ERER K
B S MR IRDIE 336 A THRT 2 ELMA
P

B E

ARRBRZTB—=FRNA=ZARNBRETE
(BT E]) - ARAREFERERIRR (2
REMAER2EE) ARERE (BREAKE

NERMKERRZESR) - BRNMBAARLE
MIERE 224 - URBEAR THxT" ° BINEE
BHEAEER A ARE— HxK/A A - B
BEAEBERH R TE BEE-T - =FKA

—Hik- EfﬁTT&ﬁ%ﬁﬁl\ﬁ%Hﬂé °




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ¢ —ZF—/XF i

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BTG

Particulars of the movement of the options held by each of
the directors and, the employees of the Company in aggregate
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2016, were as follows:

RZB-—RE+_A=+T—HILFE  REHE
BEFERTARRSESTRER ZBREE
BEIEHIT

Number of outstanding share options

HATEZEREHA
Exercise
price
per share Held at Granted Exercised Lapsed Held at
SREA 1 January 2016 during during during 31 December 2016
Category of Date of Exercise THE R-IE-AE the year the year theyear RZB-AE
participants grant period HKS -B-8 RAEE REEE RAEE +-B=1-H
KEA RTAH ] BT <22} o i d XX 2}
Directors of the Company
AAFES
Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi (note 1)~ 31.8.2015 1.9.2018-30.8.2025 141 3218939 - - (3,278,939) -
SFEEE (1)
31.82016 1.9.2018-30.8.2025 137 - 3278939 - (3,278939) -
Total
a4 3278939 3278939 - (6,557,878) -
Note: Bi3E -

(1)  Mr Kaneko Hiroshi resigned as an executive Director of the Company
on 30 December 2016 and his 6,557,878 share options were lapsed
on the same date.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, a total
of 3,278,939 and 3,278,939 options respectively were granted
to a director and the estimated fair values of the options granted
on the grant dates were HK$ 2,922,000 and HK$2,259,000,
respectively.

(1) &FHEER-"F—AF+-A=+BREIE
;ﬂﬂﬁ§$'ﬁ&%ZW8ﬁ%%%E%E—%
2 -

REBEE_E—RER-_E—RHF+_A=+—
HIEFE  DRlRAEEHRTEA £3,2789391%
}32789039 M EMRE  WEREERL ZE
BREGHFTRREED R 52,922,000 T &
2,259,000/ 7T °
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The fair value was calculated using the Binomial model. The

inputs into the model were as follows:

AN

AhBEVEA_EABHNSE - %
ABIBIT

For the year ended

31 December 2016
BE-ZT—KF
+TZRA=+—BLFE

Grant date share price BREBEZKE HK$1.378 T
Exercise price 1T (B HK$1.378 T
Expected volatility TEHRR 18 75.154%
Option life HE P S U 10 years &
Dividend yield IR E & 0%
Risk-free interest rate L P ) 0.927%
Early exercise multiple for director ~ EE 2 12RI{TE(EE 2.8
For the year ended

31 December 2015

HE-ZT—RF

+-A=+—HULFE

Grant date share price BBz RE HK$1.41 87T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$1.41787T
Expected volatility TE AR i@ 66.94%
Option life HE M S U 10 years
Dividend yield IR EE 5.26%
Risk-free interest rate f [ i F) 1.799%
Early exercise multiple for director ~ EE 2 12RI{TE(5E 2.8

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of

AT

“EABUNEAREERRELAAEE-

B2

BREBREZ A RBEMERZZHRBRE
REZEZREEH - 2ERBRERZE BB A
BB DA EERE -

the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may result
in changes in the fair value of the options.

Other than disclosed above, no other share options had been Br ESUIREESN  MAFE - SER T HEER
granted during the year. o

RZZB-—RE+_A=+—H CEERETS
TORBARITRE Z ERHE -

As at 31 December 2016, there was no outstanding share
options under the Share Option Scheme.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the directors
confirmed that the Company has maintained the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year
and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT'S
ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” and note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Shen Yong, the Chairman of the
Company was also the director and controlling shareholder of
Chongging Forebase Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd.,
which together with its subsidiaries, are engaged in hotel real
estate development business in the PRC.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors and his/her respective associates had interests in the
businesses which competes or was likely to compete, whether
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Mr. Shen
Yong has undertaken to the Company that for so long as he
remains as a Director or a controlling Shareholder, all enquiries
and actual or potential business opportunities received by him
(and/or his associates) in relation to hotel real estate business (the
“Business Opportunities”) shall be referred to the Company on a
timely basis and the Business Opportunities must be first offered
or made available to the Group.

There has been no material change in directors’ interests in any
competing business subsequent to 31 December 2016.

B NREFRE

ERAHMBCERRBESRM  EFHR
RAFEARBEAFERSBEHA/L AR

AIERANZFRE -

HEANAXRBEEARENEER
5 hEREHER

BRI [EERS ] —fi R e M HHmaR M 39
O MERHARFEAERFSRE - AT SHE
EAMERRMETEARNARETERRHERE
BEBEAEGEZEARS ~ HhasBH o

EERHEFRUEHZER

RZB—RF+ZA=+—H ' ARFXFEHR
BREREEHREER (5E) ARARIZES
RIERR - A m@ERENE QR B
FBEHERMEE -

BREXEEEN R-T—RF+_A=1—
B HEEERTAEBMBEATRERAEER
SEEXBHF (MRBERXEE) NEBHHESR
- ABREMARRER  RRETES
RIERRBCREIRE - R (R HEBEAL) FE
[EHEXBMBINMAEL R R ER KA R
# (T ]) ARREBNEARR  BREBKA
EEHRENSE S

RoZ—RE+-A=+—H% BEREF
EB 2R EEMERES -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions

On 30 October 2015, the Company entered into an agreement
with Ultra Harvest. Pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to purchase, and Ultra Harvest has
conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of
Capital Knight Limited and its subsidiaries, at a consideration
of HK$146,000,000. The consideration was satisfied by way
of allotment and issuance of the Consideration Shares, being
71,219,512 new Shares, by the Company to Ultra Harvest, at an
issue price of HK$2.05 per Consideration Share on Completion
pursuant to the Agreement. The transaction was completed
on 27 January 2016, the fair value of Consideration Share
issued was HK$1.75 per Consideration Share, amounted to
approximately HK$124,635,000.

Continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Company entered into a Framework
Agreement with Mr. Shen Yong, the Chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and a beneficial owner of 51% equity
interest in Ultra Harvest, which constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “connected transactions”) as defined in the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the Group agreed to
provide the Property Management Services to certain premises
owned by corporations controlled by Mr. Shen Yong including
offices, residential apartments and car parking spaces for a term
of three years commencing from the Effective Date and ending
on the earlier of (i) 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive); or
(i) the date the owners’ committee of such premises has been
formed (both days inclusive). During the year, service fee of
Property Management Services amounted to RMB6,725,000
(equivalent to HK$7,632,000) was charged to corporations
controlled by Mr. Shen Yong.

BEEH
FRW BT RFEAMAD A HRAEFE

EEDEB BB RITHER

FRERS

RAER

R—_E—RF+A=Z+H" $“7§51UItra
Harvest 3] 32 — 17 1#:% o IBRIEZHE - AR

BRHRZEREE - mUlta HarvestEﬁﬂ%ﬁF@
& £ Capital Knight Limited R B AR Z &2
B BT A - 1E{E 146,000,000 7T - K&
TIARRBIRBEZHER T FIZSRAER
19 2.057% 7T 2 3 17 {& [A Ultra Harvest it % & 2%
TRERG (AN71, 219 512H§%ﬁﬁ§ n) ZHAX
e RERGER-ZZE—R"F-—AZTLERRE
K FTBETRERGZAABEASRRER
3 1.757%8 70 #{E#) 124,635,000/ T °

t

FFERAER

FR AR ﬂ;ﬁi%$A3‘—:F%$ﬂﬁ%$$%%
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MEBLEEMEARMY Bz YEETEREE
A ARE6,7250007T (HH% MR 47,632,000
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As all of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) in respect of the annual caps
for the Framework Agreement exceed 0.1% but are less than
5%, the connected transactions are subject to announcement
and reporting requirements but is exempt from circular and
the Independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
the Listing Rules. The connected transactions up to the limit
specified in the annual cap amount for each of the financial
years ended/ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
are HK$13,900,000, HK$12,500,000, and HK$12,400,000
respectively.

The connected transactions were entered in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the respective companies after
due negotiations on an arm’s length basis with reference to the
prevailing market conditions.

Announcements were published regarding the connected
transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Company
confirms that it has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as
they are applicable.

All Independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the connected transactions and confirmed that the
connected transactions are entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the above continuing connected transactions. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Saved as disclosed above, details of the material related
party transactions during the year are set in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MR RIERRZFELRME BRAEDHL
Z(EERLEMRAUFIL4AE) BiB01%1E
DIR5% - HRE ETRA - BEXSEEST
NEREBERRTE - MR EAR B K B AR
HEZRTE - BEXFRBEZZT—F - =F
—+ER - E-N\E+-_A=+—HILTERE
EEFHFE LR % 5 A13,900,000% T «
12,500,000 77T & 12,400,000 77T °
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes participated by the Group are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the year under
review. The Company has also taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance cover to indemnify the Directors for
liabilities that may arise out of corporate activities of the Group.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, no claims were made
against the Directors.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 185 of
this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was first appointed as
the auditor of the Company in 2016 upon the resignation of
ShingWing (HK) CPA Limited.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the
appointment of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Shen Yong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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~b Grant Thornton
- HE

To the members of Forebase International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Forebase International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 184, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HREEBRERERARAKRR
(REEBZMAILE)FRAR])
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([TEEFBHREER ) EEMAFHKRKR &
SER_ZE-—RFT_A=+—BNEKREHH
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

EELRSEIR

FAREZSHSREBERMANEXHE - ARY
ARG AV BRRNERRABEENFIR - &
LEBFEERMBCZERBGAMHREAMEH
HESRARTREREN  BRMATHEL
FHEHERNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5 BRI ZRE

The Key Audit Matter
BREEXEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade
receivables of HK$69,494,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$10,956,000. The impairment
of trade receivables is made based on assessment of
the recoverability of receivables due from customers.
When determining whether a trade receivable is
collectable, significant management judgement is
involved. Management considered various factors which
included the ageing analysis of the balances, locations
of customers, existence of disputes, recent historical
payment patterns and any other available information
concerning the creditworthiness of customers.
RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H  BESENBEZEKE
M A69,494,000%8 7T + HIBR R BRHEE 10,956,000 8 7T °
B 5 I W AR RORE TH 1R 15 FE Y = P AR SR A AT Ug B M ST
HRET HETEHREEERESAIWER - P RE
EZEREHE - EEECERSEAEX  BEARNER
RO BPUE  FEFHE SO NFER AR
P EENEMEMAIAER -

Please refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies as set out on note
3.12.
B2V TBMERM T2 A RME3 12ME ST
R o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMEFZT AR R ERRESER

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade

receivables included the following:
B E SRR AT IO & SR EAZIR P B4

o Checking the correctness of the ageing analysis by
customer on a sample basis.

DT SURE R TP 2 BA IR 0 1T RN -

° Evaluating the financial strength of customers with
significant overdue balances by considering cash
collection performance against historical trends and
the level of allowance for doubtful debts over time.
LEETRE B &R —BRERAARREHEKTAZ RS
WEIFRE - M EEAEREHRRENETP T
BMIEES -

° Reviewing the collections subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, with focus on long outstanding
debts and debts which are past due but not
impaired.

BERERARENOBER - ERETIRARER
B REBRERBESRS -
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment

VI3 - BB R REZRE

The Key Audit Matter
BREEXEE

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment of the Group was
HK$103,649,000.

RZEBE-—RE+TZA=1+—0  BESENYWZE - #:H
N 554 2 BR B & 103,649,000 77T ©

Please refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies as set out on note
3.5

FB2MRE M EREM T 16 AR FE3 5SS 5T

e

Eﬁo

Management carries out an impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment on an annual basis. The
impairment assessment requires evaluation as to whether
any impairment indicators existed in the property, plant
and equipment by reference to the profitability of the
relevant cash-generating units (“CGUSs”).
EEEGFHME MR LREETRETE - BER
HRE2REBAReEAEG ((ReELSNL]) MR
Feeh - FHEWME  BBLRRERLTFLORETR °

Where there are indicators, management is required to
assess the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment with reference to valuation performed by the
independent professional external valuers using the sales
comparison method. The valuation of property, plant
and equipment requires the application of significant
judgement and estimation in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs. The
valuation is sensitive to underlying assumptions applied
by the valuers such as market comparable used which
may have a significant impact to the valuation.
WFERETR @ BEEAZRBE T EXINGERE
FASH & LT VA ETT R B R AT AE Y 3 - BB kB
AIRE SR - W3 - MR LRENGERETERAG
MGt AT BERNESHERE - TERABEERR
REBATEERNEARZE - ZMELHGEMERANNE
FRE - PlInAIse B EEE SR ERN TS A LLRE
BEU -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMEFZT AR R ERRESER

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
property, plant and equipment included the following:

BAIRHEYR - ez B ORENEZEF B

° Assessing the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external valuers,
and the scope of their work.

FHEE S EEIMB AR B - Be ) REEMEA
K%z T1EEE -

° Assessing the valuation methodology.

AHEBES X -

° Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and estimates used against general
market practice.
it —miS B EMAN E2/ZREFTHE
Bt o
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Business combinations and impairment of intangible assets

EBRAOHRBREE ZRE

The Key Audit Matter
BREEXEE

In January 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Capital Knight Limited (“Capital Knight”)
and its subsidiaries (“Capital Knight Group”) from
Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra Harvest”), the ultimate
holding company. Capital Knight acquired the property
management business from independent third parties at
a total cash consideration of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$6,232,000) on 24 July 2015.

RZE-—RE—H BESEHRA&ZAEERRFULA
Harvest Limited([Ultra Harvest ) f&Capital Knight
Limited ([ Capital Knight|) & E &2 7] ([Capital Knight
£ [# ) 100 % M #E - Capital Knight ® ZZ — R F + A
—+m A NARE AR 5,000,000 7T (HHE R 6,232,000
BIT) MBRERBLE =T REMEETIEER

The basis of presentation and the accounting policies are

more fully explained in notes 2 and 3.3 respectively.
ZHEEREHBESRIRKMTE2 K33 EHEREAE

;)lT_o

Given that the Company and Capital Knight are under
common control of Ultra Harvest and Mr. Shen Yong, the
controlling shareholder, before and after the acquisition of
Capital Knight Group, the acquisition was accounted for
as a business combination under common control. Please
refer to note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
8 A TE W BB Capital Knight5£ @ RT#& © & 2 &) X Capital
Knight¥ Ultra Harvest &1 i% A% 52 FR B8 Jo AE By L[R5 41 -
HUB AW B AL RIE G T EB S AR - F284i55
BITERMTE33 ©

As a result of the acquisition of the property management
business by Capital Knight that the Group accounted
for as business combination under common control, the
Group recognised certain intangible assets. We focused
on this area because accounting for the acquisition
requires identification and valuation of intangible assets
and the allocation of purchase price to the assets and
liabilities acquired, which involves judgements and
assumptions. Management engaged an independent
professional external expert to value significant
tangible and intangible assets acquired in the business
combination.

BB ARG T # E S 0 Capital Knight i
MEEBEBAR  WHRRETEREEE - HMETT
FHE AARENEN ST RERTEHRTEAELETE
ERMEE TAAKENEERBBEIEEERE - EF
B R A R RER - BIRER G — B BEIMNIER - &
HREBaMHKKBENERB LBV EE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMEFZT AR R ERRESER

Our procedures in relation to key assumptions made by
management in accounting for the acquisition included
the following:

B ERERSEREEL 2 8t REMANE 2R
REEAREF R

° Assessing the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external expert and
the scope of his work.

FHEE BERIMNBERNER - se N RFE MUK
HIE#HE -

° Assessing the valuation methodology, the
identification and valuation of tangible and
intangible assets and the allocation of purchase
price to the assets and liabilities acquired.
FHEEERE - BRI EEMNBILEENETE &k
BEARABEBNEENBESKNBERE -

° Assessing the appropriateness and valuation of the
identified intangible assets.

AHAEPTEE METEEMEE MR EE

° Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions,
in particular those relating to the ten-year period
cash flow forecasts, the growth rates and the
discount rates, based on our knowledge of the
business and industry.
BERFHEBRITEN TR  HEEERENE
B FRRETFHASRE|AREIERER
PR ERERRE
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Business combinations and impairment of intangible assets

EBRAOHRBREE ZRE

The Key Audit Matter
BREEXEE

The carrying amounts of intangible assets amounted to
HK$39,153,000 as at 31 December 2016. Management
reviews the carrying amounts of intangible assets annually
or more frequently when impairment indicators are
present

RZE-—RE+TZA=+—H BEEENREER
39,153,000 87T - EHRBETRE - EERETFHE
A EMREEETT —RSA L8R -

Please refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies as set out on note
3.10.
uﬁ £ F)ﬁﬁ‘
BUR °

B EHRRM T I8 A MM ES. 10N S

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units
(“CGU") to which the intangible assets allocated to
was determined based on value-in-use calculations
using future cash flow projections. The future cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a ten-year period and at a discount
rate of 15.6% per annum. The cash flows beyond three-
year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 0%.
The key assumptions are based on the management’s
expectation of market development.
SEERTVEENRSESAEN ((ReEELEM]) B
AREl S EIRBERARRR S RERAGTENERE
BETE  HENEREIENTKEAEELHRRIRER
ERARHATF WREXREF156% - BBE=FMNR
EREBNOYMIBREREE - ZEXTEBRNDERERE
BEmi5ERNTEL -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMEFZT AR R ERRESER

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the Group’s intangible assets included the

following:
BMEEREN BEEEELEEMNRENGIEBERE
FrEiaE -

° Assessing the valuation methodology adopted by
management.

AHAEEEERANGETE -

° Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions,
in particular those relating to the ten-year period
cash flow forecasts, the growth rates and the
discount rates, based on our knowledge of the
business and industry.
BRIBRFIHEBRITEN TR FFHEE2RENE
B FRRETFHRAESREEA - BRERIT
WEFHANRR -

o Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets.

AR X FEENEASE (FlLENTESE) -
WERZERENSIEIE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Hitn & #

EEEESTYHHEMENER - HBEN B
FHROZHEH  ETBEFEMBHRR LK
IR BRED IR S

B GEAVBREANBERALTIREEME
o BAT T HEMEMBERTATANER

A
4 af ©

EHRMEZGAMBHREE > RANET R
HEEMER  THENHBETEEHEMENES
HGRAMBERRARMNEZERTATEHDN
BRBEAERE - HUFAEAFHERRL -

AEREMEATZ I HRABSEMLER
BEASERRM - ROBAREZETE - HES
| BPPRBEMEERTERS °

EEHGRAMBHRRMEE

EREESAARREBEE LG AERMN
FREMBRE LR REBEB R BIGRDIRARERE
HEVBRRACKEAVMBRRIELEEMA
TR MEBEERSRESRAM BRI
WBEH)NERIES] - ARER A MWK N FEH
RARFF ek ERER T BB A EAEERERAL

ERBEEVBHRRE  EFRETE &
BFFEL LR WHEERIBR TR RS
BREBBANER  URERHELLERS
it RIFEFAEEL BEEEBEAFLR
2 SREEMERNERTE -

EXREZESWPRTEEE &%
B RERT

]

i)




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ¢ —ZF—/XF i

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
W o W

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 March 2017

Lin Ching Yee Daniel
Practising Certificate No.: P02771
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L.OSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R R R &

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BRE FET FAT
(Restated)
(#EE7)
Continuing operations BFEEEER
Revenue & 6 310,147 413,259
Cost of sales SHER AR (312,998) (401,765)
Gross (loss)/profit (£8) EF (2,851) 11,494
Other income HMA 8 12,354 46,460
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEEX (10,163) (10,398)
Administrative expenses ITEFASX (35,781) (33,401)
Research and development expenses e (2,341) (5,664)
Other operating expenses Hge g (15,816) (13,971)
Finance costs A& A 9 (17,902) (17,822)
Loss before income tax MRETSBAIE R 10 (72,500) (23,302)
Income tax expenses FrS iz 13 (9,720) (5,985)
Loss from continuing operations BEKEEREBR (82,220) (29,287)
Discontinued operation BRIEREEK
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operation B 4% | 4844 2 7% 355 5]
(B518) 34 56,146 (3,768)
Loss for the year AEERE (26,074) (33,055)
Other comprehensive expense Hitt2mEAX
Items that may be reclassified R A= )
subsequently to profit or loss: 1Bz5mIEHE -
— Exchange differences on translation of - 2 EFINHB AT 2
financial statements of overseas Mg mERZELERE
subsidiaries (4,167) (23,336)
Reclassification adjustments for ZEHEEBARFEEIEBRZ
the cumulative loss transferred to BB
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences released upon - HEMBRARISIEE S
disposal of subsidiaries ZREE 34 319 -
Other comprehensive expense for the year ANEEH 2 HEY (3,848) (23,337)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZXEE 2 HBA XA %E (29,922) (56,391)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L.OSS
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AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-T—

fA R R 2w
For the year ended 31 December 2016
ANFE+ZA=+—HALFE

2016 2015
—EB-REF —T-hF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B EE FExT FHET
(Restated)
(&e=75)
(Loss)/Earnings per share BgR (58) BA 15
Basic AR
— from continuing operations - FHEE TS OB
(in HK cents) (20.23) (8.93)
— from discontinued operation - BARIEEEE TS GBI
(in HK cents) 13.81 (1.15)
Diluted e
— from continuing operations — BESEER OB
(in HK cents) (20.23) (8.93)
— from discontinued operation - AR IR TS GBL)
(in HK cents) 13.81 (1.15)

The notes on pages 82 to 184 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

HNERE 184 BT AR EERA M ISR
REVAERER Y
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CONSOLIDATED STATE\/IENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R RIS

As at 31 December 2016
R-ZE—R"F+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—-RF —FH4F
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5T FExT FHETT
(Restated)
(&&5&E75))
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R NERE 16 103,649 114,370
Club memberships gMeE 17 600 600
Intangible assets mILEE 18 39,153 43,715
Deposits for purchase of property, EEYZE  HER
plant and equipment HEIES - 206
143,402 158,891
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 32,048 31,446
Properties under development BRPYE 21 - 134,291
Trade and other receivables E 5 N EMEIWRER 22 88,379 146,903
Restricted bank deposits R HIRITIER 23 3,090 11,768
Short-term bank deposit with original REEEBE=EA 2
maturity more than three months FEHIRTTIE K 23 1,000 1,000
Bank balances and cash IRITHESR AR S 23 52,795 49,443
177,312 374,851
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables %%&E{ﬁf&“ﬁﬁﬁ% 24 148,961 213,165
Amounts due to related companies FET AR 2 A 25 3,974 100,714
Current taxation BIHARH IR 6,214 3,067
Obligation under finance leases REBEEE 27 156 148
Secured loans BIHEK 31 1,933 62,006
161,238 379,100
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (A FE 16,074 (4,249)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRRBEE 159,476 154,642
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CONSOLIDATED STATE\’IENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

o B R &
As at 31 December 2016
R-ZE—R"F+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—-RF —FH4F
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5T FExT FHETT
(Restated)
(&&5&E75))

Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital R AN 28 292,462 99,076
Reserves HE 29 (286,949) (133,6206)

Total equity attributable to EARERRR

equity shareholders of the Company iR 5,513 (34,550)

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Amount due to a director JEN—RESHIA 26 68,325 142,096
Obligation under finance leases MEREET 27 - 156
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE&E 30 7,673 6,940
Secured loans HIFEFK 31 37,965 -
Bonds B 32 40,000 40,000
153,963 189,192
159,476 154,642

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

29 March 2017.

Shen Yong
Director

Gan Lin
Director

The notes on pages 82 to 184 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2 N RE 2L &
mEEREE X
For the year ended 31 December 2016

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHE-Z—RFE+-_A=1+—BILFE
Attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
KRR ERR RN
Share
Share Merger  Contribution Statutory options Exchange  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RA AMREE  LERE  iTERE ERERE  ERBE  ZHEE ek
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FiET TR FiEn T TiEn Tisn T T
(note 29(a))  (note 29(b))  (note 29(c))  (note 29(d))  (note 29(e))
(MaE290)  (MEE20b)  (FiEE29(c)) (M 29(d))  (PF&E29(e))
(Restated - (Restated -
note 3.3) note 3.3)
(gE5 -  (LE5-
M#33)  ME33)
Balance as at 1 January 2015 RZE—14F
(previously stated) —A—Afks
(w0 275)) 99,076 (8,195) 8478 10,215 829 (13,269) (76,046) 21,088
Loss for the year KEEBE
(previously stated) (AT 25) - - - - - - (77,656) (77,656)
Other comprehensive expense FEEEMEARY
for the year
— Exchange differences on - BEEINIB AN
translation of financial HBRRNES
statements of overseas 1 (a1 23)
subsidiaries (previously
stated) - - - - - (22,721) - (22,721)
Total comprehensive expense TEERERYEE
for the year (previous stated) (WR125)) - - - - - @7)  (7765%)  (100,377)
Impact of common control HEEHEBAG
business combination g2 (1133
(note 3.3) - - - - - (615) 44601 43986
Total comprehensive expense AEERENY
for the year (restated) 185 (L E51) - - - - - (23336) (33055  (56,391)
Transactions with owners: HEEANRS
Appropriation to statutory reserve AR TIETEHE - - - 1,303 - - (1,303) -
Recognition of equity-settled ARELER
share-based payment expenses  BANZELLS
fransactions (note 38) (M338) - - - - 753 - - 753
Lapse of share options granted NI MBS IR
by the Company (note 38) Fan (FizE38) - - - - (1,322 - 1322 -
- - - 1,303 (569) - 19 753
Balance as at 31 December 2015 W-Z—FR%F
(restated) FZA=T—AK
e (RE7) 99,076 (8,195) 8478 11,518 260 (36,605)  (109,082) (34,550)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R M R B KR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE
Attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
KRRERRRER
Share
Share Merger  Contribution Statutory options ~ Exchange Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BA  AfHEE  HERE  iTRE BRERE  ERfE  2HEE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn THER TR TiEn TR TR TiEn
(note 29(a))  (note 29(h)) (note 29(c)) (note 29(d))  (note 29(e))
(MaE29(a) (P¥&E29(b) (KiEF29(c) (MizE29(d)) (FiH&E29(e)
(Restated - (Restated -
note 3.3) note 3.3)
(BEY - (BE5-
Wat3.3)  MEE3.3)
Balance as at 1 January 2016 RZE—REF
—A—BR&ER 99,076 (8,195) 8,478 11,518 260 (36,605)  (109,082)  (34,550)
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (26,074)  (26,074)
Other comprehensive expense TEEEMZAAY
for the year
— Exchange differences on - BEENIBATIN
translation of financial SRR
statements of overseas EREE
subsidiaries - - - - - (4,167) - (4,167)
— Exchange differences released - HERBARE
upon disposal of subsidiaries BENZEE - - - - - 319 - 319
- - - - - (3,848) - (3,848)
Total comprehensive expense TEERERYRE
for the year - - - - - (3,848) (26,074) (29,922)
Transactions with owners: BREEANRS
Issue of shares a’é‘ﬁ%ﬁ 68,751 - - - - - - 68,751
Appropriation to statutory reserve 2k FIEEEE - - - 1,144 - - (1,144) -
Recognition of equity-settled BRNRELER
share-based payment expenses  [RIVAFERR S
transactions (note 38) (Fiz38) - - - - 1,234 - - 1,234
Impact of common control HEZHEHEHH
business combination (note 33) &2 (I333) 124,635  (124,635) - - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT - 8,195 - - - - (8,195) -
Lapse of share options granted AR A HEERRIE
by the Company (note 38) K (HzE38) - - - - (1,494) - 1,494 -
193,386  (116,440) - 1,144 (260) - (7,845) 69,985
Balance as at 31 December 2016 R=Z—F
+ZA=+—HR
e 292,462  (124,635) 8,478 12,662 - (40,453)  (143,001) 5,513
The notes on pages 82 to 184 are an integral part of these HRERLEI1SABEMM TN BZEiRE MR

consolidated financial statements.

REVARRER D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS

AR ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE
2016 2015
—E—ARE —T—HF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BRE FHExT FET
(Restated
- note 3.3)
(&5
- MFFE3.3)

Operating activities KETE
Loss before income tax from continuing & B35 4E K & 155

operations TSR 18 (72,500) (23,302)
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income FEMA 8 (126) (261)
Finance costs BB AN 9 17,902 17,822
Depreciation e 10 9,684 10,241
Amortisation e 10 4,562 1,901
Provision for doubtful debts RERE 10 277 27
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts RORBE S 5

recognised on trade receivables 10 (189) (111)
Allowance for inventories FERHE 10 900 4,341
Reversal of allowance for inventories TFE R B 10 (1,199) (1,703)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - ek

plant and equipment Bz W 8 (585) (7)
Share-based payment expenses PARRD A B 10 1,234 753
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MWBAR W= - (110)
Bargain purchase gain arising ¥ AHEENZREBERE

on business combination 33 - (39,056)
Gain on amount due to a director stated ~ E AR BEZF|EN—F

at fair value upon initial recognition EEFE VT ERKE 8 (6,688) (5,646)
Currency exchange translation HNE 5 #R 552 (1,052)
Operating cash flows before movements — ZiEE&E 4 H BRI L

in working capital Bene (46,176) (36,163)
Increase in inventories FEEm (303) (6,510)
Increase in properties under development Z%E A2 1L 1 - (40,089)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5N E M ERERR

other receivables wA () 53,881 (26,346)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 NEMERNIER

other payables CRiZ) (24,132) 28,150
Decrease in amounts due to FE{ FdES A R RIER

related companies - (1,050)
Cash used in operations PR g =s = (16,730) (82,008)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BT B ST (5,840) (5,400)
Net cash used in operating activities ARE R 2 B FRE (22,570) (87,408)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS

AR ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE
2016 2015
—RE —E—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B5E FHET TFHETT
(Restated
—note 3.3)
(sg=75
- Bi#3E3.3)
Investing activities RETE
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME « MBENREATEIUE
plant and equipment 5,449 463
Interest received BUFE 126 261
Decrease in deposits for purchase of BEWE  HWERE
property, plant and equipment EIR TR 206 126
Decrease in restricted bank deposits SRR &R TR A 8,678 434
Cash outflow through acquisition of W EEBT B A RIREHY
subsidiaries bz ripa 33 - (5,547)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal of HEW B AR Z FIHEE
subsidiaries A CGRd) 34 49,570 (86)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  HWELRE
equipment (2,082) (24,330)
Net cash from/(used in) REEBFTE (BTA)
investing activities D EEE 61,947 (28,679)
Financing activities mEEE
Advance from related companies E%Eﬁ%@ﬁiﬂ,‘a 995 44 800
Advance from unrelated companies JERGEE N T) - 36,001
Proceeds from secured loans KHET Fﬁ?%?g’( 41,903 -
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BT EAEEHRIAE 67,000 20,000
Repayment of obligation under 15@@&%3@%%1{
finance leases (148) (159)
(Repayment to)/advance from a director (EE—ZEF2%H)
—RBE I (129,165) 88,103
Interest paid SENEAES] (17,902) (15,560)
Repayment of secured loans ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁm (186) (38,761)
Net cash (used in)/from BEEE (BTH).
financing activities B8 2R E5E (37,503) 134,424
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents &R R EZEY 2 L INFEHE 1,874 18,337
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January A—A— A2 RIESZEY 49,443 31,921
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes R 7B 1,478 (815)
Cash and cash equivalents R+tZA=+—HZzEHEK
as at 31 December, represented by HeEEY  PRITESRR
bank balances and cash B 52,795 49,443
The notes on pages 82 to 184 are an integral part of these HNERE I BEMKI TN AZSEE TR

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hi A B AR WA

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

GENERAL

Forebase International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in section headed
“Corporate Information and Shareholders’ Calender” of
this annual report. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company is controlled by Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra
Harvest”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liability, which is also
the ultimate holding company of the Company and Mr.
Shen Yong, the Chairman of the Company, is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company
and the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
the manufacturing and sale of electronic components,
hotel operation, property management and properties
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The Group has discontinued its properties development
business during the year.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"). For the purposes of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the Group adopted HK$
as its presentation currency as its shares are listed in Hong
Kong.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In October 2015, the Group had entered into an acquisition
agreement with Ultra Harvest to acquire 100% equity
interest of Capital Knight Limited (“Capital Knight”) and
its subsidiaries (“Capital Knight Group”) by allotting and
issuing 71,219,512 new ordinary shares of the Company.
The acquisition was completed on 27 January 2016.
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Pl) EIRET -

KNABEERAE  ANRXaE A Ultra Harvest
Limited ([Ultra Harvest]) REBRE 22
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#l - Ultra Harvest I & R R &) 2 B 4235 i%
A MARBEFERBLERBARAT
L EAIERR TS o

RABRAREEBR AR NAE REK B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hi A B AR WA

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Capital Knight acquired 100% equity interest of Nuofute
Property Management Co., Ltd.* EEEEHYEE
BABE AT (“Nuofute Property Management”) from
independent third parties through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Chongging Wanwei Trading Development Co.,
Ltd* EEREEESHERER AR (“Chongging Wanwei”)
at a total cash consideration of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$6,232,000) on 24 July 2015. Nuofute Property
Management is principally engaged in the provision of
property management services.

The Group and Capital Knight Group are under the
common control of Ultra Harvest and Mr. Shen Yong,
the controlling shareholder, both before and after this
acquisition, the directors consider the acquisition of Capital
Knight Group is a business combination under common
control. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
of the Group has been prepared on the basis as if the
Company had always been the holding company of Capital
Knight Group during the year ended 31 December 2015
using the principles of merger accounting in accordance
with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combination” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) as set
out in note 3 below.

As a result of the above, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows including the results
and cash flows of the companies comprising the Group
have been prepared as if the current group structure had
been in existence during the year ended 31 December
2015 or since the date the Company gains control or
their respective dates of incorporation or establishment
up to 31 December 2015. The consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group as at 1 January 2016 have
been restated to present the assets and liabilities of the
companies comprising the Group as if the current group
structure had been in existence. The details of the merger
accounting restatement are set out in note 33.

* For identification purpose only.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FTEEFBRBE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation 3.1 IWHEEE

These annual consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new and amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 4. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FTEEMBRME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation 3.2 RZEESE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over
the entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity
(held by the Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 3.2 ZREHRE (&)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e., reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
(“HKAS 39”) or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss (see note 3.13) unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments. Cost
also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the end of the reporting period.
All dividends whether received out of the investee’s
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company’s profit or loss.

i AN 2 B 2K 25 Y — PRI P /B & B 2 #2 5
% AR HERNIERTIATIRIEA
MEZERFE  (VFBRREZ2A
BEMMEAREEEANEENR
Mo RMMBBAREMZEE (B
mEE) RaEREAIHERERZ
BREME - WTB AR ZETEERE
EE2BEXRABEERE - MAERERET
B REMEmR SR N R
Z5t - RIR AR A 2 W am R K
RERRFZ 2 RRE BN R
EERHERBEE 2T AARK (A
EN O BE RS ERERERER
M) o MAREEDIEE BIDRERH
MEARMNEMNREAAEE  BIR
ERABGEEIR [E/MTA
ERME] ([BEETERIE39
1) - AR R E R AR S YIX
BRO DR EE - sk (WER) B
LRBHAERRNREN L HER
DN

ARAZHBRREKRS - KRB
AR AR EBEEBENIR (R
3.13) RIFZMBRARAFKIEFE
HERNHEERA - RABREER
JRIGEVIRE A ©

B ARl RAARARRIRRE R
Z B W R WAL B IR - PTE IS
(IR E T WA IR
HE I AR EER) AN R AR s R

.
Ao




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ¢ —ZF—/XF i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
hr BB AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 3.2 ZREHRE (&)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value on the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase
gain.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 3.2 ZREHRE (&)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration the Group transfers
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. Measurement period does not exceed one year
from the acquisition date. The subsequent accounting
for changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounting for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as a financial liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value with corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity before the acquisition
date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group
obtains control over the acquiree.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations ( Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.

Merger accounting for business
combination involving entities under
common control

Merger accounting method stipulated under Hong
Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations” is used to account
for acquisitions of businesses under common control
before and after the acquisitions. The difference
between fair value of acquisition consideration and
carrying amount of net assets acquired is adjusted to
merger reserve.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are consolidated using the existing book
values from the controlling party’s perspective. No
amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess
of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

NETZA=+—RHIFE

3. FTEGFERME (&)

3.2

3.3

REEE ()

EXBHE0 ()
MEBAHZ NI G ERER S HE&
HEZHEERIARTR  AIREES
DARTEKREFRE AR ZREES
B xFETeENGERH (R
) AEHFAE - WHERREIINEES
BfE URRESHRENKERNE
FEZRERBERZFHER - Mz
ZEER  SEPENEARALE

B e

5 2t 2 ) RO ST 3
FEHEE

BRI AR & B0 AT
MERBEIBIIRIBER S SF1E35155
5 [ KRHEH A e A Bt g
NaHEtEAR - WBRENLAR
EEEFEEEEFERMENER
TIRBER GHEME -

TG RMBHRRBEAHERLEH
MPBRRIAR - ZAREGNER
HEEE GHBIMF IR EE R
BRNEGBREK ARSI
HE -

BHERIEBNEEFEIIEG T
HIRBRRE(ES OF - EIEH0 AEs
FENERT - BEIETT EIEH
W AHANEE REMKARE
AR EEBBNEARZES S R
WK AN SR THER




FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F EEIFR#Z IR B R A =)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hi A B AR WA

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Merger accounting for business
combination involving entities under
common control (Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of
the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of
the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the entities
or businesses had been combined at the end of the
previous reporting period or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:

(a) Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
to the customer. This is usually taken to be the
point in time when the goods are delivered and
the customer has accepted the goods. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts;

(b) Service income from hotel operation and
properties management is recognised when
services are rendered;

(c) Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment 3.5 W% - WBERR

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 3.13). Historical cost
includes purchase price and expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.

Depreciation of item of property, plant and equipment
is provided to write off the cost less their residual
values, if any, over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Land and buildings held for own use situated thereon
are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being
no more than 50 years after the date of purchase.

Plant and machinery 4-10 years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Motor vehicles 5 years

Other property, plant and 3-5 years
equipment

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other expenses, such as repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial year in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Club memberships 3.6 HETEE
Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial BEERBRERAFHNEMEEIRKA
position at cost less impairment losses (see note ROREBBERGE M BARAKRYER
3.13). (RMFE3.13) °

3.7 Inventories 3.7 7%
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net & L/Uﬂi$&—ﬁ:*fﬁi¥*ﬁﬁﬁ%qj HIEL
realisable value. liv Pl
Cost is calculated using the weighted average RAEINEF AR E - B BRIERE
method and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of PR - BER ARSI EESEREH
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the Bh SR PTEE AR Y B AR o
inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in ATEIRFETIN AR EBBEFRMG
the ordinary course of business less the estimated FHEERMFTTE IR A REREER
costs of completion and the estimated costs ¥ oo
necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of REETFER  Z5GFENERMER
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the BERERUEMNEEERARY - 7
period in which the related revenue is recognised. BB E SRR ENRBELER
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net B R E S A MU 2k B 18 IR A B 51
realisable value and all losses of inventories are EFSZ - EMURTFERNEMEE 5
recognised as an expense in the period the write- PR B EE A R B VER S N RERR B BT
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of BRIFTESTERD o
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

3.8 Properties under development 3.8 EEPYE

Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises the costs of land use rights,
construction costs and other direct development
expenditure.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.9

Properties under development
(Continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs to completion and applicable selling expenses.

On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale at their carrying values at the
date of transfer.

When properties under development are sold, the
carrying amount of those properties is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of properties to net realisable value and all losses are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates and are not
retranslated.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
rates at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses have been converted into the Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of the
accumulated exchange differences in respect of that
operation attributable to the Group are reclassified
to profit or loss. Any exchange differences that have
previously been attributed to non-controlling interests
are derecognised, but they are not reclassified to
profit or loss.

3.10 Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at
cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use. The
following useful lives are applied:

Customers relationship 10 years
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

3.1

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described below in note 3.13.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FTEEMBRME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 Accounting for income taxes 3N BRI ERERE (&)

(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if:

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

3.12

Accounting for income taxes
(Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial
assets other than investments in subsidiaries of the
Company are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
end of the each reporting period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued) 312 & EE (&)

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets
are reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued) 312 & EE (&)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets
are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data including but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued) 312 & EE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of
the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Impairment loss on financial assets other than trade
receivables that are stated at amortised cost are
written off against the corresponding assets directly.
Where the recovery of trade receivables is considered
doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses for
doubtful receivables are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery of
trade receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account in respect of that receivable are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 Impairment of non-financial assets 313 EMEERIE

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
club memberships and interests in subsidiaries in the
statement of financial position of the Company, are
subject to impairment testing. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

3.14 Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year (see note
3.13).

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEFBRMBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 Financial liabilities 3.16 ERERE

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, amounts due to related companies,
secured loans, obligation under finance leases, bonds
and amount due to a director.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see 3.19).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables, amount due
to a director and amounts due to related
companies

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

AEENTRAGEBEERES LEMLE
fTBRR - FERIRERE A BIKIR - RS
R BMEHEEEME  EFMEN—F
BEEFA -

TREBERAEERASTAADER
FIAT R RERR o FRE RIS HRE MR
BAKENEERASHBRER
(RMEE3.19) -

ERETHETRRKRIBUEXE
H] SR B ERSRIHER -

ERERAGEAR—ERAZES
TR EN S —AE R B EPT
B SERARENGERELEX
fERT » BEARA IR SAE R 14T A U e
RREBENERHEE  ARKE
B ZFENER T HER

ESZREMEIR - BEff—ZEE
PRIE BB BB 2 A R

AZEFRRVAE R A BERER - B
REMERNSIRIZ B A E




FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F EEIFR#Z IR B R A =)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hi A B AR WA

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 Financial liabilities (Continued)

3.17

Secured loans and bonds

Borrowings, including secured loans and bonds, are
recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 Provision and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

3.18 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount
of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of
the related assets.

3.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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HE-T—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Research and development expenditure

3.21

Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Group’s research and development
activities, the criteria for the recognition of such costs
as an asset are generally not met until later in the
development stage of the project when the remaining
development costs are immaterial. Hence both
research costs and development costs are generally
recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

Payments for defined contribution retirement
schemes to local governments in the PRC, Canada
and Korea pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC, Canada and Korea
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the year.
The Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FTEEMBRME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Employee benefits (Continued) 321 BEHEF (F&)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

3.22 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is recognised at the amount of consideration
of shares issued, after deducting any transaction
costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

3.23 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.23 Leases (Continued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, except
for land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon, at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease (see note
3.5). For these purposes, the inception of the lease
is the time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments of such assets,
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligation under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FTESFHERME (8)

3.23 Leases (Continued) 3.23 HHE (&)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rental are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

3.24 Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and other eligible participants are measured at the
fair value of the share options at the grant date.
Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 38.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of share options that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
share options reserve in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of share options expected
to vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.24 Share-based payment transactions

(Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share capital. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained earnings.

3.25 Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
that either has been disposed of, or is classified as
held for sale. The component comprises operations
and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished from
the rest of the Group and represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprising the total of:(i) the post-tax profit or loss
of discontinued operations and (ii) the post-tax gain
or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs to sell or on the disposal of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.26

3.27

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over of the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.27 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

(M)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and amended
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have had
a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented.

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has not early applied the following
new and amended HKFRSs which are relevant to the
Group’s operations that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts

with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses'

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions®

Amendments to HKAS 2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and amended HKFRSs upon initial
application. Currently it has been considered that adoption
of them is unlikely to have an impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position, except for the
following:
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” ("HKFRS 9”)

The release of HKFRS 9 represents the completion
of the project to replace HKAS 39. The new standard
introduces extensive changes to HKAS 39’s guidance on
the classification and measurement of financial assets
and introduces a new ‘expected credit loss’ model for the
impairment of financial assets. HKFRS 9 also provides new
guidance on the application of hedge accounting.

The directors have started to assess the impact of HKFRS
9 but are not yet in a position to provide quantified
information. At this stage the main areas of expected
impact are as follows:

o the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets will need to be reviewed based on
the new criteria that considers the assets’ contractual
cash flows and the business model in which they are
managed.

o an expected credit loss-based impairment will need
to be recognised on the Group’s trade receivables.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (“HKFRS 15")

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue
is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition
guidance, including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 “Customer
Loyalty Programmes”. It also includes guidance on when
to capitalise costs of obtaining or fulfilling a contract not
otherwise addressed in other standards, and includes
expanded disclosure requirements. The impact of
the standard is currently being assessed. It is not yet
practicable to quantify the effect on the consolidated
financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16")

HKFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS
177). Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases
as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for
those two types of leases differently. It replaces HKAS 17
and the related interpretations including HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.
The impact of the standard is currently being assessed.
It is not yet practicable to quantify the effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of non-current assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the non-current
assets at the end of the reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. When
indication of impairment is identified, management
prepares discounted future cash flow to assess the
differences between the carrying amount and value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal and provide for the
impairment loss. Any change in assumption adopted in
the cash flow forecasts or fair value assessments would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment loss
and affect the Group’s profit or loss in the year. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of the Group were
approximately HK$103,649,000 and HK$39,153,000
respectively (2015: HK$114,370,000 (restated) and
HK$43,715,000 (restated) respectively). No impairment
loss was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer. An
increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would
affect the profit or loss in the year and in future years.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables of the Group was approximately
HK$88,379,000 (2015: HK$146,903,000 (restated)),
net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$10,956,000 (2015: HK$10,871,000).

5. EXERAERAEFIEERE

R EZRIR ()

R E BIRB BRI M B A £ B EF A FE
EREXR  BFESH T —EMBEFE
NEEKABREAEBERFEAFRNER
[E\B ) E B RAREm AL o

ERBEERE
AEBRFEHRBFIERBDEENERR
B NETRAGRAERBARERE-
RERBEDRE - EEEREARAM
REERE  FHEEEEFEREEKR
A EERHERANZEIHRRERSRE
B - MBS REERSH AL BETEFT
FRAMNBRBEEE  BIBEBURERIE
BESHEEMIRL I EREBZF
EWEH R _E—R"F+_A=+—
H AEEYE BRIMIRBEARER
EEMNRAEAED 5% A103,649,0007%8 7T
139,153,000 (ZE—HF : DA
114,370,000 7T (&£ &%) X 43,715,000
B (EEY))) e RBE_ZT—XF+=
A=+—HLEFEMEREBEER (=
T—RF  FTBL) -

B 5 R H B AR TR E

Z 5 REMBWRRABESENIREE
EWRE DT T HEMMYE o] k=2
EHFEFTATERetiRBHE - EERN
FEEMEEFNEEE AT KRRE
EREF R K HE - R E R B
M DB FEARFE R ARFEERN G
Ml EE - R TE—RF+_A=+—
B AEBESREMEKRERRNER
B4 £88379,0008 L (Z T —HF:
146,903,000 7T (& EF)) » EHMKBR R
BR B #910,956,000/8 7 (Z T — R F :
10,871,000 7T) °




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ¢ —ZF—/XF i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hi A B AR WA

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Allowance for inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis,
expected future consumption and management judgement.
Based on this review, write-down of inventories will be made
when the carrying amounts of inventories decline below
their estimated net realisable value. Significant judgement
is required. In making this judgement, the Company
evaluates, amongst other factors, the duration and extent
and the means by which the amount will be recovered.
These estimates are based on the current market condition
and past experience in sales of similar products. Due
to changes in technology and market conditions, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and profit or
loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. As
at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories
of the Group was approximately HK$32,048,000 (2015:
HK$31,446,000 (restated)), net of allowance for inventories
of approximately HK$900,000 (2015: HK$4,341,000).

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislation. Details of taxation are set out in note 13.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for unutilised
tax losses and deductible temporary differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

5. EXERAERAEFIEERE

R EZRIR ()

FEEE
AEELEERDNT - BHRAREESER
EEEBHE TR FENERERE - RIE
ZwE  MESREERESEREGRT
BIFE - MIETEETHR - ZBIRE
TEH ERHIE - RELHIER - ARE)F
B E S ENER BERARNUARE
bR ZE - Z S AT ERE AT &AL
ERNBAEEBEAME - RIXEE RN
NEL BB EBEBEEGRINMEE
FTEAMZR i RFERELY
B2 - PW_ZE-—RF+-_A=+—H &%
EF S ERMEL 532,048,000 7T (—
T — F 431,446,000 7T (L&) 2
HMKREFEEEEL900,0008 T (ZE—1
£F 1 4,341,000787T) ©

Frig
BEEMBRRBRHRTER S ARKBRF
BERIR MR A R (L HI T - A E
FAFAERZOHREEE - WA RERL B
o ZERXHHNMBRIETHTUNERE
B AT ABREABI B 8 - BiIRR
IBEHEE 13

REVAH AR R K AT B B =5 R
RIELERTABE - ANMEER AL &R A
15 AR B A A TR % T LA S 85 69 R 20 7
Ry Al RERIEIE IR E & - BIEEARI
TR HIE - FHEESRIREREOE &Y Al
RN - BIEESE MR ZFNE AT
B 7] R JE1S AT UL [BIR AT IR & A YRR
FERRTOE MV B T HERRR IR AETL IR
BE -




FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F EEIFR#Z IR B R A =)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hi A B AR WA

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Amortised cost of amount due to a director

The directors of the Company use their best estimation
to determine the effective interest rate in calculating
the amortised cost of amount due to a director, with
reference to the market rates. Should the estimates
applied are different, the carrying value of these amounts
will be changed. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amounts of amount due to a director were approximately
HK$68,325,000 (2015: HK$142,096,000).

Amortisation charges of intangible assets
and depreciation charges of property, plant
and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
are amortised or depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking
into account the estimated residual value, if any. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of amortisation
or depreciation expense to be recorded during each
financial year. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amounts of intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment of the Group were
approximately HK$39,153,000 and HK$103,649,000.
(2015: HK$43,715,000 (restated) and HK$114,370,000
(restated)) respectively. The amortisation or depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates. Carrying amounts of the
intangible assets and property plant and equipment are set
out in notes 18 and 16 respectively.
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REVENUE 6. =
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to AEBETEEBNEREMBREM TR
the consolidated financial statements. Revenue from the o AEBEETZEBRNFRERH D
Group’s principal activities recognised during the year is as ™
follows:
2016 2015
—F-AF L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
(Restated)
(F&E5))
Continuing operations BEREER
Sales of electronic components HEE L 225,204 345,033
Hotel operation income NIYEF I ON 42,217 41,081
Property management income L7ES-REN N 42,726 27,145
310,147 413,259
SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. ERER
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and REBFERFRERIEEEFLHE B
sales of electronic components, hotel operation, property JERRE - MEBTBRYERR - AEER
management and properties development. The Group’s AE2REESBIBRBERETERHITE
reportable and operating segments, based on information (B;EmEERARE) IFERD B R D
reported to the Chief Executive Officer, being the chief HETHERNE R MBERREZRIBHE
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource B TR ¢
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on goods or services provided are as follows:
(1) Electronic components (1) EFxH
Sales and manufacturing of electronic components HERREE FRENBAREER
for electronic appliances and communication KB F Tl ©
equipment.
(2) Hotel operation (2) BELKSE
Operation of a resort in Canada. K —RMRNERIERBE -
(3) Property management (3) MEEE
Property management in the PRC. R R EEIRRT
(4) Properties development (4) MEER
Properties development in the PRC. RHPBRZEEDE -
No operating segments identified by the chief operating FERAEE ] 2REED TR - HEF
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the FTELBERREMBINEEDETUE

reportable and operating segments of the Group. B o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SEHER (&)

Segment results, assets and liabilities TEHEE - BEERER

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and B D BRERESHDHBEIEEIR
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior KE ERSRITHREEABR T E%ER
executive management monitors the results, assets and BEAEROENEE - BEREE

liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable Hﬁl¥&ﬁ-ﬂ§ TEEERAEWMOIIBES

segments with reference to sales generated by those NEEENHERURZED I EE K

segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or IE%% B A& YT & o 8 T 2 A A

which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation X o

of assets attributable to those segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and HE_Z—R"FERZE—RAF+=A

allocating resources between segments for the years ended =t+—HIFE BREEIHFRBLES

31 December 2016 and 2015: DEZEDEEIR

e all assets are allocated to reportable segments o  BREBRHIEITFER G REHBEBER=
other than restricted bank deposits, short-term &7z RERITIF R - IRITAEBRKIR
bank deposit with original maturity more than three T EMEERARDRCBERAT
months, bank balances and cash, club memberships BEN FIBEENEZEAZHD
and unallocated head office and corporate assets; 2B &
and

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments e BRARNDEZEBERARAEE BEM
other than unallocated head office and corporate ERME - EEBIEAE  BHN—RE
liabilities, obligation under finance leases, deferred EHIE  BMAERRESIN FIEE
tax liabilities, amount due to a director, secured loans BOREAE2®RDEL -

and bonds.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. TEER (&)

(@) The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue (a) AEEEFREES IR ERES
and results by reportable and operating segments: PHTEAT
2016 —E—RF

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
2&I1E
Electronic Hotel Property Properties
components operation management development Total
ETnk R MEER MERR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Revenue from external REIMIEF 2tz
customers 225,204 42,217 42,726 - 310,147
Segment (loss)/profit 28 (BR) /&F (54,128) 3,953 8,870 (370) (41,675)
Finance costs RERA - (570) - - (570)
Depreciation nE (6,668) (2,800) (48) (16) (9,532)
Interest income AMEWA 82 20 14 - 116
Amortisation 5K - - (4,562) - (4,562)
Gain on disposal of property, HE&WE - #ER
plant and equipment Rz 585 - - - 585
Provision for doubtful debts  RERE & (277) - - - (277)
Reversal for provision for ~ REEf{E[E] &
doubtful debts 189 - - - 189
Allowance for inventories 17 & BE (900) - - - (900)
Reversal of allowance for 77§85 &
inventories 1,199 - - - 1,199
Segment assets PHEE 104,831 87,747 69,110 - 261,688
Additions to non-current R EIERE
segment assets during NHEE
the year 1,712 239 131 - 2,082
Segment liabilities FHEE 134,371 5,306 10,185 - 149,862
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NETZA=+—RHIFE

7. SEEH (8)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue (a) AEEEFREES IR ERES
and results by reportable and operating segments ST (&)
(Continued)
2015 TR
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
FRICE R mexn
Electronic Hotel Property Properties
components operation management  development Total
EF Ll BIELE MEER MEERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL THT FET FHT THT
(Restated) (Restated)
(sE=51) (s E51)
Revenue from external REMPEF <zt
customers 345,033 41,081 27,145 - 413,259
Segment (loss)/profit 2 (FE) BF (39,083) 4971 46,958 (3,768) 9,078
Finance costs RERA - - - _ _
Depreciation e (7,070) (2,722) (40) (154) (9,986)
Interest income FLBHA 232 - 14 3 249
Amortisation K - - (1,901) - (1,901)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of — HEME  MERFE L
property, plant and Wiz (B18)
equipment 21 (14) - - 7
Provision for doubtful debts ~ RER#E: & (27) - - - (27)
Reversal for provision for R BR B (& 015
doubtful debts 111 - - - 111
Allowance for inventories 175 B4é (4,341) - - - (4,341)
Reversal of allowance for T S/ m%
inventories 1,703 - - - 1,703
Segment assets PEEE 183,223 85,526 63,551 135,310 467,610
Additions to non-current  ERFEIERH
segment assets during NHEE
the year 21413 487 43,755 6 65,661
Segment liabilities NEa’E 148861 3,769 24,969 133,997 311,596
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 7ERER (8)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (loss)/profit, (b)y AE2HRHI (E@ﬂé) Sak - BER
assets and liabilities: BENYER
2016 2015
—E-XEF s —RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
(Restated)
(#EE7)
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations HER LXK > (&) %F
Segment (loss)/profit S (B18) /5 (41,305) 12,846
Interest income FLEMA 10 12
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR Z Y - 110
Gain on amount due to a director stated AR BEZY|EN—HEE
at fair value upon initial recognition NIB 2 YRR 6,688 5,646
Depreciation e (152) (255)
Other finance costs ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁf@$ (17,332) (17,822)
Unallocated head office and ROBLBHB R AR
corporate expenses (20,409) (23,839)
Consolidated loss before income tax REBRTSTAIEE (72,500) (23,302)
2016 2015
—RE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(72 &%)
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AEWmoEEE 261,688 467,610
Restricted bank deposits "ﬁﬁﬁ%l]ﬁﬁ TIFE& 3,090 11,768
Short-term bank deposit with original FEHIHBE=EAR
maturity more than three months HHIRITE 3K 1,000 1,000
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR NIR S 52,795 49,443
Club memberships @ peis 600 600
Unallocated head office and KOBLAEZE N AT EE
corporate assets 1,541 3,321
Consolidated total assets RS BERRE 320,714 533,742
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (loss)/profit,
assets and liabilities (Continued):

7. SEEH (8)

(b) FAIZM|AOE (BE) Er - BER
BEMHER (B) -

2016 2015
AL —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
(Restated)
(#EE7)
Liabilities afE

Reportable segment liabilities AEmoEasE 149,862 311,596
Obligation with finance leases MEHEESE(ET 156 304
Amount due to a director BN —REERIE 68,325 142,096
Bonds &5 40,000 40,000
Secured loans HIHER 39,898 62,006
Deferred tax liabilities EIERITE R E 7,673 6,940

Unallocated head office and KoL G AaE
corporate liabilities 9,287 5,350
Consolidated total liabilities e BBERE 315,201 568,292

The Group has amended the format of management
information provided to the chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of assessing the performance of the
operating segments due to the acquisition of subsidiaries
engaged in the provision of property management services.

Geographical information

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in the
case of property, plant and equipment, club memberships
and deposits for purchase of property, plant and equipment
and the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets. The Group’s
operations are principally located in Hong Kong, Korea,
Canada and the PRC (excluding Hong Kong).

ARBRrEEREDEEERBEONER
A AREBDERIRE T EIBRERKE
AR E DRIV EREE R o

BEF IR B RERREA RN ERA
WEVEETE - FRBEENMEME
BREENERUEETE (WE - #a3z MR
B SMERENMBEYE  HELRED
Be)  BEENMIEAEREMENL
EHHET -  AREEXBEEMRNES
BBE - ERRTE (FERIN) -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets are detailed below:

7. SEEH (8)

MEER ()
REERBINEEF 2 Was R BBEIER
BEEZEFHZEEMEIFIINT

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMDEF 2 Wz FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-RE¥ —E-AF —E-R"F —T—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET TERT FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(#m=E5) (LmE5)
Hong Kong 5 159,723 207,160 2,494 3,189
The PRC FE (BB
(excluding Hong Kong) 89,375 87,725 55,844 72,064
Korea e 14,464 70,558 - 13
Canada mnex 42,217 41,081 85,064 83,625
Others Hah 4,368 6,735 - -
310,147 413,259 143,402 158,891
Information about major customers FRETERTRFZER

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group are as follows:

BRI GBARNERAKZ1I0%MEER
FH5ImT :

2016 2015

—E-RE —ET—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Customer A! =HEA 129,956 170,312
Customer B! =~ B! N/A RiE A 89,173
Customer C! =y=Tox 41,013 N/A 73 B

! Customers from electronic components segment.

' KEEFTHEDHHEP -
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OTHER INCOME 8. HilaA
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
(Restated)
(&e=75)
Continuing operations EREER
Interest income from bank deposits RITF R Z FBUA 126 258
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - K REE
plant and equipment ollves 585 7
Gain on amount due to a director stated BAREEZ
at fair value upon initial recognition JEN—RESHIE
ZHHRER A U s 6,688 5,646
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FERB ARz W - 110
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts B[O RER B 189 111
Government grants (note) B REE) (BFE) 2,982 69
Bargain purchase gain arising EBaHEANZBWE
on business combination (note 33) (FF5E33) - 39,056
Others Hip 1,784 1,203
12,354 46,460
Discontinued operation BRI K
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFERZFBUA - 3
Note: BeE
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group received RBEZZT—A"F+ZA=+—RHIEFE K&
government grants of RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately B gt 4% 205 B 15 B #8 B AR % 2,000,000 7T
HK$2,338,000) in respect of operating activities which are (FBER4)2,338,000/87T) @ JThBEKFERMILRE
unconditional grants or grants with conditions have been satisfied ERABIEGAEE - BABMEF Lo 3
to finance the energy savings entity from the electronic components ENREERE o
segment.
FINANCE COSTS 9. MERK
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Continuing operations BELEER
Interests on: M
— Finance leases -REHE 12 19
— Secured loans —ERER 10,077 13,138
— Bonds — &% 4,550 2,422
— Imputed interest on amount due to — E BRI A B FOR
ultimate holding company ZIHEEFE - 1,624
— Imputed interest on amount due to -EN—REFRIEZ
a director WEFE 3,263 619

17,902 17,822
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10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax has been arrived at after charging/

NETZA=+—RHIFE

10. BRETBHAIEGIE

BRETS BB ENAEENGR, (GTA) -

(crediting):
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
(Restated)
(FeE5)
Continuing operations BEREEK
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN S 880 880
Operating lease charges: minimum lease RETHEEH -
payments® * SEAENZHT * 8,573 8,682
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration BIKAK (BEEEMS -
disclosed in note 11)* M EE 11 HE) * 120,632 127,386
— salaries, wages, allowances, long service -#He - IE - ERL
payment and other benefits in kind RERBE KR
HuEWEH 113,441 120,810
— retirement schemes contributions — BRIRETEIMH R 5,957 5,823
— Equity-settled share-based payment - RS E AR
expenses R 1,234 753
Cost of inventories* HFEmWA* 157,390 234,909
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts RERBBEE (F15E22)
(note 22) (189) (111)
Bargain purchase gain arising on business ERAHEANZEEBERE
combination (note 33) (MI7E33) - (39,056)
Provision for doubtful debts (note 22) REREME (F5E22) 277 27
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) b N EsiE, (Was) 5 219 (1,873)
Allowance for inventories (note 20) FEsE (Mik20) 900 4,341
Reversal of allowance for inventories (note 20) 17 &# & E1#E (M5 20) (1,199) (1,703)
Depreciation* E” 9,668 10,238
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 18) mREEHE (M7 18) 4,562 1,901
Discontinued operation BRI EER
Depreciation e 16 154

is also included and disclosed in staff costs.

* Cost of inventories includes HK$87,345,000 (2015: *
HK$95,875,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges, which amounts are also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above for

each of these types of expenses.

The cash (used in)/generated from operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities from
discontinued operation were (HK$14,000), (HK$127,000)
and HK$Nil respectively (2015: HK$179,000,

and HK$Nil respectively).

Minimum lease payments include an amount of approximately
HK$1,497,000 (2015: HK$1,610,000) for staff quarters which

Y REHENRERRAEEIEENSEY
1,497,000/ 7L (= —H% : 1,610,000/

JT) - ZERIFE AR IRAL ML HEE -

L

(HK$5,000)

FERABERETINAN  HERKEHEE
EHAERMNS7,345,0008 T (ZT—HF :
95,875,000 7T) * #
RREZSRERXEBRENSBHES

SEPFDAALX

ERIEREXBORKEED  KRER
BERMEED (A EENRESS
Al & (14,0008 7T) ~ (127,00078 T) KZE
BT (ZE—1F : H5IA179,000% 7T -
(5,00087C) REBTT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1. EERITHAEZNME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments, disclosed BRIBEEB R HEHFE 3B ER AT (B
pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies BEEMNRENR) ROIE28HEEER
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of THBHMEInT
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as
follows:
2016 —E-RE

Salaries,  Retirement

allowances benefits  Share-based

and benefits schemes payment

in kind contributions expenses
Fees #i& - MK RIKER  UROBXZM Total
ne ENERF HE 23 MBx #act

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TET FiET

(note i)

(FfED)
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Shen Yong (Chairman) MBXE (FFE) - 1,200 - - 1,200
Mr. Gan Lin (Chief Executive Officer)  H 5% (77K #E#)

(note g) (HizEg) - 522 - - 522
Mr. Hong Sang Joon RS A - 1,364 18 - 1,382
Mr. Shen Ke ==y - 600 - - 600
Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi (Note b) SFEEE (F:ED) - 2,282 18 1,234 3,534
Non-executive director EHTES
Mr. Huang Xiang Yang (note h) aMEEE (FizEh) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Dr. Loke Yu (note c) BEamiEL (M) 169 - - - 169
Mr. Yu Lei REBLHE 120 - - - 120
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan (note d) REFHLL (HEd) 36 - - - 36
Mr. Emst Rudolf Zimmermann Ak AE 180 - - - 180

505 5,968 36 1,234 7,743
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HE-T—

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

NETZA=+—RHIFE

1. EERITHEARNME (F)

2015 —F—hF
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits ~ Share-based
and benefits schemes payment
inkind  contributions expenses
Fees & - MR RIER] MBS Total
e BMEH S5 i0l553 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00!
TET TET TET TET TET
(note i)
(B3Ei)
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Shen Yong (Chairman) BELE (FF) - 1,200 - - 1,200
Mr. Hong Sang Joon RS - 1,349 18 - 1,367
Mr. Li Zhi (note e) ZR%A (Mite) - 157 - - 157
Mr. Shen Ke B L - 600 - - 600
Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond (note f)  BiScft st (Ff{3Ef) - 708 493 1,207
Mr. Zhao Enze (note a) HEELAE (Fita) - 643 - 643
Mr. Fan Jiangang (note a) eslmxE (Hita) - 77 - - 77
Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi (note b) SFEEE (MiEb) - 892 7 260 1,159
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Mr. Yu Lei REAE 120 - - - 120
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan REF LT 120 - - - 120
Mr. Emst Rudolf Zimmermann S EE 180 - - - 180
420 5,626 31 753 6,830
Notes: BifsE
(@) Mr. Zhao Enze and Mr. Fan Jiangang were appointed as (@ BRELEREAMELERN_FT—AF_A
executive directors on 16 February 2015 and resigned on 25 TABRZERMIES KR _F—AFN
September 2015. A-+HHEHT -
(b)  Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi was appointed on as an executive director (b) SFEEER-_FT-AFN\A=1+—BHEZ
31 August 2015 and resigned on 30 December 2016. géiﬂﬁ§$&ﬁé:3§*/_\¢+:ﬁ =+HA
BHE °
(c)  Dr. Loke Yu was appointed as an independent non-executive (© FEEEMELR_FT—"FHA-+ AEZ
director of the Company on 26 April 2016. EARRARBILIENITES -
(d)  Ms. Zhang Cui Lan resigned on 18 April 2016. (d) FTERZIRZZT—FOA+NBEIT -
(e)  Mr. Li Zhi resigned on 16 February 2015. () ZFTEHXRERZZT—AF_A+HEST-
(f)  Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond was appointed on 10 June 2014 (f) E@Yﬂ%ﬁf‘ﬁiﬁélg—ﬂlié‘ﬁﬂﬂ'lfli%é{%&
and resigned on 13 March 2015. RIE-—RF=A+=HEHE -
(g)  Mr. Gan Lin was appointed as an executive director and Chief (g HFEEESFIR=_ZE—A"FENA+N\BEZ

(h)

0]

Executive Officer on 18 April 2016 and 30 December 2016
respectively.

Mr. Huang Xiang Yang was appointed as a non-executive
director on 30 December 2016.

The value of share options granted to the directors is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 3.24. The details
including the principal terms and number of options granted
are disclosed in note 38.

(h)

()

E-RET-A=THEZERATESRR
TR AR, -

BRSAER _F-—R"F+-_A=1+REZ
ERIFITES -

ETEENBRENEEDREAEE SR
Bin TR BHGETRAFETIE - FIEH
MEFEE3.24 - ZEFE (BECRDBRE
BEZET LB ) NI 38HKE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"FE+-_A=+—8ULFE

12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2015: four) are directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note 11. The emoluments in
respect of the remaining two (2015: one) individual during

12. &EHMENAL

AEBREZSHFALH =R (ZF
—hF: B RARAEFERITHAE
£ HMED N EXHE1LAELRE -
BTIME (ZE—1F : —%) ALHBE

the year are as follows: REEFFIRT ¢
2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2B REYET 1,953 1,325
Retirement benefits schemes contributions R ET 2R 39 16
1,992 1,341

The above individual’s emoluments were within the
following bands:

Fit ATRBHE SEESINT

Number of individuals

EEAH
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—HF
HK$500,000 — HK$1,000,000 500,000 7 Z& 1,000,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T % 1,500,000 7T 1 1

There was no arrangement during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015, under which a director or the
five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration, and no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

REE-_ZE—R"FER_ZE—RF+=A
—t+—HIFE BEFFRBESFHMA
TREEIBIR AL RES R B REER
e BASEYERESHIAE RS
AT EMEMEBNE - LAMEAIMBARES
FRMBAEERN RSN IERBEEM

& -
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HE-T—

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents:

NETZA=+—RHIFE

13. Fhfs

5 % 32

reBmkEMEERAEROTIE

2016 2015
—E—ARE —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(#EE7)
Continuing operations BEREER
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEEEREH
Provision for the year NEZRE 8,987 6,098
Deferred tax (note 30) EEBIE (M1530) 733 (113)
9,720 5,985
Notes: BfaE -
(@) No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the consolidated () BHRAKEBREZE-_Z—ARFERZZET—hHF

(c)

(d)

()

financial statements as the Group had no assessable profit in
Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax are calculated at
25% of the estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for Nuofute
Property Management is calculated at 15% of the estimated
assessable profits for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015. Nuofute Property Management is qualified as a company
under the development strategy of the PRC’s western region
and is able to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%.

The Korea Branches operated in Korea are subject to Korean
Corporate Income Tax. The basic Korean Corporate Tax rates for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are 11% on the
first KRW200,000,000 of the tax base and 22% for the excess.
In addition to the basic tax rate, there is a resident surcharge
of 10% on the income tax liability. No provision for taxation has
been made as there is no assessable profit for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

Canadian Corporation Tax is calculated at Federal tax rate of
15% and British Columbia provincial tax rate of 11% on the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015. No provision for taxation has been made as
there is no assessable profit for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the BVI, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the BVI.

(b)

(d)

(e)

)

TZA=1— Eiifiﬁﬁﬁfguﬁﬁm%l 3
WERARE M MAFHRREEENEH -

PECKASHEBHABRE_T—AFR
—T-RF T A=+ BILFEOME
RBEM R 25% 51 H

ARESYEERNTECERSHRBEETIA
BE T REA-ET-AF+-_A=1—
B &S E e EE ERTUE NZ 15% 1 E -
AERYEEEDPEALAFEETHNEE
RAT - AT ZEEMREHE15% °

Eﬁﬁli‘“Aﬁﬁﬁﬁ&.""?ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ&.t%ﬁﬁ
B -BHEZT—R"FRZZT—AF+=A
E%*Elﬂ:ifg C BB ERRATE
# & 200,000,000 42 E A& 11% * #BiBAIE 5
BB 22% o BREATZEIN - THAGHAR
B 10% BRI ME - REZE =T —RF
RZE—RF+_A=+—HILFERHE

FERBUSF - S AEAE B TE AR
HE_Z—XELR_ZFT—AF+_A=+—

AU - N8 AL HFHS BT oA 5t
ARBU M SR BEFBE 15% IR fm kL 2
ARRINRAE - BE_ZE—RFR-Z
—HAF+-A=1T—BIFE  ARLEE
BUE N - I AT IR DA RME -

RIFRBEREZRSRANOER - AEEEA
BREBE L BERAMEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 13. FIEFHHAZ (&)
Reconciliation between accounting (loss)/profit and income 25t (B18) &5 EL @B Rt EHET
tax expenses at applicable tax rate is as follows: IRAS FRERET
2016 2015
—E-REF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&=&=75)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISHIAT (B518) &
— from continuing operations - REFELCEER (72,500) (23,302)
— from discontinued operation - REBERIEREER 56,146 (3,768)
(16,354) (27,070)
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before income tax, 3% fR:E AN RIS e A &R
calculated at the rates applicable to BE A 2 TR - BLERFTS
profit in the tax Al (B8) &5
jurisdictions concerned STENRETRIE (3,037) (8,802)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for R
tax purpose 7,395 21,464
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAEMFIA TS 2
tax purpose (6,313) (7,979)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and other REVAIRIBEE R HAM
temporary differences not recognised RERGREEENTR ST E 9,875 1,413
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LAF AR TS EE
not recognised - (111)
Deferred tax charge on distributable profits 7] -k s FIFB 0L A0 IR AE
withholding tax (note 30) HIAZ H (F97E30) 1,800 -
Income tax expenses for the year REZFEHBY 9,720 5,985
14. DIVIDEND 14. 2
No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended HE-_Z—R"EER_ZE—1F + = )EJ
31 December 2016 and 2015, nor has any dividend been =+—HIFE  WEIKKER]

proposed since the end of the reporting period. B BREIRURINAREZ (RS @ °
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HE_Z—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is
based on the following:

15. B (B1]) &7

NN ERER Hx%ﬁ(ﬁﬁ’]tﬂx%ﬁ&%ﬁ
(B18) /B IERATEBE :

2016 2015
—E-XEF —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHExT TFHT
(Restated)
(&&75))
(Loss)/earnings (558) &F
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of basic RARsTEERER (F18)
(loss)/earnings per share RBFE (E18) /&F)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to R E) i AR R R Y
equity shareholders of the Company REZE (BE) %7
— from continuing operations - REFECEERS (82,220) (29,287)
— from discontinued operation - REBRIEREFER 56,146 (3,768)
Number of shares BRAEE 000 ‘000
T Thx
Weighted average number of R+-—A=+—8H/
ordinary shares as at 31 December R A NRE 15 8 406,444 327,897

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 equate the basic (loss)/earnings
per share as the Group had no potential dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015. The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per
share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options as the exercise price of those options was
higher than the average market price of the Company’s
shares for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

BHE_ZT-RNEFRZZE-HF+ZA
=+t—HIEMEFENERES (B18)
BFEGRER (F518) /BAEE - RA
EAEERBE_Z—R"FA_Z—1F
+ - A=+—BIMEFELEETELE
HELTRE -HE—_T—XRFA_T—H
FHZA=+—HBIMEFE - BRAR
AIERENTTERESRARRRNH TS
MiHE - BitstEeREs (518) /&7
AZR A BIRB AR T TR R ARG -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T—

NETZA=+—RHIFE

16. M5 « W[ R

Land and Other
buildings property,
held for plant and
OwWn use Plant and Leasehold Motor equipment
BERRAR machinery  improvements vehicles LOLES Total
THEET  HERRE RENEEE RE WEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin
(Restated
-note 3.3) (Restated)
(5
- H##33) (& E3])
Cost A
Asat 1 January 2015 RoE-1E-A—-H 100,903 93,525 5,156 3391 47,706 250,681
Exchange adjustments [E A% (16,390) (5,549) (87) (109) (3970) (26,105)
Additions WE 32 18,698 216 193 2807 21,946
Acquisttion through busingss combination & B F#EHI T £HA G
under common control (note 33) BT (33) - - - - 31 31
Disposals e - (599) - (150) (1,235) (1,984)
As at 31 December 2015 and RIE-RETZA=t-HR
1 January 2016 (restated) “ZRE-A-BEE)) 84N 106,075 528 3325 45,669 244,89
Exchange adjustments fE i A 3198 (5,460) 21 (57) (1332) (3630
Additions NE 101 892 - - 1,089 2,082
Disposal through disposal of subsidiaries  EBHENBLHE
(note 34) (F3¥34) - - - (430) (243) (673)
Disposals e - (13673) - - (1,026) (14,699
As at 31 December 2016 R-E-7E+-A=1-H 87,844 87,834 5306 2838 44157 221979
Depreciation and impairment FEREE
Asat 1 January 2015 RoE-1E-A-H 2,686 83816 4453 1,651 37311 129917
Exchange adjustments R HE (562) (4,303) (36) (51) (3431) (8383)
Acquisition through busingss combination  E B FIHH T £KAH
under common contral (note 33) G AGRES) - - - - 282 282
Charge for the year KEETHE 1563 4736 167 660 3115 10241
Written back on disposals HERHE - (480) - (150) (898) (1528)
As at 31 December 2015 and RZE-TF+-A=1-Bk
1 January 2016 (restated) “5—E-F-R (£&5)) 3,687 83,769 4584 2110 36,379 130,629
Exchange adjustments ERHE 97 (4.236) 6 (38) (1,381) (5,552)
Charge for the year AEETH 1521 4467 210 453 303 9,684
Disposal through disposal of subsidiaries  EBHENBAGHE
(note 34) (Rsr34) - - - (381) (115) (49)
Written back on disposals HERE - (9.225) - - (610) (9,835)
As at 31 December 2016 R-E-7E+-R=1-H 5305 74,775 4800 2144 37,306 124,330
Carrying values HEE
As at 31 December 2016 RZE- 7 E+ZR=1-H 82,539 13,059 506 694 6,851 103,649
Asat 31 December 2015 (Restated) R =F-R%+-f=1-A
(m&5) 80,858 22,306 701 1215 9290 114,370
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HE-T—

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s land and buildings
held for own use located outside Hong Kong with carrying
amount of approximately HK$82,539,000 (2015:
HK$80,858,000) were pledged to the secured loans (see
note 31) issued by the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, a motor vehicle with carrying
amount of HK$199,000 (2015: HK$399,000) was held

NETZA=+—RHIFE

16. W% - WFERRE ()

WN-ZE—XRNE+-A=+—H A£H
REBBINFENBEA I REFERR
B4 £82,539,0008 L (Z T —HF:
80,858,000/ T) M T AEEEITTH
EIFER (2BME31) »

RZZE—RE+-A=1—8 RERE
HERBNTHERRAER 199,0008 7T

under finance leases.

17. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS

(ZZ—F4 : 399,000&7T) °

17. EEE

HK$'000
FAT
Cost [2RS
As at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 R-_E—RF—H—H -
and 31 December 2016 —E-RAF+A=+—HK
—E-RFT+ZA=+—H 759
Impairment A
As at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 RZE—HF—AF—H8 -
and 31 December 2016 —E-RAF+A=+—HK
—E-R"F+=ZA=+—H (159)
Carrying value REE
As at 31 December 2015 and 2016 RZE—HFR
—E-R"F+ZA=+—H 600
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B & E
Customers
relationship
BEEBE
HK$'000
T
Cost 2%
As at 1 January 2015 R-Z—HF—AF—H -
Additions through business combination BIREBESUENE (M5E33)
(note 33) 45,616
As at 31 December 2015 (Restated), R_E—RF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 (&&E:5)) - —E—XF—A—BXK
—E-RFt+-A=+—H 45,616
Amortisation b E
As at 1 January 2015 N—E—hF—H—H ~
Charges for the year REEHEE 1,901
As at 31 December 2015 (Restated) R-_E—HRF+_-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2016 (g&EY|) R —E—RE—HA—AH 1,901
Charges for the year NEFEEH 4,562
As at 31 December 2016 R-—Z=—A~F+-_A=+—H 6,463
Carrying values REE
As at 31 December 2016 N-E—RE+=-_A=+—H 39,153
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-RE+-_A=+—H 43,715
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Other AEEHHEAF AL EBESREMEE
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit Wamk [EMgEMT BT -
or loss and other comprehensive income.
The intangible assets have finite useful lives and amortised B AERBAEREREH £ TFAK

on a straight-line basis over 10 years. BEAREER o
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The customers relationship were acquired from third
parties through business combinations (see note 33).

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units
(“CGU") to which the intangible assets allocated to has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation. The
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a ten-year
period with a discount rate of 15.6% (2015: 15.6%) per
annum. The cash flows beyond three-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 0% (2015: 0%).

Cash flow projections during the budget period for the
CGU are based on management’s estimate of cash inflows/
outflows including revenue and operating expenses.
The assumptions and estimation are based on the
management’s expectation of market development. The
management of the Group believes that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions of the value-in-use
calculation would not cause the carrying amount to exceed
its recoverable amount.

Management of the Group considered that there is no
impairment of its intangible assets as at 31 December
2016 and 2015.

8. RILEE (H)

BEBERIVEBEE A (2BME33)
BE=FHE -

i’é’\ﬁﬂﬁﬂ/ﬁngﬁiﬁi 5 iz B9 A 4[]

HRBEEAEENEET - 22 BERA
7|‘F<T)%Eﬁftt/ﬁﬁ’]+¢,ﬁﬂﬂ7ﬁ‘% TREPTER
BemBAEEFIS6%(ZE—HF :
15.6%) BT X H - ZFHA FHIR
EMIEO% (ZE—RF : 0%) AL REKE
TS -

REERARSELEUNRSRIIE
BE @1Eu‘|‘m£§uium7\//}wﬁ/i\%ﬁ (/j
Ela RS ERX) #EITTRR - BRAMRR
MEEDRBEEEEHMSERIBANTE
HEE - XEBEEEEMRE  WABER
BEAENTFZRREREMSIERLE
B OISR HERAEELAKEE
B o

REBEERERE

RZEBE—RER=E
—RF+-_A=1+—8 HEFEEHE

HERRE
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19. KRB QR 2 m

RZE—RER_E—RAF+_A=+—
BRTEWBATFENT :

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HMRY/RY,/ CEIREZRE/ held by the Company Principal activities
NRER feny BafEx MADARE 2 ERRRLA IEXH
Directly Indirectly
Ei 13
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE -1 B~ 1%
Kwang Sung Electronics Hong Kong 253,855,129 shares, - - Investment holding
Holdings Company Limited HK$253,855,129 RELRR
TEBFERERAT B 253,895,129f% -
253,855,129/ T
Kwang Sung Technology Hong Kong 194,198 829 shares, 100% 100% Sales of electronic
Holdings Company Limited HK$194,198,829 components
(*Kwang Sung Technology’) &8 194,198,829 - HEBTTLH
FTERBERERAT 194,198.829 % T
(TRERE)
Shenzhen Kwang Sung PRC United States dollars 100% 100% Manufacturing and
Electronics Co., Ltd." A ("US$") 10,561,780 sales of electronic
FIHEETARAA' 10,561,780% 7T components
HERHEE TN
Rat2ET PRC US$2,100,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and
(R BRAF" h 2,100000%7 sales of electronic
components
BERHEE Tl
Forebase Canada Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 100% 100% Investment holding
BEMEAERAT &b 18 - 18T REAR
Forebase Group Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - Investment holding
RESEERAT B 1R 1%T RERR
Forebase Victoria Holdings Canada Canadian dollar (“CAD") 1 100% 100% Hotel operation

Limited

JIEVN

1

i
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 are as follows (Continued):

NETZA=+—RHIFE

19. KRB AR 2 (HB)

RZE—RER_E—RAF+_A=+—
BRNEZHBARFBOT (&)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HMRY/RY,/ CETREZRL/ held by the Company Principal activities
NRER aeny gafEx MADARE 2 ERRERLA IEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# 13
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-3F _T-1%F ZB-RF _E-1fF
Forebase Enterprise Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
PEAFARAT B 1R 1% RELR
Forebase China Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
REMEARAT & 1R 1A RERR
Forebase Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Provision of
RERBERAA B4 k18T administrative
support to group
companies
BEENARME
ST
Best Dollar International BVI US$1,000 - - - 100% Investment holding
Limited (note a) (MfiTa)  EBREKES 100057 RERR
Excellent Top Corporation Hong Kong 1,000 shares, HK$1,000 - - - 100% Investment holding
Limited (note a) BA 1,000 + 1,007 REARR
BEARAR (Wita)
ERMELCEERERAET  PRC U5$500,000 - - - 100% Investment holding
(note a) (fizEa) t 500,000 RERR
ERENESERAF PRC Renminbi - - - 100% Investment holding
(note a) (Mi3fa) h (“RMB") 2,000,000 RESR

AE#2,000,0007C
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. RMB AR Z#EzE (B)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE—RER_E—RAF+_A=+—
2016 and 2015 are as follows (Continued): HREZEMBARGFBELT (&)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid

establishment/ share capital/

operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HMRY/RY,/ CETREZRL/ held by the Company Principal activities
LS Bewd giftgs RALRGR A RER LA IEEH

Directly Indirectly
Ei 554

2016 2015 2016 2015
S8-AF “T-HE SB-AF 35

RARGELERRARAR" PRC RMB10,000,000 - - - 100% Properties

(note a) (Mf3ta) h AR%10,000,00070 development
WEER

Ultimate Frontier Limited BVI Us$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) (MfzEh) KERNES IES RERR

Forebase International Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Provision of services of
Healthcare and Senior Living &% 1% 1AL global high-end
Hotel Management Service healthcare and
Limited (note b) senior care industry

RRERRRAEBEER REZRRRE
RiEERAA (Fzb) BBRREER

1%

Shineful Port Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) B 1R 1T RERR

EXERAA (Fib)

Orient Reward Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) i 15 18 RERR

EXERAR (Hzb)

Equity Stream Limited BVI US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) (Hf3Eh) HERNES IES REmR

Starry Winning Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) ) 1 18T RERR

BEERAT (Mib)
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. RMB AR Z#EzE (B)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE—RER_E—RAF+_A=+—
2016 and 2015 are as follows (Continued): HREZEMBARGFBELT (&)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid

establishment/ share capital/

operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HMRY/RY,/ CETREZRL/ held by the Company Principal activities
LS Bewd giftgs RALRGR A RER LA IEEH

Directly Indirectly
Ei 554

2016 2015 2016 2015
S8-AF “T-HE SB-AF 35

Golden Skyford Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) B 1R 147 RERR

SRARAT (Mib)

Wealthy Reward Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK§1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) &t 1R 1AL Ramk

EEARAE (FFb)

Wellring Limited BVI US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b (Hfztb) LERLES B REZR

Master Force Investments BYI Us$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited (note b) (Hizkb) — HBRLES B AR

Keen Capture Limited (note b) ~ Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding

ERARAT (Hitb) Bk 1R 18T REER

Wealth Glorious Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) &k 1R 1A% RErER

REERAT (MiEb)

Freemaster Limited BVI US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) (HfzEb) KERNES 157 RALR
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. RMB AR Z#EzE (B)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE—RER_E—RAF+_A=+—
2016 and 2015 are as follows (Continued): HREZEMBARGFBELT (&)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid

establishment/ share capital/

operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HMRY/RY,/ CETREZRL/ held by the Company Principal activities
LS Bewd giftgs RALRGR A RER LA IEEH

Directly Indirectly
Ei 554

2016 2015 2016 2015
S8-AF “T-HE SB-AF 35

Moonpray Limited BVI US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) (#f3Eh) KERNES IE RERR

New Scores Limited BVI US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) (Af3ED) EERES IES REmR

Sparkling Alley Limited BVI US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note b) (Hf3Eh) KERNES IE RERR

Capital Knight Limited BVI US$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(note ¢) (FzEc) HERNES B RETR

Easy Chase Limited (note c) Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding

BBRERAR (Mic) B 1R 1A% RERR

Wanwei (Chongging) Business ~ PRC US$400,000 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd." i 400,005 REER

ER (BB p5ER
ERAR (Hikc)

Chongging Wanwei Trading PRC RMB1,000,000 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Development Co., Ltd." i ARE1,000,0007 RERR
(note ¢)

ERERESER

BRAT ()
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

NETZA=+—RHIFE

19. RMIB AR Z#E (&)
RZE—RER_E—RAF+_A=+—

2016 and 2015 are as follows (Continued): AOEZEMBARFBLNT (&) :
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries HMRY/RY,/ CETREZRL/ held by the Company Principal activities
LS Fews giftgs RALRGR A RER LA IEEH
Directly Indirectly
Ei i
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-XE -Z-1F ZB-xE —EI-IF
Nuofute Property Management ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% 100% Properties
Co., Ltd.* (note ¢) P ARE5,00000070 management
ERRERNFER nEER
BRAE" (W)
Chengdu Aoshenda Business  PRC HK$10,000,000 - - 100% - Business management
Management Limited i 10,000,000t BEEE
Liability Co., ™
RPRREHFER
BREMAR
Notes: FfaE -
(@)  Companies disposed on 15 April 2016. (@ BRZZE—A"FHNA+HRALENQT -
(b)  Companies are inactive during the year. (b) FREBEENQF -
(c)  Companies were acquired from business combination as stated () MMEE33FTHEE XA HPUEN AR -
in note 33.
# These entities were established in the PRC and are wholly- # ZEBERNPEIKY - BINTBEDRE -
owned foreign enterprises.
* For identification purpose only.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at BB ERIFE 2 5 5 PR F 8 R 2R gk HA RS

the end of both years or during both years.

TATIEIERES




FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F EEIFR#Z IR B R A =)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
hr BB AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. &
2016 2015
—REF —hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(Fe&E5)
Raw materials BRAE 17,240 12,124
Work in progress EBR 2,567 8,027
Finished goods BURK i 11,038 10,430
Food and beverages BY M 700 510
Hotel merchandise B 5 7 503 355
32,048 31,446

During the year, allowance for inventories of HK$900,000
(2015: HK$4,341,000) was recognised and certain
inventories previously written down were sold at profit.
As a result, a reversal of allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$1,199,000 (2015: HK$1,703,000) has
been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016.

EER - BRERFERHE00,000/87T (=
T—hHF:4341,00087T)  MAET5E
RIEMBFE LSRN - Bt 8#E2-F

—RETZA=T—RHILFE- ﬁﬁwrf
R fBREM@A)1,199,000/8 7T (—F—H%F :
1,703,000 7T) °

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. ERPYIE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
At the beginning of the year £ 134,291 66,950
Additions NE 128 74,329
Exchange adjustments [ 5 FHER 952 (6,988)
Disposal (note 34) HE (MIFE34) (135,371) -
At the end of the year FR - 134,291
Represented by: Hep B

Land use rights 43 R - 50,107

Construction costs and capitalised BERKARE AR
expenditure - 84,184

134,291




21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

22.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
NE+-_A=+—HILFE

HE-T—

(Continued)

21.

The analysis of carrying value of properties under

development is as follows:

BERPYE (B)

R\ REEITOT

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Outside Hong Kong BBEIN
— 50 years or more (long leases) - B0FHMN F (REEE) - 50,107

Properties under development were classified as current
asset as the construction period of the relevant properties
development project was expected to complete in the

normal operating cycle.

HRTERARYEFAERE 22RAKRN
EFREEBATK  WERTYVELR

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. E5 RHMEWERRK
2016 2015
—F-AF —T0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT THEIT
(Restated)
(r=E5))

Trade receivables (note a) B SRR (WHiEa)

— with third parties -E=75 58,174 110,913
— with related companies (note d) - A (FisEd) 22,276 17,637
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note b) & : FBREEHE (HsEb) (10,956) (10,871)
69,494 117,679
Deposits and other receivables e RHE M ERERK 17,059 27,544
Prepayments SEENE ] 1,826 1,680
Total trade and other receivables B 5N EMEKER AT 88,379 146,903

The amount of deposits and other receivables expected to
be recovered after more than one year is HK$2,455,000
(2015: HK$Nil). All of the other trade and other receivables,
apart from those mentioned are expected to be recovered

within one year.

FEHZAR —F R E 2 e N E A UK
AEHR2,45500087T (ZE—HF: &
BIL) ° bR batESN - 2EEALE Z MM
FEM AR RIEHIZE R — S AU E -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BS REMBEWERT (8)
(Continued)
(a) Trade receivables (a) B FEWER

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivables.

The Group allows an average credit period of O to 90
days to its trade customers. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy are set out in note 41.3. The
following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables,
net of allowance for doubtful debts, based on the date
of delivery of goods or date of rendering of services
which approximated the respective dates on which
revenue was recognised.

AREBE L E 5 AR B (T
R sl L5 IR SR R 1

AEERESRFAPETHEEEES
BOEQH - BRAEEBEEERE
RE— SREBEHRNE413 - U T A
BEXNERFIRHERSH B (R
R = BEEE) 27N E S E
I BR TN RER BB E 5 B UREE R

ERES DA o

2016 2015

—F-AF —

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT T

(Restated)

(F&E5))

Within 90 days 0 HRK 52,565 87,563
91 to 180 days 912 180H 7,952 17,111
181 to 365 days 181 & 365H 7,890 7,811
Over 365 days i@ 365 H 1,087 5,194

69,494 117,679
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B 5 REMBWER (F)

(Continued)

(b) ESZBUHAERRZRE

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables is B S WO EEEE A FEERR
recorded using an allowance account unless the o EAEERBWERB HER
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is RIBRAN - FELLIER NREE B ER
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written W E 5 FE AR R Hi s o

off against trade receivables directly.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

The movements in provision for doubtful debts FAEERREBE 2 ZHIT
recognised during the year are as follows:

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—-FRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&75))
As at 1 January w—H—H 10,871 11,087
Exchange adjustments PE % B 3) (132)
Provision for doubtful debts recognised B HER R85 B 8 277 27
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts R BE# & # @ (189) (111)
As at 31 December W+=—B=+—H 10,956 10,871

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade RZF—RF+ZHA=+—H &*&%
receivables of approximately HK$10,956,000 (2015: 5 & %8 49 410,956,000 7T ( =
HK$10,871,000) were individually determined to T—FHF 10,871,000 ) HWE S
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables fqﬁlﬁﬁ KEEREERATRE © %
related to customers that were in financial difficulties 1 RIRLE HY FE U AR SR ERE 38 B FS IR

and management assessed that only a portion %’EE’J%)E'EEE BB E T HTRAER

of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific provision for doubtful debts
of HK$277,000 (2015: HK$27,000) was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

eI EUERR - Alt - HEZZ

—R"E+-A=+—HLFE B
PRI RERE 2770008 (=
— T4 : 27,000/87T) °
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

22. BE5 R HEMBWERT (B)

() REERE 5 BIERK

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are RFER SR RER BRERNE Z FEI
neither individually nor collectively considered to be RN ZBREIE AT T
impaired are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —hHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(Fe&E7)
Neither past due nor impaired s I ARRE 42,384 50,665
Within 30 days past due BHI30 HEl AN 5,291 14,148
Over 31 days but within 90 days BHARIB 31 BT EB®90 A
past due 7,607 37,872
Over 91 days but within 365 days FHREBA 91 BB B 365 H
past due 13,922 10,853
Over 365 days past due #HARIE 365 H 290 4141
Total Rk 69,494 117,679

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

SR 458780 H A R B 2 PR MK R 5K BT
eI SRR A o

o

EEHMEEIRE 2 R AR TR B AN S
B MR BE RIFERIL IR Z 2T
NEFER - BBELAELR - BNME
SERWEBSEANEL - I LBEEES
DR AR 2EEE - WEEERE
BE A TRERIERERRE -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(d) Amounts due from related companies

The balances that are arisen from normal sales
transactions, are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
expected to be settled according to their respective
credit terms which are similar to those with third
parties.

Mr. Shen Yong, the controlling shareholder, has
undertaken to indemnify the Group against any
losses that may results from the non-recovery of the
receivables and agreed that the Group could set-off
the amounts due from related companies with the
amount due to a director, Mr. Shen Yong, in future.

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-

TERM BANK DEPOSIT WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY MORE THAN THREE MONTHS/
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits

Restricted bank deposits represent deposits placed to the
government as security for custom of import and export of
trading. The deposits will be released upon the expiry of
the contract. It carries interest at market rates which range
from 1.35% to 2.35% (2015: 2.35% to 2.60%) per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Short-term bank deposit with original
maturity more than three months

Short-term bank deposit carries interest at 1.00% (2015:
0.76%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The maturity would be on 18 July 2017.

22. BE5 R HEMBWERT (B)

(d) FEUBARE A BFIR

RIEFHER HMELREERSEE
2R NARBEENEED (&
F=NEEHNEE) E1TEE -

YERR AR 3R BR BB 5t A B AGE R E T A R
Y& o] 1 WAt ok 1 B AR Y S TR T T
& YRBRKEEN—RES (F
BtE) FRIAT HIRE UL EREE 1~ A5
15 o

23. ZIRSIRITEN REHHAEBE

=@ ARG HRITER RITE
HRERE

ZIRH|RITHERK

ZRHBITFERIIEFHRNBEZFR
EREPELDES ZHEME - ZFHFR
BRE R EmRRER - BE—FT—X
FHZA=Z1THLHFE  ZFF3EE
F135%£235%(=ZF —HF :235%
£2.60%) ZTIHBFIERTE

FEIH BB =8 AR ERRIT
(2
RE—E—AFT-A=+—HILFE
EIRATIF RIS 1.00% (ZF— 1% -
076%) it 5. - EMEHBR -F—+L4
A+ \BEH -
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24.
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RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSIT WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY MORE THAN THREE MONTHS/
BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

Bank balances

Bank balances of the Group represented short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances carry interest at market rates which ranged from
0.01% to 0.35% (2015: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Bank balances and cash, restricted bank deposits and
short-term bank deposit with original maturity more
than three months totalling HK$11,197,000 (2015:
HK$19,660,000) denominated in RMB are placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

23.

NETZA=+—RHIFE

ZIRFIRITER R HEA
=8 ARG HARITERRITE
BHERE (B)

SRITHE R

REB 2 RITHERIE=EAHATE
HreEBFER - BE-_T—RF+_-A
=+t—RIEFE - RITEBREEF0.01%
Z035%(ZF—1%F :001%%0.35%)
B e

RITEHRERE  XRBRITERER
A BBE=EANERRITERA K
11,197,000/ 7T (ZZ—H % : 19,660,000
BT - MUAAREEFHE - FRNPEAR
1T ARBIIFAIBRAANER - RIE
REISMNEE IR RGI RINEREE - HE RN
RERGD] - NEERESBRRERR
SNE TSV ERTT I A RIS SR RN

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B R EMESTIR
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
(Restated)
(Fe &%)
Trade payables Z S ERNER 79,295 90,742
Construction payables JERT TR - 35,040
Advanced from third parties REFE=HHRK 34,348 42337
Accrued expenses and other payables ezt E R M EMERNERER 35,318 45,046
148,961 213,165
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25.

26.

(Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables, based
on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period.

NETZA=+—RHIFE

24. B5 R EMBEMARK (B)

AT RIREBEZEZEHNBERRZINNE
DN RRARE DA ©

2016 2015

—E-REF —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TFHETT

(Restated)

(#eE5)

Within 90 days 90HRW 43,516 73,046
91 to 180 days 91%180H 3,796 5,651
181 to 365 days 181 365H 8,819 9,596
Over 365 days HiA 365 H 23,164 2,449
79,295 90,742

The average credit period on purchases of goods is O to 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the
credit timeframe.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The balances that are non-trade in nature are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The
balances that are arose from normal purchase transactions,
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and expected to be
settled according to their respective credit terms which are
similar to those with third parties.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount due to a director are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable in December 2018.

25.

26.

BEZVHEEHR0ENA - KEER
B RREREEBOR - BIRATE EAERK
BMEE R AL -

FE A+ BR Bt 2 R SR

FEHMENGEHRBEER 2B NAR
BREE KB REBXIZEHRD
EEA - 2B NFEMBRESANEE]
(BRE=771L) &H -

Bif—2EEME

JEf—REEHEABEET REKREAR
“E-NFF+_AEE-
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27. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group has leased a motor vehicle with cost of
approximately HK$702,000 under finance lease during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. The lease term
is b years. Effective interest rate underlying the obligation
under finance leases is fixed at respective contract dates at
2.75% per annum for both years.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had obligation under
finance leases payable as follows:

Total minimum lease

27.

NETZA=+—RHIFE

MEREEE

RBEE_T-—RFR-_ZEZ-—AFT_A
=t+—BLEFE AEBEUREHEREA
—#B)TEE - BARKY702,00078 T - 1HEHA
ROF - BEHEETZERNEREE R
BRBEHERNE2.75% -

RZE—RF+-_A=+—8 ' X&£8#%
BT EANBEREST

Present value of minimum

payments lease payments
REHEEMRERE REHEAREE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF —E-KRE —E-hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHERT FHET
Amounts payable under MEHERLTE
finance leases
Within one year —F AR 160 160 156 148
More than one year but BB —FEEINME
less than two years - 160 - 156
160 320 156 304
Less: future finance charges 5 : AEFBER X (4) (16)
Present value of lease HESETRE
obligations 156 304
Less: amount due for settlement g : 7+ —1{& B R 3| &f
within twelve months HERFIE
(shown under current GEREEE)
liabilities) (156) (148)
Amount due for settlement Rt EARBEE
after twelve months KR IE - 156

The Group's obligation under finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased asset.

AEBEZHEHEETRUNEEAEESR
ERFMAEEREAmM -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. IR
Number of shares Share capital
BREE &N
2016 2015 2016 2015
—F-R"E  ZT-0F ZB-xF —T0F
000 '000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B F% TERT FHET
Ordinary shares issued ERTRAZNEER
and fully paid:
As at 1 January W—F—H 327,897 327,897 99,076 99,076
Issue of shares on RZE—RF
27 January 2016 (note a) — A= t+tBETRM
GED)) 71,220 - 124,635 -
Issue of shares on RZE—RF
13 October 2016 (note b) +A+=8%TRH5
(FfitzEb) 57,292 - 68,751 _
As at 31 December nt+—_A=+—H 456,409 327,897 292,462 99,076
Notes: BfaE -
(@)  On 27 January 2016, the Company has allotted and issued (@ RZZE—RF-AZ++tR ARARERES

(b)

71,219,512 ordinary shares of HK$1.75 each as the total
consideration in respect of the acquisition of Capital Knight
Group. The transaction was completed on 27 January 2016 (see
note 33).

On 13 October 2016, the Company has allotted and issued
57,292,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.2 each to the bonds
holders in order to settle the bonds with aggregate principal
amount of HK$67,000,000 (see note 32).

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a
par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(b)

(c)

& 1.75% B 3 2 8517 71,219,512 % & i@
% + {E A Capital Knight £ EURiE EBRIER
B - ZRBER_E—A"F—HF=-+tA%
B (RMIEE33) »

RZE—RETATZ=A  ARAIEAES
F5 A ABCE K 351757,292,000 lg G % 1.2 )%
TUHVEBAL - A EEZ 424N E 67,000,000
BT (RHfE32) -

RIBEEB R ANEDISE 13515 -
BEmE -

RRBEBAR

BARFAAGREDIRE IR S
TRARRRE LA REBRENEE—F
IR - MARBIZHBEEMS - FTE
ERRFEREFER -
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29. RESERVES

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Merger reserve

Merger reserve was created as a result of the
acquisition of common control entities. The acquisition
was accounted for using merger accounting as
detailed in note 3.3.

Contribution reserve

Contribution reserve represents contributions from
shareholders for indemnity liabilities payable for
periods prior to 30 June 2003.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC laws applicable to wholly-
foreign owned investment enterprises, subsidiaries
of the Company operating in the PRC are required
to set up a general reserve fund and appropriate at
least 10% of respective company’s annual profit after
tax, as determined under the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
balance of the reserve equals to 50% of its registered
capital. This fund can be used to make good losses
and to convert into paid-up capital.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve represents the cumulative
charge to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for employee share option
awards.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchanges differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3.9.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

29. #E

aHtREE
BHtEEDEBRERRE S ERE

oo WEEERASHE .ﬁﬁzﬁ)\ﬁ%
Fl$| E:Bﬁuf?)?)o
HERBIOIRENR_-_ZZT=FAH
=T HZAHSREENBEEEND
/éfo

EERKE
*ETJ%%E?H%@?I\PE%%‘&%E’JEPI%

7 ARERFBREENHBATAE
RE—MEEES  WEERA TE’J
FERBRBEBEFNZED 10% (REF
e RAIREREE) BE—RH
HES  EEREEHESHEZM
BARMB0% BIE - ESAWAR
WEEE MR A ERA -

BRERAE

B LR B IR 2R 8
BakEt2ERERIFANROE
A -

P 53 (ot e B2 3 A R B AR O SE TS 0 B 75
BERMELNABENZRH - %HhB
RIBMTE3 9 PAEIM S SRR R -
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES BEEHEERE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities INTAERAEENBRARAEREE
recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position BERBEEEANERAFERBATFE
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: 2 BH)
Withholding
tax on
undistributed Depreciation
profits from allowances in
the PRC excess of
subsidiaries related
REH depreciation
HEAR Intangible BHER
HkAE assets gz Total
RANE B BREE FERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAT FAT TR
(Restated) (Restated)
(mE5) (mE5)
As at 1 January 2015 RZE-—hF—A—H - - 211 211
Addition through business FRERAMAE (HE33)
combination (note 33) - 6,842 - 6,842
Credited to profit or loss (note 13)  FAMBZHEFA (MFE13) - - (113) (113)
As at 31 December 2015 (Restated) R =—Z—H%E+— ﬂ +—B
and 1 January 2016 (2&7@?\]) “E2-R¥-A-H - 6,842 %8 6,940
Charged/(credited) to profitor loss — REZHIH/ (GEA) (FEE13)
(note 13) 1,800 (969) (98) 733
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—"E+-A=1—H 1,800 5,873 - 7,673

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$148,000,000
(2015: HK$96,770,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses do not expire under
current legislation. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the above tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

The Group is also liable to withholding tax on dividends to
be distributed from the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises
in the PRC in respect of its profits generated from 1
January 2008. Deferred tax liabilities of HK$1,800,000
(2015: HK$Nil) was recognised for the distributable profits
not yet paid out as dividends that are generated by the
PRC subsidiaries of the Company during the year.

N B A R R 1 18 5 18 148,000,000
B (ZZE—FH4F 96,770,000 7T) LA
HEERRERBIUA - BIFRITEN » 3%
EREEBY AT - AREETERARK
i A ORI A A T S R RIE
EFRIEEE o

AEEBNERAEBEFRNINEDE
NESEEE (A-ZEFENF—F—HMU
RERFIMAESE) BATENH - RER -
AR BEMBRAREENAD KRS
TRHNESREFNEHERBECHBAG
1,800,000 (ZE—RF : T98IL) °
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HE-T—

31. SECURED LOANS

NETZA=+—RHIFE

31. WWEM

As at 31 December 2016, the secured loans were RZZE—RF+A=+—10 BEHFEXK
repayable as follows: AR TYIHARAER -
2016 2015
—E—RE E— R
HK$'000 HK$000
FER FAET
Within one year — current portion —FN - REED 1,933 62,006
Non-current portion IERENEL
After one year but within two years R—FBERRFEA 2,025 -
After two years but within five years RRFRERAFR 6,671 -
After five years RAFIEZ 29,269 -
37,965 -
39,898 62,006
In September 2016, the Company signed two mortgage MRZZE—RENA  NATIFEMIERE
loans facilities with an aggregate principal amount of CAD EXRRLE &5 & 458 /7,000,000 10 7T
7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$41,300,000). ($H$ A#741,300,000587T) ° i EHiRBE

The mortgage loans facilities are secured by land
and buildings with carrying amount of approximately
HK$82,539,000 (note 16), repayable within fifteen years
and bear an interest rate of 2% plus prime rate per annum
and guaranteed by a director, Mr. Shen Ke. The loan
facilities will be reviewed periodically until the maturity
date. In the opinions of the directors of the Company, the
effective interest rate of the secured loans approximated to
the interest rate of 4.7% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2016.

On 24 December 2014, the Company signed a secured
term loan facility (“the Loan”) with an aggregate principal
amount of US$13,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$100,847,000).

The Loan was secured by land and buildings of
approximately HK$80,858,000, guaranteed by Forebase
Victoria Holdings Limited, two directors of the Company
and a related company, had a maturity term of two years
and borne a fixed interest rate of 14% per annum. The
Loan was fully repaid during the year ended 31 December
2016.

A& LARRTEI (B 49 82,539,000 78 T #) 1 b
REFERR (HiE16) - AR TRFERNE
B FEERRREBNEM2%  AER
B SE A HEAR - % ERRE KRB EAT
HEITEHIRET o K AEERR  %FH
RERRBE_ZE—RF+A=+—H
JJ:QEEE}‘]E\F\%'J—'—/OE¢547%

RZE—NE+-_A=-+WMAE » KQF%F
E—IHR4 54 13,000,000F 70 (F8E
R #7100,847,00087T) MIKEF AR HE
HEE ([ZEx]) -

ZE R A#180,858,000 4 T A i K AETF
YE #% 38 - I A Forebase Victoria Holdings
Limited * R ARIMBEE K —HBEB QA
= 13'*1% HAIR AW - TEM%E’J%
FHEAE - ZEREREBEZZ—F

X H7

TZA=+— Eﬁifi%ﬂ%ﬁ
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32. BONDS 32. &%

2016 2015
—F-AF L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Bonds carried at fixed coupon rate of BEF 6% [EEREFFE
6% per annum FEMES 20,000 20,000

Bonds carried at fixed coupon rate of 1B E 5 8% & F EH F F=
8% per annum FTEMES 20,000 20,000
40,000 40,000

The Company entered into two placing agreements with
a placing agent issued two 6% coupon unlisted bonds on
6 August 2014 and 10 October 2014 with the principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 each within the placing period.
The amounts are repayable within 96 months from the date
of issue, which are 5 August 2022 and 9 October 2022
respectively.

The Company issued two 8% coupon unlisted bonds
with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 each on
23 January 2015 and 1 June 2015 respectively. The
amounts are repayable within 96 months and 60 months
respectively from the date of issue, which are 22 January
2023 and 31 May 2020 respectively.

The Company issued six 5% coupon unlisted bonds
with the aggregate principal amount of HK$47,000,000
on 29 March 2016. The amounts are repayable within
36 months from the date of issue, which is 28 March
2019. In addition, the Company issued two 6% coupon
unlisted bonds with the aggregate principal amount
of HK$20,000,000 on 7 April 2016. The amounts are
repayable within 96 months from the date of issue, which
is 6 April 2024. The bonds with aggregate principal amount
of HK$67,000,000 were fully repaid by allotting and issuing
57,292,000 ordinary shares at HK$1.2 each on 13 October
2016 (note 28).

AAalE—BRERIER WM EE#H
FEOURZE—NFNARBE-Z—N
F+ATHESHADZEITMH AL
/510,000,000 7T « 2EF F X 56% H)
ELETMES - ZF2FEANETTHHEET
BEANEE  BBASAZS-__F
NARBR-ZZE-_—_F+AALH-

ARAR_E—RHF—A-+=ZBEK=F
—RAFANA—BORBETMOAESER
10,000,000/ 7T ~ =M F F & 5 8% 8 3E
EfES - ZESEASRREITAER
59618 A & 601E AAEE - EIHH 5 7
AB_E_—F—A-+-RAR-E_ZF
AA=+—H8-

ARARZFE—RE=ZAZTHBHETAX
PR #5877 47,000,000 7T ~ FHEF A
KZE%RMIELMNES - ZFERED R
REITHE B 36 A NEE - 2IHBE R
“E-AF=ZAZFNARB < WHN ARF
R-ZZE-—REOALAHTRO AT AR
/%20,000,00078 7T « R F M E 6% H)
FLEMES - ZFLBANFINEITAH
REEeEANEE - BIHE R T _F
MANE - ZFAE 4% /567,000,00078
THEHFER -_E—A"FTAT=REB
A M 1.278 JT o % & 317 57,292,000 A%
ERRERRER (FIE28) -
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

As disclosed in note 2, in January 2016, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest in Capital Knight Group by
allotting and issuing 71,219,512 new ordinary shares. On
27 January 2016, the shares were allotted and issued at
fair value of HK$1.75 each, amounted to approximately
HK$124,635,000 (note 28). Capital Knight acquired 100%
equity interest of Nuofute Property Management from
independent third parties at a total cash consideration of
RMB5,000,00 (equivalent to HK$6,232,000) on 24 July
2015.

Since the Company and Capital Knight are under the
common control of Mr. Shen Yong and Ultra Harvest both
before and after the acquisition of Capital Knight Group, the
acquisition of Capital Knight Group was accounted for as a
business combination under common control (“Common
Control Business Combination”). The details of subsidiaries
acquired from Common Control Business Combination is
disclosed in note 19 .

. BHEH

WM 2T HEE - ARER T —RF
— AE BRI K EE1T71,219512 T &
AU BE Capital Knight 52 B & SPALHE -
—E-RNF-A=Z+tH - ZERMEA
REESRL75BITHETRE LT £
EE#124,635,000/8 7T (Bf7E28) ° Capital
Knight* —Z—RF+A-+HBEBEB
FoHWEAESHYESE2IBRE - £
B&RE A ARES000,0007T (FHE R
6,232,000 7T) °

B 7 & 2 & NCapital Knight# Capital
Knight E BB = EHAE X R EBE LR E
K Ultra Harvest £ A #£ &l - A bt - W &
Capital Knight 5 B /& & L[R5 H) T A5
B ([HEESIEEE O] - EIEHIZE
A GESRK B QR AR E19%

?Eo
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 33. ¥% 56 (&)
(@) common Control Business Combination (a) HEREEHIZEFEH
The following is the reconciliation of the effect arising AT B E L REG 25 E G 4R 6 B
from Common Control Business Combination on the TERRELENTER IR

consolidated financial statements:

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_T-AFT-HA=+T—HILF
i1
Represented by:
The Group
(after Common
Control
Business
Combination)
The Group from
(before continuing
Common operations
Control Capital RE:
Business Knight X£E
Combination) Group (RitEHE%  Discontinued
5 Capital EREHE) operation
(AL REH Knigh Subtotal RABE BAI
E3 ) &8 UH) Fexh Rexh

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000
AT AT TET AT TET

(note 34)
(Bt 34)
Revenue & 386,114 27,145 413,259 413,259 -
Cost of sales HERK (385,249 (16,516) (401,765) (401,765) -
Gross profit EF | 865 10,629 11,49 11,494 -
Other income EA 7,384 39,079 46,463 46,460 3
Selling and distribution expenses $4& K5 4B % (10,398) - (10,398) (10,398) -
Administrative expenses TBREY (36,323) (849) (37,172) (33,401) (3,771)
Research and development PRES
EXPenses (5,664) - (5,664) (5,664) -
Other operating expenses EEemy (12,070) (1,901) (13.971) (13971) -
Finance costs BEM K (17,822) - (17,.822) (17,822) -
(Loss)/profit before income tax  BRFTSHiAT (Bi8) /%A (74,028) 46,958 (27,070) (23,302) (3,768)
Income tax expenses SRS (3,628) (2,357) (5,985) (5,985) -
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BB) /%7 (77,656) 44,601 (33,055) (29,287) (3,768)
Other comprehensive expense  E2EHX
ltems that may be reclassified R TTEHHER
subsequently to profit or loss: ~ BZAIEE ¢
— Exchange differences on - BERINIB AR
translation of financial B RREN
statements of overseas EH =%
subsidiaries (22,721) (615) (23,336) (23,336) -
Other comprehensive AEEEM2EAY
expense for the year (22,721) (615) (23,336) (23,336) -
Total comprehensive XEE2E (B%) /

(expense)fincome for the year Uy A #4458 (100,377) 43986 (56,391) (52,623) (3,768)




FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F EEIFR#Z IR B R A =)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
hr BB AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE

33. XHAH (&)
HEEHEBEH (H)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(@) Common Control Business Combination (a)

(Continued)

The following is the reconciliation of the effect arising
from Common Control Business Combination on the
consolidated financial statements (Continued):

AT REXFIEHIRS G RS
ﬁ%i&i‘%%iﬁﬁ%i%ﬁﬁﬁ% (%) :

As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=ZHA=+—H
The Group The Group
(before (after
Common Common
Control Capital Control
Business Knight Business
Combination) Group  Combination)
REE Capital EH
(m/\ﬂ}‘ﬁjﬂ Knight  (RitE#EH
EZ =gty 8 EBE6t%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W M KRR 114,291 79 114,370
Club memberships MY 600 - 600
Intangible assets W EE - 43,715 43,715
Deposits for purchase of property, BEWE  HEN
plant and equipment B sn 206 - 206
115,097 43,794 158,891
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7 31,212 234 31,446
Properties under development BRERPYE 134,291 - 134,291
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EmERER 127,381 19,522 146,903
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIRITER 11,768 - 11,768
Short-term bank deposit with original REERBB=EA
maturity more than three months AR ITER 1,000 - 1,000
Bank balances and cash IRITEESR NIR S 44,039 5,404 49,443
349,691 25,160 374,851
Current liabilities pE=NE
Trade and other payables féf%&ﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ,m 208,340 4825 213,165
Amounts due to related companies JEf R A A 94,334 6,380 100,714
Current taxation BERFR 18 2,413 654 3,067
Obligation under finance leases BMEMERT 148 - 148
Secured loans HHED 62,006 - 62,006
367,241 11,859 379,100
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (ARG BEFE (17,550) 13,301 (4,249)
Total assets less current liabilities EEBERREBERE 97,547 57,095 154,642
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(@) Common Control Business Combination

(Continued)

The following is the reconciliation of the effect arising
from Common Control Business Combination on the
consolidated financial statements (Continued):

AR oK B RE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
NE+-_A=+—HILFE

33. XHAH (&)
(@) HEZHERBEH (H)

AT REXFRHIREE 4R e/
BMRELNTENGR (B)

The Group The Group
(before (after
Common Common
Control Capital Control
Business Knight Business
Combination) Group  Combination)
REE Capital EH
(R R Knight  (REREH
EBKE Bt 58 EKEHE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT TAT
Capital and reserves EERHE
Share capital RN 99,076 - 99,076
Reserves & (177,612) 43,986 (133,626)
Total equity attributable to equity EATERZRE
shareholders of the Company FEfh R (78,536) 43,986 (34,550)
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBAE 98 6,342 6,940
Obligation under finance leases MEMRESET 156 - 156
Amount due to a director JEN—RESZR0E 135,829 6,267 142,096
Bonds &% 40,000 - 40,000
176,083 13,109 189,192
97,547 57,095 154,642
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
(@) common Control Business Combination
(Continued)

The effects of adopting merger accounting for
Common Control Business Combination on the

33. EHEH (B)

(@) HEZHERBEH (H)

RN EBAHRBAHETE
BYHAEE - E—REEEREAR

Group’s basic and diluted loss per share for 2015: #EFEnNTE
Impact on Impact on
basic loss diluted loss
per share in per share in
2015 2015
H_FT-—FHF H-_T-—IF
BRER SREE
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Reported figures before adjustments FRAICE2HRET
(including both continuing and (PIEFELE
discontinued operations) AR R EERS) (23.68) (23.68)
Adjustments arising on Common AR RIEHIES A HES 2 A%
Control Business Combination 13.60 13.60
Restated figures after adjustments FEEHKENET
(including both continuing (BiERELE
and discontinued operations) AR R ZERS) (10.08) (10.08)
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33. XHAH (&)
(b) WEFEEHMRER

33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b) The acquisition of Nuofute Property

Management

The consideration paid for the acquisition of Nuofute
Property Management, the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition

T iEHEE FMEE RN
8 TR EENFAEE ENWE
B - Z—RF+tA-FTWWHZAR

date on 24 July 2015 are summarised as follows: BE:
Carrying Fair value
amount adjustments Total
REE AAEERAE et
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET FET
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 685 - 685
Property, plant and equipment )3 - 32 1% 3545 83 - 83
Intangible assets (note 18) EEE (MI3E18) - 45,616 45,616
Inventories 7E 11 - 11
Trade and other receivables Z 5 N EMEWRR 18,772 - 18,772
Trade and other payables 5 N EMEMER (11,489) - (11,489)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 30) iRIEFIEE & (FH:E30) - (6,842) (6,842)
Income tax expenses FrisiiA X (1,548) - (1,548)
Net assets acquired Pl B R & E 6,514 38,774 45,288
Purchase consideration settled  LAIR @458 7 IWHER(E
in cash 6,232
Bank balances and cash in RETUR BT E A A8y
subsidiaries acquired IRITHEBEIR® (685)
Cash outflow on acquisition of U BB B A RIS HY
subsidiaries RemE 5,547
Total consideration transferred ~ FreEiEsa (g 6,232
Net assets acquired Fr ik s S B (45,288)
Bargain purchase gain arising ~ S AMHELNZE
on the business Wz (FIEES)
combination (note 8) (39,056)
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33. XHAH (&)
(b) WEAERMERERE (H)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b) The acquisition of Nuofute Property

Management (Continued)

As a result of the acquisition of Nuofute Property
Management, the Group is expected to diversify the
business of the Group and enhance the return to the
equity shareholders of the Company. No acquisition-
related costs had been incurred in relation to the
acquisition. Bargain purchase gain arising on
business combination is included in “Other income”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2015. Bargain purchase gain arising from
the acquisition is not expected to be deductible for
tax purpose.

Included in revenue and the loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015, revenue and a net
profit of HK$27,145,000 and HK$7,773,000
respectively were attributable to Nuofute Property
Management. If the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2015, the Group’s revenue would have
been HK$433,617,000 and loss for the year would
have been HK$26,835,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015. This pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

RUEHEFYEREE - AREEH
K Z T ARBER MR HARE
R B AR - BHERWEER
ELEYIEERNAE - RHEHE
ENRBERSFABE-_ZT—OF
tToA=T—HIEFEZHFAERNM
HttzmramR e TEMBEAL- 3
MM E - WRELRNZREWRTEN
TEMB -

BE-_Z-—hAFt-HA=t—81
FRZWmREBEETBEERSFY
XEBEEMWE MR DR &
27,145,000 7T [ 7,773,000 % 7T °
HMEEKEER _-_ZT—AF—A—
&L AAKEH#HE_T—0F
TZA=+—-RIEFEZHRE
/3433,617,000/8 T © FEE BB
26,835,000/87C - AMEZEFHEIFRL
A% - RUBER T MERWER =
E-hF-A-HBTKKAEENE
BRERH W MR RAE - TIIEETR
HREAEMTEA -
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

WITH LOSS 34. HEMBAR CEHKREEHE)

OF CONTROL

On 15 April 2016, the Group disposed of its entire RZZE—RFOA+RH  AEEER
equity interest in Best Dollar International Limited and its j’:ﬁfﬁi 50,000,000 & T — &L 5E = J5 i
subsidiaries (collectively as “Best Dollar Group”) to an £ H 7 Best Dollar International Limited &
independent third party, at a total cash consideration of EW% 7] (£ 5 [Best Dollar £& |) #9
HK$50,000,000. Best Dollar Group carried out all of the 2 #BA%#E o Best Dollar £2 B 48 & 78 & [F #Y
Group’s properties development business, the discontinued Pﬁﬁ%%?é)z 7% (BRIEREER) - B

operation. The disposal was completed on 15 April 2016. BAHEER T —"FHEA+RHTEK °

2016

—E-RE

HK$'000

FERT

Total consideration received

ERERE 50,000

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which ¥4k ZIE4INEER

control was lost BEND
Bank balances and cash IRT1TH ﬁ?&fﬁi 430
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) Y% - #es R (5T 16) 177
Properties under development (note 21) BRAYE (M:E21) 135,371
Deposits, prepayment and other receivables &% « 843018 K& E b FEULER 3% 610
Trade and other payables 5 R EMEMRR (45,689)
Amounts due to related companies FEfHEEER A B 5IE (97,734)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEFEE (6,835)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B QR RS
Total cash consideration ReBRE 50,000
Less: Ve
— Net liabilities disposed of -BEHNEaEFRE (6,835)
- Exchange difference released upon - LENB A RRELA

disposal of subsidiaries M 5 =28 319

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B B A B Ry M Es 56,516
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: AEEEERMIRESRAFEEE
Cash consideration received BUYRERE 50,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEREReRIREEEY (430)

Inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of disposal of subsidiaries

SRHEMBARRANE S K
RBeFEY 49,570
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES WITH LOSS 34. HEMBAR (EHKEEHRE)

OF CONTROL (Continued) (#&)
The loss from the discontinued operation for the current REER F—FEERIECEEFES
and preceding year is analysed as follows: MEESTOT
From 1 January Year ended
to 15 April 31 December
2016 2015

M-B—AF BME-E-HF
~A—-HBE t-A=+-H

B+HHA ILEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Other income g A - 3
Administrative expenses TR (370) (3,771)
Loss before income tax bR FT1S LA ET I8 (370) (3,768)
Income tax expenses iSRS - -
Loss for the year rEEFBE (370) (3,768)
2016 2015

—E-XE —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Loss from discontinued operation AR S TS E A 2 518 (370) (3,768)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB R RS 56,516 -

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operation ERIEREERELEZ
wBE (EE8) 56,146 (3,768)
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

CONTRIBUTIONS

Hong Kong

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income. The mandatory contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to
a cap of HK$1,500 per month. Contributions to the MPF
scheme vest immediately.

Korea

Employees in Korea participate in a National Pension
Scheme which is a mandatory insurance scheme under the
National Pension Act (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the Scheme at a specified rate of the
employees’ monthly income, subject to adjustments and a
cap of monthly income stipulated in the Scheme.

The PRC

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the PRC
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a specified percentage of its payroll costs to the
scheme. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
scheme.

Canada

Employees in Canada participate in a Canada Pension
Plan (the “Plan”) which is a mandatory scheme under
Canada Pension Plan Regulations. The employer and
the employees are required to make a total contribution
of 9.9% on the pensionable earnings, subject to a cap
of pensionable earnings of CAD53,600 (equivalent
to approximately HK$326,000) (2015: equivalent to
approximately HK$362,000).

35. BRIAEFIFHE Z K

&

AREBRE(ERBHIERER RO
RIRBEEE(RBRDD FERZERR
HopfEeatE - BB EHBUER
ANEBZ REHRFURNEE - RiIgRES
e BERERESEARERMERK
AZ5% Z Lo HIshat BIE R - BE R
BEX B ZRHHKLERAE H1,500/8
TC o REERE B 2 BB KR ERE
B o

wH

EHBEZRERESEBZURAESE - EAR
—IRRBIZIR RS AR Z 98 I MERIRE

& ([&&tEl)) - RIEBEZATE BERERE
BxBAREET ARAZEE LI Z
SRR (AT FHRE - BAKGT &I
HRESAWRAZ ERRFAIR) ©

i

AEERTEzHMBARZ2EHHETHR
fF&M 2 ERERTE - B LRIAR
Hg B #H &M Z 5 E L PIBhaT 3 1E H 1
Ko BN EAR B B A AT B R 4R
AHREMAMEARERAHE o

mgx

MERZEEL2HENZEABERRKRSTE
(T%%&t8l))  EA—BERERRAREER
2B HI MR AR o BETEl BEK
EE AT ARAZELI9% B #Ek
PR EH I A A53,60000 7T (HBER
#1326,0008 7T (Z T —FHF : HERH
362,000%870)) °
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36. COMMITMENTS 36. KiE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December (a) E/\ E—RE+A=+—8 IE
2016 not provided for in the consolidated financial RERE MR P IRBEEE R
statements are as follows: HQKEKTEZZDT :
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of THUEB Y E - HEE K
the acquisition of property, plant HEEH 2B ET4
and equipment contracted for BARRS - 117
Capital expenditure in respect of HEERPMEELZ
properties under development EEE-ENGE3
contracted for - 518,568
- 518,685
(b) As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum by RZBE—FRF+-A=+—8 " TF
lease payments under non-cancellable operating R BR 1 %%TH‘E\IETE’J*XETEETH%M
leases are payable as follows: TEARERZAIN NI HEfE B AE -
2016 2015
—~E “ET—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —ER 6,716 7,912
After one year but within five years —FBBRFERN 2,252 7,474
8,968 15,386
Operating lease payments represent rentals payables KEHERIBEAEERE THAE
by the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases Y RS o AEE 2 LS
are negotiated for an average term of 5 years (2015: EEFHAEBRAF (ZE—RF + A

5 years) for the Group. &F) o
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the secured loans of US$8,000,000 (which are
equivalents to HK$62,006,000) were settled with
the current account with a director by increasing
the amount due to a director of approximately
HK$62,006,000.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, aggregate
principal amounts of bonds of HK$67,000,000 was
settled by allotting and issuing 57,292,000 ordinary
shares at HK$1.2 each.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2016,
71,219,512 ordinary shares were allotted and issued
to Ultra Harvest at HK$1.75 each in relation to the
business combination (note 33).

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) adopted by
the Company on 16 June 2003 expired on 15 June 2013.
The Company has adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) on 3 June 2013 whereby the directors of
the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite,
among other eligible participants, employees of the Group
(including directors of any member of the Group), advisers and
consultants, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company. The New Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years ending on 2
June 2023, after which no further options can be granted.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the New Scheme
were nil and 3,278,939 respectively. The total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

37.

38.

NETZA=+—RHIFE

FTEFRERH

(@) BE-_T—R"Et-_A=1+—HLLF
[ - H & 508,000,000 T (0%
FR#762,006,0007%87T) * JhLAIE AN fE
ft— R EF Z FIAX 62,006,000
T2 K—REF2EREPE
it e

(b) HE_ZT—R"F+_A=+—HLHF
g K4 #2%867,000,0005 5T 2 &
HFAR SR .28 2 BIRADE K3
157,292,000 % L i@A% 2 77 R AT -

() BEZZ—X"F+-_A=+—HLHF
€+ 71,219,512 IR EBAR L EIS A BF
A% 1.757%8 7o Bl 3 & 2817 F Ultra
Harvest (Fff5£33) °

U AERIZMNR 5

RRBNR-ZFZ=FRNATNBRBZE
PetEstEl (B8 ) ER-T—=%F<A
THHEER REARBR-_FT-=FRX
A=ZB&@mzsrEoEatE ([#stdl))
ARREREEERER (BREMEE
wemE) AEEEER (BREAKRENRE
MRBRBIZER)  BREFHEAARL
ERBREZZL  URBARREMD -
BOBREOREREARBE —RARF
TRk FEEARBATFE EE-F
“=FRNAZAL - HEAAIR L EING
Pt

N_E—RFR_E—RAF+_A=1+—
B BEFFIER D R ERTTE 2 AR E
Frig Rz B & B o Bl AZ X% 3,278,939
IR o ARIBFTET B R L BB ARAEFT S I 2 IR
DB GRBBEMRIRARTEEITR
7M210% » MBABELEISAARIRE
ol ERADEARFBRRZHE - B
EA—FR T RAIE T EAMEA Z B E
it K BETT R FETRDER TE
BIBEMRREARREEHITRNZ 1% °
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company'’s shares.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option.
Options may be exercised after vesting period and the
exercisable period is set out below.

38. Ul AERNZMR S (&)

TEEHARREREE - T2RRAT
B&E - () ARBBMHREH BB ZEm
B () BOHREERR LB R EZ XA
BFIUT(E ¢ R (i ARRRD ZHE -

BEREARN R L BRI  - BAUE
AR R ERTTE - TTEMT -

Fair value
per share at
Category of Exercise grant date
participant Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable petiod price REHAHZ
S2EEER  RHEAH HEA T TEE AREE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Director A 31 August 2016 31 August 2016 to 1 September 2018 1.37 0.89
EEA - FNA=T—H 31 August 2018 to 30 August 2025
“E-R"¥NA=T—H —Z-\FNA-AH
ET-\FNA=1—H E-Z-RF7\A=1H
Director A 31 August 2015 31 August 2015 to 1 September 2018 141 0.42
31 August 2018 to 30 August 2025
EEA ZE-RENA=T-H ZE-RFN\A=+—H —T-\FhA—H
225 )\FN\A=+—H EZZ-RFN\A=TH
Director B 10 June 2014 10 June 2014 to 1 April 2017 241 2.38
31 March 2017 to 9 June 2024
EZ8 “E-MERATH —Z-mEXATA —T—+FMA—H

ET+F=-A=1—H

2T -MERANR
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PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by a director during the year.

38.

NETZA=+—RHIFE

AR BERMZMNRZ S (&)

TRBEBFANESHAZARABREZ

2016 —E-RE
Outstanding
Outstanding as at
as at 31 December 2016
Category of 1 January 2016 Granted Lapsed R-B—AE
participant Date of grant RZE—RE during the year during the year +=B=1+-H
SEREER REASH  —A-BERTE FRRE FREM e RAT B8
Director A 31 August 2016 - 3,278,939 (3,278,939) -
E%A ~2-RENA=T-B
Director A 31 August 2015 3,278,939 - (3,278,939) -
EEA “E-hFE\A=1—H
3,278,939 3,278,939 (6,557,878) -
2015 —ZE—RF
Outstanding
Outstanding as at
as at 31 December 2015
Category of 1 January 2015 Granted Lapsed RZE—RF
participant Date of grant NZZE—RF during the year during the year +ZA=1+—H
2EEE KHAS  —A-HERIE FRFEH FRER BARTTHE
Director A 31 August 2015 - 3,278,939 - 3,278,939
EE) “T-R¥N\A=1T—H
Director B 10 June 2014 3,238,969 - (3,238,969) -
LS “E-MERATH
3,238,969 3,278,939 (3,238,969) 3,278,939
Number of options
exercisable at the
end of the year
RERATE 2 B iEE B -
Weighted average
exercise price
IETI1TE(E HK$1.41 % 7T HK$1.41 87T
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, a HE_Z—XREkZE—H1FT+=

total of 3,278,939 and 3,278,939 options respectively were
granted to Director A and the estimated fair values of the
options granted on the grant dates were HK$2,922,000

and HK$2,259,000, respectively.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$1,234,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: HK$753,000) in relation to share options granted

by the Company.

A=+—HLFE B FESA
3,278,939 15 i I% 4 K 3,278,939 17 & A%
- RAREAREZEREZ G ARE
B A1l 42,922,000 7T K 2,259,000 7T °

BE_T—A"F+t-A=+—HLFE"
AKEFAR R 2 AR A
#71,234,0007 7T (Z T —H%F : 753,000
ABIT) °
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Director A
resigned as an executive director of the Company on 30
December 2016 and all of his share options were then
lapsed upon his resignation.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Director B
resigned as an executive director of the Company and his
3,238,969 share options were then lapsed in April 2015.

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

2016

Grant date share price HK$1.37
Exercise price HK$1.37
Expected volatility 75.15%
Option life 10 years
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.927%
Early exercise multiple for director 2.8
Exit rate for director 22.593%
2015

Grant date share price HK$1.41
Exercise price HK$1.41
Expected volatility 66.94%
Option life 10 years
Dividend yield 5.26%
Risk-free interest rate 1.799%
Early exercise multiple for director 2.8
Exit rate for director 22.593%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of Company’s share price. The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate. Share options
were granted under a service condition. This condition
has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There was
no market conditions associated with the share options
granted.

38. Ul AERNZMR S (&)

HE-_Z—XNEt+-A=+—RH1EE "
BEEARZE—R"FTA=THBHEAR
NAMITESE @+ E2BERETNEET
BT -

HE-_ZT—AF+_A=+—HLFE"
EEBFEALRBMITES + H 3,238,969
NEBRETIN —ZE—REM AR -

DR BEIVER-BAAEIGE - ZEL
ZEABEIT

—E—-RE

REBEZRE 1.3787x
IEE 1.3738 7T
TEHR R I8 75.15%
B IS A WU 104
& B2 0%
R b A & 0.927%
BEZIRATTTEGE 2.8
EEREE 22.593%
—EF—hF

R BHEZRE 141387t
1B 1.41% 7T
BER IR 66.94%
fE AR WU 104
B x 5.26%
42 B ) 1.799%
BEEZIRATTTEGE 2.8
BEZREX 22.593%

TR MR D iR AR R BB 2 JE SL R 1R
E o BRI BRMEREERE
ZEREGBFRAEREZEE  TER
HMITRERRARZZEEHAE -

BERENERELREETE - TE M
ABBERENESRGH AR BEMRTE
REAFE - BIRETIRE —RIRS &M
B - REAEMESRE < EHAYAR
BERIEE BUL G o FIRHZBRE
W ISR -
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 39. EXRAEERZ S
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRAGREBREREM S ERIRS
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the T s REBEFT A TERNBB R
Group entered into the following material related party Z) o

transactions.

(a) Transactions with related parties (@) BB 5
The Group had the following material transactions RAFE  AEBEBRETIEKNH
with related parties during the year: B2 5)
Name of company Nature of transactions 2016 2015
NCIEE REME “E—RE —E—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt e FET FAET
(Restated)
(|&E7))
EEREEE (£E) Property management (M), (i) & (i) 2,051 1,393
BRAF service fee received
or receivables
BN MEEERGEE
BEEVFHEARBHELL Property management (i), (i) & (iii) - 293
BRAT service fee received
or receivables
BN RN EETERGE
HERE R Property management (i), (ii) & (iii) 1,653 1,077

BRAA service fee received
or receivables

BRI EEE R E

EERFEHMEXERAFT  Property management (i), (i) & (iii) 1,089 253
service fee received
or receivables

B ER YR E R R &

EEXEMEBEARAT  Property management (i), (ii) & (iii) 342 264
service fee received
or receivables

BRI R E T R &

EEMBEEBRAA Property management (i), (ii) & (iii) 3,405 1,174
service fee received
or receivables

BRI R EE R &

SHREBEXERATA] Property management (i), (ii) & (iii) 817 501
service fee received
or receivables

BRI R E R R R

EEREBAMEAFRAGT  Property management (i), (i) & (iii) 36 18
service fee received
or receivables

B ER YR EE R E
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) These transactions were carried out at terms determined
and agreed by the Group and the relevant parties. The
contracts do not have any expiry date until owners’
committee are formed and the owners’ committee can
re-appoint the service provider. As at 31 December
2016, no owners’ committee are set up.

(i) Mr. Shen Yong, the controlling shareholder of the
Company has beneficial interest in these companies.

(i) The related party transactions in respect of above
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules are provided in section “Connected

Transactions” of the directors’ report of this annual

report.

(b) Key management personnel
compensation

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management personnel during the year are as

39. EXRBR 5 ()

(@) BAEEx 5 (48)

GEX

() ZEXZHRAEELBEALEE LIHRE
EEFGETT - XS AL BEAEEE - B
EXTREGRUARIL  ERETZEEA
ENRERBREME - R_F—RF+=A
=t—R TEXIETEES -

i}

PPN L LS e 2
s -

(i) B S HHA E BRI 1A R Y
WiEx s wREmERS -

\

EHRAIE IAABIRE 2 WBENASF
BEFEREE [HERS] — 61
e

(b) TEEEABZME

EEREMTIEERABRERNZB
SHEHINWAT ¢

follows:

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Short-term benefits EEEE R 7,280 8,573
Post-employment benefits BEEL 812 A 54 66

Equity-settled share-based AN EAEE 2
payment expenses RO RFEL 1,234 755
8,568 9,394

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

Other than the related party transactions disclosed
above, no other transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a connected entity
of the director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

BENTBTHAB ZFH TS E
ZEeEEEAXRRLTSEEME

JE °

B ENBEZBBRI PN RERRAE
EAERRE  ARABHMETAERRARE
ERARBEFTCHEECERIERE
BEREGDZZEARS » ZHHAK °
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

NETZA=+—RHIFE

40. KRR R ZBHMRIR R

2016 2015
— ANA S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HEs RERiE - -
Interests in subsidiaries NG £ - _

Current assets REEE
Other receivables H A FEUBR X 1,152 1,152
Amounts due from subsidiaries iR NG BN 96,727 19,477
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RIS 30,928 33,766
128,807 54,395
Current liabilities ik h=Ri=

Other payables H A ERTERER 3,739 3,582
Secured loans BHEH - 62,006
Amounts due to subsidiaries N ENGIE ] 14,136 14,136
17,875 79,724
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(BR) BFE 110,932 (25,329)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABEE 110,932 (25,329)

Capital and reserves EXRFEE
Share capital &N 292,462 99,076
Reserves (note) s (M) (283,355) (300,234)
Total equity RS 9,107 (201,158)

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to a director B —R|EERE 61,825 135,829
Bonds &% 40,000 40,000
101,825 175,829
110,932 (25,329)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 29 March 2017.

Shen Yong

HE

Director

EF

R-E—tF=A-ThBESEEHE

R AR PEEET

Gan Lin
EE
Director

EF
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40. KA R ZBA BRI %k (48)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Bt & -
Share
Contribution options Exchange  Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve Losses* Total
HERE BRERE E X SN wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT TAT FAT FAL
As at 1 January 2015 —E-RF—A—H 8,478 829 (12,623) (46,397) (49,713)
Loss for the year and total AEEBERAEE
comprehensive expense FHEHAYEE
for the year - - - (251,274) (251,274)
Lapse of share options granted AARR L 2 BB E
by the Company (note 38) S (BiEE38) - (1,322) - 1,322 -
Recognition of equity-settled BRARELEE 2
share-based payment BORRR 5
transactions (note 38) (F95E38) - 753 - - 753
As at 31 December 2015 —Z-A%
and 1 January 2016 +-A=+—H
k=E—RFE—H—H 8,478 260 (12,623) (296,349) (300,234)
Profit for the year and REBHEFRAEE
total comprehensive income FEMERAE
for the year - - - 15,645 15,645
Lapse of share options granted ARRIR 2 BB E
by the Company (note 38) 9051 (PB5E38) - (1,494) - 1,494 -
Recognition of equity-settled LXHSJE #E
share-based payment RIS
transactions (note 38) (MT.:£38 - 1,234 - - 1,234
As at 31 December 2016 —ERF
+-A=+—H 8,478 - (12,623) (279,210) (283,355)

*

Accumulated losses represented the distributable reserves to
the equity shareholders of the Company.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations.
The financial risks include foreign currency risk, credit
risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner. The most significant financial risk to
which the Group is exposed as discussed below.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risks.

* SEtEEEN D
1 o

IR T AR B2 BRAERER 2

4. cREREERALBESE

AEBEBNABEEBEYNFER S
Iﬂ%xﬁﬂﬂ&°iﬂﬂM&%%%
Rk - EERR - FIXERERBE SR
h°gﬁ§§@&%?@@@ﬂ-ﬁﬁ&
B A R R EUE B E o NEBIATAR

ZE%EK ﬂﬂ )J_/\TXuTuFﬁi °

AREEFAR SR TE 2 RARkM AR s E
EENFTERR 2T AL EES) o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. cRlEAREERAREBEFE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#&)
(Continued)
41.1 Categories of financial assets and N1 EHMEEREENE
liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated REREMBRRRES 2 BREE T

RUATEREEREMBEDE

statement of financial position relate to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2016 2015
—E-REF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
(Restated)
(&e=75)
Financial assets: ERMEE
Loans and receivables B EBERK
— Trade and other receivables - B 5 REMEARK 86,553 145,223
— Restricted bank deposits - ZRRAFIERITIFEFK 3,090 11,768
— Short-term bank deposit with original - RE|HIREE=@A
maturity more than three months KERERI TR 1,000 1,000
— Bank balances and cash —IRTTHEB RS 52,795 49,443
143,438 207,434
Financial liabilities: SRIAE
Financial liabilities measured at LEERATECSmas
amortised cost
— Trade and other payables - B 5 KEAMFERAREK 132,591 204,939
— Amount due to a director - EN—REEFE 68,325 142,096
— Amount due to related companies - FERTREESE A B FRIE 3,974 100,714
— Secured loans - EHER 39,898 62,006
— Bonds - &% 40,000 40,000
284,788 549,755
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

NETZA=+—RHIFE

41. ERiEREE R A REESE

(#)

41.2 Foreign currency risk

The Group are exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases which give
rise to receivables, payables and bank balances
and borrowings that are denominated in a foreign
currency i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to the risk are
primarily US$, RMB and CAD. The Group ensure
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate.

For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in HK$, translates at spot rate
as at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
reserves resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

41.2 5 E B

AEETBRESTEL LI FAH
BEBHNDEEE 2E/H (HMNE) 5

1B EYRR
KAEE RS

 FERHERR
SRR o EERER

- SRITHEER
&)

ERIBARET  ARBEIT - &
SR BRSSO 3 ik O 455 ] R S HU7K
FoUBRRAESEREEING - L
R IE HIR SR 1 o

WIRARRASEERANERRETE
MASECEREENRBENRRE

18 -

RERES
Eﬂﬂizfﬁié[?_%ﬁ%

EH M BHREBRE
BHELZELFETREEAN -

i O S8R 0iRE
L RABTT Hm?l\
SASEZNE

2016 2015
—E-RE —hF

Net Net

Recognised  Recognised exposure  Recognised  Recognised exposure

assets liabilities =N assets liabilities ElS

ERAEE CHEIEE HOFE CHEREE CRIARE Wi O EE

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT TER TET TAT TAT FAT

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(E=7) (K =71) (L E7)
Us$ e 29,056 (27,619) 1,437 64,330 (92,611) (28,281)
RMB AR 70,470 (63,342) 7,128 31,591 (34,630) (3,039)
CAD hnrc 5,109 (1,211) 3,898 1,117 - 1,117
104,635 (92,172) 12,463 97,038 (127,241) (30,203)




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ¢ —ZF—/XF i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hi A B AR WA

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T—

NETZA=+—RHIFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41. ERiEREE R A REESE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicated the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss for the year (and
accumulated losses) that would arise if the exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure as
at the end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the
pegged rate between HK$ and US$ would not be
materially affected by any changes in movement in
value of the US$ against other currencies.

(%)

41.2 ShisE B (48)

TRERMINREARAERFEE
AR O EERNE BEEEE) -
MRER P A H A R b & 8 g =2
AREBNAFEER (RRAFE
18) BHENEREE - gitms
BB TEE T FNBMEERTE
RAETHEMEENERELEH
WEBATE -

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-hF

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign (Increase)/ in foreign (Increase)/
exchange decrease in exchange  decrease in
rates profit or loss rates  profit or loss
HEER B& BN [ 2 Ba
tH (1ghm) R (3gm)
(TF%) > (TB&) Ve
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
us$ ETT 0.5% (7) 0.5% 118
(0.5%) 7 (0.5%) (118)
RMB AR 6.0% (428) 6.0% 152
(6.0%) 428 (6.0%) (152)
CAD iz 16.0% (624) 16.0% (149)
(16.0%) 624 (16.0%) 149

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’ profit or loss
for the year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling as at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

ERITAODITERRREEEERE
NEBNNEERENFERE R
BRaXINRATE RERE
5l BIREE IR MERRNIRT
PERIE DBTT ©
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in exchange rates had been applied to remeasure
those financial assets and liabilities held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk as at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group’s presentation currency. The management
adjusted the sensitivity rate for assessing foreign
currency risk after considering the impact of the
volatile financial market conditions during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

41.3 Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debtor as at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate provision for doubtful
debts are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

4. gRiEREER A REERE

(#)

41.2

413

ShigsEBR (48)
BRENTHBRREZEHEARE
et B AEERN IS HREERINE
RN AEECHEERAE - &0
$ﬁ$@%§ﬂ%i?l\%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ?ﬁ%$&?ﬂﬁ
REAKB2IEEMELNER - &
BERERBEE_T—RF1+-HA
—t-HLEFESRMIRENTE
% - BEEBHEINE R AT A8

ERER

RZE—RFE+ZA=+—8 ' ' &&
ERARSHFHREBITAEERT
mﬂﬁﬁm“ﬁﬁ$%ﬁmrkéf

B0 - EABLSEMEMRRRE
%meaﬁwéﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁo

SREEERR  AEEEEECER
&— 1llﬁ%ié,f“z;51éffﬁf'<%ﬁ =8
R EA B SRR - HERERERIZAE
a b B E RS o Lol - AREIE
HE AR FIRE R E B RUSRR
R E SR - RN A E S
BRI D HORARAEM - Eytlttﬁﬁ:. :
ARAREEARAEENEER
BERR

RBECNEERBAR - HREE
BeTERNEERERFRRERT
= IEARREIRTT o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. cRIEAREER AL EEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(Continued)
41.3 Credit risk (Continued) M3 EERR (8)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the Hong Kong,
which in aggregate accounted for 20% (2015: 20%)
of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2016.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 14%
(2015: 35%) and 52% (2015: 74%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

LiEE D AEENEEETRER
FERERES EER_T— /‘*\E
+_ A=+t BESEKEZ®
20% (ZZ—FH%F : 20%) °

rEEEREESETRR BAKE
AEEZAZFE LA ﬁﬁ%}fa’aféi%
Euﬁzﬁﬁfkﬁ%lﬁmkglf’f%ﬁﬂlﬁzﬁﬁ%x
HRE14% (ZZE—FR4F 35%) &
52%( =— £¢-74%>

41.4 Interest rate risk 41.4 7= & B

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate obligation under finance leases
(see note 27) and bonds (see note 32). The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits and
secured loans (see note 31).

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
(i) prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s
bank balances denominated in HK$, USD and CAD
and (ii) RMB deposits interest rate stipulated by the
People’'s Bank of China arising from the Group’s bank
balances denominated in RMB.

AEEHRRESRERERME (RN
127) RMEFH (RMFE32) AR E
BEFERER - A&LE B ALK $IE A
EERBER - BEREEEEERIE
@ﬂd‘_’ﬂﬁ I TR T IR B AR
B O BF SRR LA S 4R 1 ©

$%lﬁEmW§ﬁ TERREIRE
F(RKIEE31) RIR e mEFERER

AEEEENSRE ENEREFR
RAWFEREECRRERE—F o A
%E@}ﬁiﬂmgfljrfgﬁqj (i)
REBLAETT - ETRITEHEAR
1THE R A IR 1T T 3% A1 K B) K (i)
REEUAREHERNRITESRER
B EARRITAMEAREFHRE
KRE o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

41.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments as at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding as at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis points (2015: 10 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2015:
10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would increase/decrease
HK$40,000 (2015: HK$62,000).

41.5 Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserve of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liguidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the details of the remaining
contractual maturities as at 31 December 2016
and the Group’s non-derivative liabilities and
derivative liabilities which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current as at the end of each reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

41. ERiEREE R A REESE

(%)

41.4

41.5

FlRER (8)
BBESHT

AT BURRE DT IRIE R & BIRIET
A TEREMMEXRERROEE o 2R
FNHEMREAARZ MO SR TAR
BEREFERIH - EAHAETEE
B A B o N 2 | e B BR A IR 10
EEE (T —1HF : I0BEE)
1 REREIEEH A RE IR A pE &
AR

WREF,/ BKIOEEZ (ZT—F
F10EEE) mMArEEME =4
BAE AIAEBHEE_T—AF
+-A=+—BLEENEEE
#hn, /A 40,0008 T (ZE—H
4 1 62,00087T) °

nBETER

ARBZBRREHREERDEST
2 AREERTRREHERE
REE BEEES R RN EAEE SR
B tmmeEERLRRERDES

== oh
mz= °

TERFHIRZF—FRF+A=1t—
BARSESIITERERITERENS
TAEOBBIEN - TIRIES KRR
REang (BREEREHNES (fH
RFR) RERE IR Z AN =5t
B2 MEMFK) RAREE R GEAER
BT HERE -




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ¢ —ZF—/XF i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
hr BB AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. THEREERERAAEERE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(Continued)
415 Liquidity risk (Continued) M5 REEEER ()
2016 —E—-RE
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
or within  but less than  but less than undiscounted
one year two years five years More than cash flows Carrying

RERS BB—F BBME fiveyears REBREE amount
¥R EFImE (EFHEEF BBRE FEBE REA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT

Non-derivative financial FTESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENER 132,591 - - - 132,591 132,591
Amounts due to related JE BB A AlFUR
companies 3,974 - - - 3,974 3,974
Amount due to a director BEN—2EE7E - 71,750 - - 71,750 68,325
Secured loans EHER 3,772 3,770 11,310 36,509 55,361 39,898
Bonds &% 2,800 2,800 17,200 34,104 56,904 40,000
143,137 78,320 28,510 70,613 320,580 284,788
2015 “Z—HhF
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
orwithin ~ but less than  but less than undiscounted
one year two years five years More than cash flows Carrying
RER iR —F R F five years  REFRHEE amount
—fR  EFERE  ETHRE jikchikas mELE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E=5) (E=5) (E=5) (E=5) (E=5) (E=5)
Non-derivative financial FITESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables EHREMEMER 204,939 - - - 204,939 204,939
Amounts due to related JE B A RIFUE
companies 100,714 - - - 100,714 100,714
Amount due to a director EN—2E=08 - 144,570 - - 144570 142,096
Secured loans Tﬁﬁ%?ﬁ 66,346 - - - 66,346 62,006
Bonds &% 2,800 2,800 17,200 34,104 56,904 40,000

374,799 147,370 17,200 34,104 573,473 549,755
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

41.6 Fair value estimation

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 due to their short-term
maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
strategy in monitoring its capital structure, which was
unchanged from prior year, was to maintain a sufficient
cash level to meet its liquidity requirements. In order to
maintain or adjust the cash level, the Group may issue new
shares, raise new debt financing or sell assets to increase
the cash level.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the business combination under common
control (note 33) and the discontinued operation, certain
comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T4 B W B
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E--F T EZ-QmF —T-hF ZB-REF
(Restated)
(s&E75)
Consolidated statement REERER
of profit or loss and Hitt2mE
other comprehensive EnE
income (HK$'000) (F#x)
Revenue Wi 475,174 298,722 348,530 413,259 310,147
Loss before income tax BRETIS T ATEE (51,187) (56,980) (94,053) (23,302) (72,500)
Loss for the year attributable AEERARIESRE
to equity shareholders REERERIE
of the Company from continuing &2 ¥ ELER
and discontinued operations (52,339) (52,883) (91,806) (33,055) (26,074)
Basic (loss)/earnings BREK (B8) /
per share (HK cents) &7 (L)
- From continuing operations - FHER L5 (16.16) (16.33) (28.24) 93) (20.23)
— From discontinued operation - DAL IREER - - - (1.15) 13.81
Diluted (loss)/earnings ke (58B) /
per share (HK cents) BH OB{L)
— From continuing operations - F B L £ (16.16) (16.33) (28.24) 8.93) (20.23)
— From discontinued operation - B 4% [F A& E7% - - - (1.15) 13.81
Consolidated statement ZERBMRRE
of financial position (Fi&x)
(HK$'000)
Non-current assets FrBEE 80,110 166,843 121,711 158,391 143,402
Current assets REEE 230,897 240,842 246,777 374,851 177,312
Current liabilities REar (121,140) (118,642) (168,643) (379,100) (161,238)
Net current assets/(liabilities) TEEE,/
(B8F) ¥E 109,757 122,200 78,134 (4,249) 16,074
Non-current liabilities FnBEAE (10,634) (157,450) (178,757) (189,192) (153,963)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (BR) 3@ 179,233 131,593 21,088 (34,550) 5,513
Share Information (HK$) RHER (Br)
Highest share price RERE $1.61 $2.38 $3.11 $2.30 $2.00
Lowest share price RIERE $0.38 $0.99 $1.73 $1.10 $0.48
Year end closing share price FRTMRE $0.98 $1.82 $1.96 $1.84 $0.48




FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F EEIFR#Z IR B R A =)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SHAREHOLDERS’ CALENDAR
2 AR ORE KB A H B R

CORPORATE INFORMATION NEIER
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Executive directors HITEFE

Mr. Shen Yong (Chairman) REBLE (F/F)
Mr. Gan Lin (Chief Executive Officer)’ HRkE (FTEsaE)"
Mr. Shen Ke FRfR[ ST

Mr. Hong Sang Joon AR &

Mr. Kaneko Hiroshi™ & FIEEE"
Non-executive director FEHITEE

Mr. Huang Xiang Yang" EMGILE"
Independent non-executive directors BUFBITESE
Mr. Yu Lei REETE

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan” REBR L™

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)* BEEMIE L
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann AIS XX AE
Executive Committee HiTRE®
Mr. Shen Yong REBELAE

Mr. Shen Ke R ST A

Mr. Hong Sang Joon S A

Mr. Gan Lin® HHRLLE”
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Mr. Yu Lei REEIEE
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Mr. Yu Lei
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* appointed on 18 April 2016
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Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie

Authorised Representatives
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Registered Office and Principal Place of Business S MHEREREIEEEME,

Room 3805, 38/F, Lee Garden One B

33 Hysan Avenue Fik

Causeway Bay 75 HE 33 5%

Hong Kong FE—HI381£ 3805 =
Auditor %8 Em

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited HE (B8) St EHAERA R
Certified Public Accountants HFESEAD

Share Registrar and Transfer Office BB PERE

Tricor Standard Limited BEZREBRAT

Level 22 B

Hopewell Centre ERANER 18358

183 Queen’s Road East AR L

Hong Kong 2218

Stock Code Bz 43 X 55k

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 2310 ERBERXSMER AT - 2310
Company Website YNGIE RS

www.forebase.com.hk www.forebase.com.hk
Shareholders’ Calendar BRE HiE%

Announcement of 2016 Final Results DT — NFRAPEE

29 March 2017 —E—+HF=A=-+NH
Closure of Registrar of Members =R BPER

26-31 May 2017 —E—+tFRA-+HE=1F—H
(both days inclusive) (BREBEMX)

Annual General Meeting RRBAFKE

31 May 2017 —E—+FRA=+—H
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